Notice of Proposed Rulemaking

Tracking number

2024-00608

Department

1507 - Department of Public Safety

Agency

1507 - Colorado State Patrol

CCR number

8 CCR 1507-1

Rule title

RULES AND REGULATIONS CONCERNING MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR THE **OPERATION OF COMMERCIAL VEHICLES**

Rulemaking Hearing

Date

Time

01/17/2025

10:00 AM

Location

15165 S. Golden Road, Golden, Colorado, 80401

Subjects and issues involved

These rules and regulations establish the minimum standards for the operation of commercial vehicles within Colorado

Amendments proposed to 8 CCR 1507-1 include: Document formatting adjustments that do not affect the content or interpretation of these rules have been made throughout the document to comply with the state accessibility standards required under Section 24-34-802, CRS. Insertion of a Table of Contents, Califlaing document Analygato. To include a new definition for Authorized Enforcement Official, clarifying which have enforcement officials are authorized to complete commercial vehicle inspections and/or compliance reviews and the criteria officers must satisfy. Updating references to the Commercial vehicle damits to be consistent with legislative changes effected by BS 24-100 and its amendments of Section 24-24-06. CRS. Updating references to the Contended Revised Statutes, the Commercial Vehicle Sately Alliance (CVSA) Inspector Criteria, CVSA OOS Criteria, CVSA Bylaws, and FMCSRs to maintain consistency with controlling and authorizing legal authorities. Revising verhiced inclusion time is to improve overall readability and message darity and Correcting minor errors in grammar, editing, spelling, formatting, and updating references to resources.

Statutory authority

Under §42-4-235 (4) (a) (I), CRS

Contact information

Name	Title
John Hahn	Captain
Telephone	Email
3032731875	John.Hahn@state.co.us



Agency Rulemaking Home

eDocket

Log out Change password



Notice of Rulemaking Confirmation

Official Publication of the State Administrative Rules (24-4-103(11) C.R.S.)

Date Filed: December 12, 2024 18:17:35

Please print this page for your records

Email

REMEMBER: You must submit your proposed rules to DORA's Office of Policy, Research and Regulatory Reform at the time of filing this notice with the Secretary of State, as required by section 24-4-103(2.5) C.R.S. Link:<u>https://www.dora.state.co.us/pls/real/SB121.Logon</u>

Your notice of rulemaking has been submitted to the Secretary of State. Your tracking number is 2024-00608.

Department	1507 - Department of Public Safety
Type of Filing	Permanent
Agency	1507 - Colorado State Patrol
CCR Number	8 CCR 1507-1
CCR Title	RULES AND REGULATIONS CONCERNING MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR THE OPERATION OF COMMERCIAL VEHICLES
Hearing Date	01/17/2025
Hearing Time	10:00 AM
Hearing Location	15165 S. Golden Road, Golden, Colorado, 80401
Description	These rules and regulations establish the minimum standards for the operation of commercial vehicles within Colorado. Amendments proposed to 8 CCR 1507-1 include: • Document formatting adjustments that do not affect the content or interpretation of these rules have been made throughout the document to comply with the state accessibility standards required under Section 24-34-802, CRS. • Insertion of a Table of Contents, facilitating document navigation. • To include a new definition for "Authorized Enforcement Official," clarifying which law enforcement officials are authorized to complete commercial vehicle inspections and/or compliance reviews and the criteria officers must satisfy. • Updating references to the commercial vehicle chain law requirements to be consistent with legislative changes effected by SB 24-100 and its amendments of Section 42-4-106, CRS. • Updating references to the Colorado Revised Statutes, the Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance (CVSA) Inspector Criteria, CVSA OOS Criteria, CVSA Bylaws, and FMCSRs to maintain consistency with controlling and authorizing legal authorities. • Revising verbiage throughout the rules to improve overall readability and message clarity and • Correcting minor errors in grammar, editing, spelling, formatting, and updating references to resources.
Statutory Authority	Under §42-4-235 (4) (a) (I), CRS
Proposed Rule	ProposedRuleAttach2024-00608.docx
Additional Information	AddInfoAttach2024-00608.docx
Comments	The public rulemaking will occur on Friday, January 17, 2025, at 10 am in Building 100, located at 15165 S. Golden Rd., Golden, Colorado, 80401. The public is invited to join us in person or to attend virtually using Google Meet online at https://meet.google.com/zzp-rksu-wgo or by phone by dialing 1 252-825-7041 PIN: 392 848 705#. More telephone number options are available at https://tel.meet/zzp-rksu-wgo?pin=5780870178372. The public may find copies of each of the redlined rules, supporting documents, and the CDPS Notice of Public Rulemaking on the CDPS Rulemaking Information Website at https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/get-involved/cdps-rules-and-regulations. Any updates to these documents will be posted consistent with the Colorado APA and made available to the public at least five days before the public hearing.
Contacts for Public	
Name	John Hahn
Title	Captain
Phone	3032731875
Email	John.Hahn@state.co.us
Contacts for SOS, AG and O	PLLS (if different)
Name	Angelina Page
Title	CSP Rulemaking Coordinator
Phone	3038159027

angelina.page@state.co.us

Terms & conditions | Accessibility statement | Browser compatibility



Page - CDPS, Angelina <angelina.page@state.co.us>

Proposed Rule Submitted - Commercial Vehicle Safety Rules -

DORA_OPR_Website@state.co.us <DORA_OPR_Website@state.co.us>

Thu, Dec 12, 2024 at 6:27 PM

To: angelina.page@state.co.us

The following Proposed Rule has been submitted to the Colorado Office of Policy, Research and Regulatory Reform:

Department:	Department of Public Safety
Rulemaking Agency:	Colorado State Patrol
Rule ID:	10514
Title or Subject:	Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles
Submitted by:	Angelina M Page
Date Submitted:	12/12/2024

After your submission has been checked for completeness, it will be made available to the general public on DORA's website and email notifications will be sent to interested stakeholders.

In accordance with SB13-158, the public will have until Monday, December 30th, 2024 at midnight to request that the Department of Regulatory Agencies require your agency to prepare a cost-benefit analysis of these rules or amendments. You will be copied on all stakeholder requests for a cost-benefit analysis and DORA staff will contact you to discuss the requests. A second email notification will be sent if you are required to submit a cost-benefit analysis as a result of a public request.

Please contact us at DORA_OPR_Website@state.co.us if you have further questions regarding this e-mail message.



Colorado Register Secretary of State State of Colorado

Colorado Register



47 CR 24

Volume 47, No. 24

December 25, 2024

Notice of Proposed Rulemaking

Tracking number

2024-00608

Department

1507 - Department of Public Safety

Agency

1507 - Colorado State Patrol

CCR number

8 CCR 1507-1

Rule title

RULES AND REGULATIONS CONCERNING MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR THE **OPERATION OF COMMERCIAL VEHICLES**

Rulemaking Hearing

Date

Time

01/17/2025

10:00 AM

Location

15165 S. Golden Road, Golden, Colorado, 80401

Subjects and issues involved

These rules and regulations establish the minimum standards for the operation of commercial vehicles within Colorado

Amendments proposed to 8 CCR 1507-1 include: Document formatting adjustments that do not affect the content or interpretation of these rules have been made throughout the document to comply with the state accessibility standards required under Section 24-34-802, CRS. Insertion of a Table of Contents, Califlaing document Analygato. To include a new definition for Authorized Enforcement Official, clarifying which have enforcement officials are authorized to complete commercial vehicle inspections and/or compliance reviews and the criteria officers must satisfy. Updating references to the Commercial vehicle damits to be consistent with legislative changes effected by BS 24-100 and its amendments of Section 24-24-06. CRS. Updating references to the Contended Revised Statutes, the Commercial Vehicle Sately Alliance (CVSA) Inspector Criteria, CVSA OOS Criteria, CVSA Bylaws, and FMCSRs to maintain consistency with controlling and authorizing legal authorities. Revising verhiced inclusion time is to improve overall readability and message darity and Correcting minor errors in grammar, editing, spelling, formatting, and updating references to resources.

Statutory authority

Under §42-4-235 (4) (a) (I), CRS

Contact information

Name	Title
John Hahn	Captain
Telephone	Email
3032731875	John.Hahn@state.co.us

Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles

Accessibility Editing Note:

Document formatting adjustments that do not affect the content or interpretation of these rules have been made throughout this document to comply with the state accessibility standards required under Section 24-34-802, CRS. Examples of these formatting adjustments include changing capitalized text to mixed-case or lower-case text, removing underlining, increasing font size, using words instead of symbols, enabling hyperlink text, and adjusting the structure of the paragraphs to allow for electronic bookmarking to support electronic readers. The CSP Motor Carrier Safety Section is committed to supporting effective communication and access to these rules by all members of the public. If you experience difficulty with or are unable to use this document, please go to https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/accessibility-interpretation-and-translation-support or contact the CSP Motor Carrier Safety Section at (303) 273-1875 for assistance.

Disclaimer:

This draft is filed with the Department of State and submitted to the Department of Regulatory Agencies, consistent with Sections 24-4-103 (2.5) and (3) (a), CRS, of the State Administrative Procedure Act. This preliminary draft may be revised before the public rulemaking hearing on January 17, 2025. If any changes are made, a revised copy of the rules and any supporting documents will be made available to the public and posted on the Colorado Department of Public Safety Rulemaking Information website at <u>https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/get-involved/cdps-rules-and-regulations</u>. Any updates or revisions will be made available as required by Sections 24-4-103 (4) (a), CRS, and posted to the Colorado Department of Public Safety Rulemaking Information website no later than January 11, 2025.

Table of Contents

hicles1	d Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehic	Rules and I
3	: Authority to Adopt Standards and Specifications	MCS 1:
3	: Applicability	MCS 2:
3	Compliance with 8 CCR 1507-25 as Appropriate	2.1.
3	Approval of Temporary Rule Variance(s)	2.2.
3	: General Definitions	MCS 3:
		MCS 4 :
8	Safety Inspections	4.1.
8	Authority to Inspect	4.2.
8	Authority to Conduct Compliance Reviews and Safety Audits	4.3.
8	: Inspection Standards and Reports	MCS 5:
		5.1.
8	Minimum Information and Report Disposition	5.2.

MCS 6: 6.1.	State Adoption of FMCSR Intrastate Commerce Included	
6.2.	Entry-Level Driver Training	9
6.3.	New Entrant Safety Program	9
6.4.	Financial Responsibility (Insurance) of Motor Carriers	10
6.5.	Amended General Applicability of the FMCSR	10
6.6.	Amended Applicability of FMCSR Definitions	10
6.7.	Amended Motor Carrier Identification Requirements	11
6.8.	Age of Drivers Operating in Interstate Commerce	11
6.9.	Amending HOS and Applicability Thereof	11
6.10.	References to Federal Agencies to Include State Agencies	12
6.11.	Filing of Information Related to FMCSR Reporting Requirements	12
6.12.	Other General Exceptions	12
MCS 7: MCS 7	Use and Carry of Traction Devices are Required .1. Drivers Must Carry Chains	
MCS 7	.2. Use of Chains and Alternative Traction Devices	13
MCS 8: 8.1.	Intrastate Medical Waivers Approval of Medical Waivers	
8.2.	Medical Waiver Information Available Online	14
8.3.	Written Notice of Terms and Conditions	14
8.4.	Denial of Medical Waiver Application	14
8.5.	Appeal of Medical Waiver Denial	14
8.6.	Medical Waiver Revocation	15
8.7.	Right to Hearing Upon Medical Waiver Revocation	15
8.8.	Right to Appeal Medical Waiver Revocation	15
MCS 9. 9.1.	Compliance Reviews and the Assignment of Intrastate Safety Fitness Ratings Exclusive Authority to Conduct Compliance Reviews	
9.2.	Application of Intrastate Carrier Safety Ratings	16
9.3.	Administrative Review of Safety Fitness Rating	17
9.4.	Motor Carrier Request to Change Safety Fitness Rating for Corrective Action(s)	17
9.5.	Motor Carrier Request to Change Safety Fitness Rating Through Compliance Review	18
9.6. for Otl	Request for an Administrative Review/Compliance Review Does Not Preempt Request her Administrative/Compliance Reviews	
9.7.	Final Safety Fitness Rating Assignment	19
MCS 10. 10.1.	Compliance Reviews and Civil Penalties Determination of Civil Penalty Assessment	
10.2.	Notice of Civil Penalty Assessment (NOC)	20

10.3.	Motor Carrier Response to Civil Penalty NOC Required	.20
10.4.	Motor Carrier Requests for Administrative Review of Civil Penalty Assessments	.20
10.5.	Motor Carrier Failure to Respond or Cooperate	.22
MCS 11. MCS 12. Rules.	Information on These Rules Information Maintenance and Reference of Publications, Standards, Guidelines and 23	
12.1. 12.2.	Available for Public Inspection and Referenced Consistent with Statute Maintenance of Copies	
12.2.	Availability of Copies	
MCS 13.	Severability	24
MCS 14.	Effective Date	

MCS 1: Authority to Adopt Standards and Specifications.

The Chief of the Colorado State Patrol is authorized by the provisions of <u>§</u>-Section 42-4-235 (4) (a) (i), CRS, to adopt rules and regulations setting safety standards and specifications for the operation of all commercial vehicles in Colorado, both in interstate and intrastate transportation.

MCS 2: Applicability.

These rules and regulations apply to individuals, corporations, Colorado government or governmental subdivisions or agencies, or other legal entities who that operate commercial vehicles as they are defined in §-Section 42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS.

2.1. Compliance with 8 CCR 1507-25 as Appropriate.

In addition to this rule, any person who transports hazardous materials as defined in 49 CFR 171.8 and §-Section 42-20-103 (3), CRS, and/or nuclear materials as defined in §-Section 42-20-402 (3) (a) – (c), CRS, must operate consistent with 8 CCR 1507-25, the CSP Rules and Regulations Concerning the Permitting, Routing, and Transportation of Hazardous and Nuclear Materials and the Intrastate Transportation of Agricultural Products in the State of Colorado.

2.2. Approval of Temporary Rule Variance(s).

Provided a variance is not in violation of <u>§-Section</u> 42-4-235, CRS, the CSP Motor Carrier Safety Section (MCSS) may consider and grant requests of intrastate commercial motor carriers for temporary variances from these rules.

MCS 3: General Definitions.

The following definitions apply throughout these rules unless otherwise specified. Definitions relevant to these rules are found in Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations. These definitions are amended to maintain consistency with the Colorado Revised Statutes as necessary.

3.1. Action: Consistent with §-Section 24-4-102 (1), CRS, and as used within these rules, an

action includes the whole or any part of any agency rule, order, interlocutory order, license, sanction, relief, or the equivalent or the denial thereof, or failure to act.

- **3.2.** Aggrieved: Consistent with §-Section 24-4-102 (3.5), CRS, and as may be used in connection with judicial review of rule-making, means having suffered actual loss or injury or being exposed to potential loss or injury to legitimate interests including but not limited to, business, economic, aesthetic, governmental, recreational, or conservational interests.
- 3.3. Authorized Enforcement Official: Enforcement Officials, as defined within these rules, who are also certified to complete commercial vehicle inspections under Section 42-4-235 (4) (a), CRS, are authorized to perform commercial vehicle inspections consistent with their certification level. Level I CVSA-certified Colorado State Patrol Troopers assigned to the Motor Carrier Safety Section are the only Colorado law enforcement officials authorized to perform Compliance Reviews on and to assign Safety Ratings for commercial motor carrier operators or drivers. <u>CDL: Commercial Driver's License.</u>
- 3.4. CDL: Commercial Driver's License. CDOR: Colorado Department of Revenue.
- **3.5. CDOR: Colorado Department of Revenue. CDOT: Colorado Department of Transportation.**
- **3.6. CDOT: Colorado Department of Transportation. CDPS:** Colorado Department of Public Safety.
- 3.7. CDPS: Colorado Department of Public Safety. CFR: Code of Federal Regulations.
- **3.8. CFR: Code of Federal Regulations. Chief:** The Chief of the Colorado State Patrol, or his or her designee as appropriate, unless otherwise specified.
- 3.9. Chief: The Chief of the Colorado State Patrol, or his or her designee as appropriate, unless otherwise specified. Civil Penalty: A financial penalty imposed on a motorcarrier by the Colorado State Patrol after a Compliance Review for violations of rulesadopted by the Chief consistent with §42-4-235 (4) (a) (I), CRS.
- 3.10. Civil Penalty: A financial penalty imposed on a motor carrier by the Colorado State Patrol after a Compliance Review for violations of rules adopted by the Chief consistent with Section 42-4-235 (4) (a) (I), CRS. Civil Penalty Process: The process and procedures to collect Civil Penalties issued by the CSP for violations of §42-4-235 (4) (a), CRS, under the authority provided by §42-4-235 (2)(a), CRS, and determined consistent with the provisions of Subpart G of 49 CFR 386 as codified within §42-4-235 (2) (b) (I), CRS.
- **3.11.** Civil Penalty Process: The process and procedures to collect Civil Penalties issued by the CSP for violations of Section 42-4-235 (4) (a), CRS, under the authority provided by Section 42-4-235 (2)(a), CRS, and determined consistent with the provisions of Subpart

G of 49 CFR 386 as codified within Section 42-4-235 (2) (b) (I), CRS. Commercial Vehicle: The definition of commercial vehicle will be as outlined in §42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS.

- 3.12. Commercial Vehicle: The definition of commercial vehicle will be as outlined in Section 42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS. Compliance Review: An examination of motor carrieroperations, such as driver's hours-of-service, maintenance and inspection, driverqualifications, CDL requirements, financial responsibility, accidents, hazardousmaterials, and other safety and transportation records to determine whether a motorcarrier meets safety fitness standards.
- 3.13. Compliance Review: An examination of motor carrier operations, such as driver's hours-of-service, maintenance and inspection, driver qualifications, CDL requirements, financial responsibility, accidents, hazardous materials, and other safety and transportation records to determine whether a motor carrier meets safety fitness standards. Conditional Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standards that could result in the occurrences listed in 49 CFR 385.5.
- 3.14. Conditional Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standards that could result in the occurrences listed in 49 CFR 385.5. CRS:-Colorado Revised Statutes.
- 3.15. CRS: Colorado Revised Statutes. CRU: Colorado State Patrol Central Records Unit.
- 3.16. CRU: Colorado State Patrol Central Records Unit. CSP: Colorado State Patrol.
- 3.17. CSP: Colorado State Patrol. CVSA: Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance.
- **3.18.** CVSA: Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance. Decision: As used within these rules, means the determinative action in adjudication and includes order, opinion, sanction, and relief.
- **3.19.** Decision: As used within these rules, means the determinative action in adjudication and includes order, opinion, sanction, and relief. Enforcement Official: The definition of an Enforcement Official will be as it is defined by §§-16-2.5-101, 16-2.5-114, 16-2.5-115, and 16-2.5-143, and as outlined in §-42-20-103 (2), CRS.
- 3.20. Enforcement Official: The definition of an Enforcement Official will be as it is defined by Sections 16-2.5-101, 16-2.5-114, 16-2.5-115, and 16-2.5-143, and as outlined in Section 42-20-103 (2), CRS. FMCSA: Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration.
- **3.21.** FMCSA: Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration. FMCSR: Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations.

- 3.22. FMCSR: Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations. GCWR: Gross Combined Weight Rating.
- 3.23. GCWR: Gross Combined Weight Rating. GVWR: Gross Vehicle Weight Rating.
- **3.24. GVWR: Gross Vehicle Weight Rating. Initial Decision:** As it applies to the assessment of civil penalties or the assignment of Safety Fitness Ratings under these rules, reflects a decision that will become a final agency action of the CSP unless administratively reviewed by the CSP at the request of a motor carrier consistent with these rules.
- 3.25. Initial Decision: As it applies to the assessment of civil penalties or the assignment of Safety Fitness Ratings under these rules, reflects a decision that will become a final agency action of the CSP unless administratively reviewed by the CSP at the request of a motor carrier consistent with these rules. Interested Person: Includes any persons who may be aggrieved by agency action.
- 3.26. Interested Person: Includes any persons who may be aggrieved by agency action. LLC: Limited Liability Company or Limited Liability Corporation.
- **3.27.** LLC: Limited Liability Company or Limited Liability Corporation. MCSS: Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety Section.
- **3.28.** LLC: Limited Liability Company or Limited Liability Corporation. Motor Carrier: The definition of a motor carrier will be as it is outlined in § 42-4-235 (1) (c), CRS.
- 3.29. Motor Carrier: The definition of a motor carrier will be as it is outlined in Section 42-4-235 (1) (c), CRS. MOU: Memorandum of Understanding.
- **3.30. MOU: Memorandum of Understanding. Notice of Claim Letter (NOC):** As it is used within these rules, a written order informing a motor carrier of its Civil Penalty Assessment, the rights associated with the penalty, and the process for responding to the penalty.
- **3.31.** Notice of Claim Letter (NOC): As it is used within these rules, a written order informing a motor carrier of its Civil Penalty Assessment, the rights associated with the penalty, and the process for responding to the penalty. OOS: Out of Service.
- 3.32. OOS: Out-of-Service. PUC: Colorado Public Utilities Commission.
- **3.33. PUC: Colorado Public Utilities Commission. Sanction:** Includes any prohibition, requirement, limitation, or other condition affecting the freedom of any person. Sanction also applies to the imposition of any form of penalty or fine, including civil-penalties as they are assessed consistent with state statutes and these rules.
- **3.34.** Sanction: Includes any prohibition, requirement, limitation, or other condition affecting the freedom of any person. Sanction also applies to the imposition of any

form of penalty or fine, including civil penalties, as they are assessed to be consistent with state statutes and these rules. Satisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates amotor carrier has in place and functioning adequate Safety Fitness controls to meet thesafety fitness standard prescribed in 49 CFR 385.5. Safety Fitness controls are adequateif they are appropriate for the size and type of operation of the motor carrier.

- 3.35. Satisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier has in place and functioning adequate Safety Fitness controls to meet the safety fitness standard prescribed in 49 CFR 385.5. Safety Fitness controls are adequate if they are appropriate for the motor carrier's size and type of operation of the motor carrier. Served/Service: Indicates a NOC or other service document sent by first class mail to the last address furnished to the MCSS by the motor carrier or personally served on the motor carrier by a uniformed member of the CSP.
 - **3.35.1.** Service of an NOC or document by first class mail is considered complete when it is mailed, not when it is received.
- 3.36. Served/Service: Indicates a NOC or other service document sent by first class mail to the last address furnished to the MCSS by the motor carrier or personally served on the motor carrier by a uniformed member of the CSP. Unrated Safety Fitness Rating:-Indicates a safety rating has not been assigned to the motor carrier by the CSP.
 - 3.36.1. Service of an NOC or document by first class mail is considered complete when it is mailed, not when it is received.
- 3.37. Unrated Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a safety rating has not been assigned to the motor carrier by the CSP. Unsatisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a motor-carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure-compliance with the safety fitness standard, resulting in occurrences as listed in 49 CFR-385.5.
- 3.38. Unsatisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standard, resulting in occurrences as listed in 49 CFR 385.5. USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number can be for intrastate or interstate use, depending on the information provided by the motor carrier to the FMCSA at the time of an application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier record.
- 3.39. USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number can be for intrastate or interstate use, depending on the information provided by the motor carrier to the FMCSA at the time of an-application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier record.

MCS 4: Authority to Inspect Vehicles, Drivers, Cargo, Books, and Records. Authorized Enforcement Officials will at all times have the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents consistent with Part MCS 4 of these rules.

4.1. Safety Inspections.

Enforcement Officials who are authorized to perform motor vehicle safety inspections on commercial motor vehicles and drivers are required to meet the inspector qualifications outlined in §-Section 42-4-235 (4) (a) (I), CRS, while performing CVSA North American Standard Safety Inspections.

4.1.1. All Enforcement Officials performing North American Standard Safety Inspections must maintain the certification requirements prescribed in the current published CVSA Operations Manual, effective April 1, 2024-2025.

4.2. Authority to Inspect.

Authorized Enforcement Officials have the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents, as such documents apply to motor vehicle or commercial vehicle transport by 8 CCR 1507-25 and/or as are outlined in 49 CFR, Subchapter B, Parts 383, 387, 390, 391, 392, 393, 395, 396, 397, and 399, as revised October 1, 2023-2024.

4.3. Authority to Conduct Compliance Reviews and Safety Audits.

CSP Enforcement Officials who are certified by the FMCSA under 49 CFR 385, Subpart C, to perform compliance reviews and safety audits have the authority to enter the facilities of and inspect any motor carrier, as defined in §-Section 42- 4-235 (1) (c), CRS. Inspection includes the review of any required records and supporting documents as may apply through 8 CCR 1507-25 and/or as they are identified and defined in 49 CFR, Subchapter B, Parts 40 380, 382, 383, 385, 387, 390, 392, 393, 395, 397, 399, and Appendix A, revised October 1, 2023-2024.

MCS 5: Inspection Standards and Reports.

Through an MOU with the CVSA, dated October 21, 2022, the CSP adopts the standards and procedures established for the inspection of commercial vehicles, collectively known as the North American Uniform Driver/Vehicle Inspection.

5.1. CVSA Bylaws as General Inspection Guidelines.

Authorized Enforcement Officials performing safety inspections on commercial vehicles, drivers, and cargo will use as general guidelines the levels, methods of inspections, and the OOS criteria found in the CVSA bylaws, as they are revised and effective April 1, 2024-2025.

5.2. Minimum Information and Report Disposition.

Authorized Enforcement Officials will, upon the completion of each inspection, prepare a report which, at minimum, identifies the inspector, the inspector's agency, the name and address of the motor carrier, the date and time of the inspection, the location of the inspection, the vehicle, and the driver, any defects or violations found, and the disposition of the vehicle. A copy of the inspection report will be provided to the driver or motor carrier.

MCS 6: State Adoption of FMCSR.

All intrastate and interstate motor carriers, commercial vehicles, and drivers thereof operating within Colorado must operate consistent with the safety regulations detailed within:

49 CFR 40	Procedures for Transportation Workplace
49 CFR 380	Drug and Alcohol Testing Programs Special Training Requirements
49 CFR 382	Controlled Substances and Alcohol Use and
49 CFR 387	Testing Minimum Levels of Financial Responsibility
	for Motor Carriers
49 CFR 390	Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations:
	General
49 CFR 391	Qualifications of Drivers and Longer Combination Vehicle (LCV) Driver Instructors
49 CFR 392	Driving of Commercial Motor Vehicles
49 CFR 393	Parts & Accessories Necessary for Safe
	Operation
49 CFR 395	Hours of Service of Drivers
49 CFR 396	Inspections, Repair, and Maintenance
49 CFR 397	Transportation of Hazardous Materials,
	Driving and Parking Rules
49 CFR 399	Employee Safety and Health Standards
49 CFR 396 Appendix A to Subtitle B of Chapter III	Minimum Periodic Inspection Standards

of the FMCSA as the same were effective October 1, 2023-2024, and published in Title 49 of the CFR, Subtitle B, Chapter III, Parts 200 through 399, with references therein, with modifications as are necessitated by state law and set forth by and within these rules:

6.1. Intrastate Commerce Included.

Unless otherwise specified, all references to interstate commerce by the FMCSR hereby adopted by these rules also include and apply to intrastate commerce.

6.2. Entry-Level Driver Training.

49 CFR 380.509 (a) is amended to read: "Each employer must ensure each entry-level driver, who first begins operating a commercial motor vehicle requiring a CDL under §-**Section** 42-2-404, CRS, receives the training required by 49 CFR 380.503."

6.3. New Entrant Safety Program.

49 CFR 385.501 (b) and (c), through 385.505, and 385.319 (b) through 385.337 do not

apply.

- **6.3.1.** 49 CFR 385.309 through 385.319 (a), hereafter referred to collectively as the Colorado Intrastate New Entrant Safety Assurance Program, applies to intrastate motor carriers who are beginning intrastate operations and are required to obtain an intrastate USDOT number from the FMCSA.
- **6.3.2.** Intrastate motor carriers can confirm if they need a USDOT number and complete an intrastate application online **at**-by going to <u>https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/registration/do-i-need-usdot-number</u>.
- **6.3.3.** All interstate motor carriers beginning operations in Colorado must submit to a safety audit consistent with 49 CFR 385.3.
- **6.3.4.** All intrastate motor carriers beginning operations in Colorado are eligible for the Colorado Intrastate New Entrant Safety Assurance Program. New intrastate carriers may schedule training by contacting the MCSS. A prior interstate safety audit or compliance review will meet the requirement for a safety audit.

6.4. Financial Responsibility (Insurance) of Motor Carriers.

Under §-Section 42-4-235 (4) (a) (I), CRS, the financial responsibility and insurance provisions of these rules do not apply to commercial vehicles regulated by the PUC. Additionally, these These same provisions do not apply to commercial vehicles operated by river outfitters regulated by the Colorado Department of Natural Resources, Division of Wildlife, under 2 CCR 405-3. These noted exceptions aside, 49 CFR 387.1 through 387.17, 387.303, 387.305, and 387.309 apply to the operation of commercial vehicles in Colorado with the following exceptions:

- 6.4.1. 49 CFR 387.7 (e) and (g) do not apply.
- **6.4.2.** 49 CFR 387.9 (4) applies only to interstate and foreign commerce.
- **6.4.3.** Transportation carriers may obtain a certificate of self insurance issued under §42-7-501, CRS, or 49 CFR 387.
- **6.4.4.** Motor carriers subject to these rules must carry a minimum level of cargo liability coverage of \$10,000 for loss or damage to property carried on any one motor vehicle, or an amount adequate to cover the value of the property being transported, whichever is less unless the shipper and the property carrier otherwise agree by written contract to a lesser amount.

6.5. Amended General Applicability of the FMCSR.

49 CFR 390.3 (f), (1) – (2), and (6) do not apply.

6.6. Amended Applicability of FMCSR Definitions. The following definitions set forth within 49 CFR 390.5 are amended by these rules:

- **6.6.1.** The definitions of "Commercial Motor Vehicle" and "Motor Carrier" do not apply.
- **6.6.2.** The definition of an "emergency" is amended through the addition of by adding the following: "A governmental agency has determined that a local emergency requires relief from the maximum driving time in 49 CFR 395.3 or 395.5."

6.7. Amended Motor Carrier Identification Requirements.

49 CFR 390.19 (a) is amended to read: "Each motor carrier that conducts operations in intrastate commerce must apply for and receive an intrastate USDOT Number before beginning operations within the state. The motor carrier is required to update this information every 24 months."

- **6.7.1.** The FMCSA processes USDOT numbers for intrastate motor carriers are processed by the FMCSA.
- **6.7.2.** 49 CFR 390.21 (b) is amended through the addition of the following: "Intrastate carriers must mark their vehicles with the assigned intrastate USDOT number, preceded by the letters "USDOT" and followed by the suffix "CO" (e.g.: USDOT 1234567 CO)."
 - **6.7.2.1.** Motor carriers operating in intrastate commerce, not transporting 16 or more passengers (including the driver) or transporting placarded hazardous materials and having a GVWR or GCWR equal to or over 16,001 lbs., but not in excess of 26,000 lbs., may meet the marking requirements of 49 CFR 390.21 by marking the trailer or secondary unit, if the GVWR of the self-propelled unit itself is less than 16,001 lbs.
 - **6.7.2.2.** In the interests of public safety, intrastate motor carriers who operate as repossessors as defined within <u>§</u>-Section 42-6-146 (4), CRS, are not subject to the marking requirements of 49 CFR 390.21.

6.8. Age of Drivers Operating in Interstate Commerce.

49 CFR 391.11 (b) (1) is amended to read: "Is at least 21 years old if engaged in interstate commerce or transporting hazardous materials of a type or quantity that would require the vehicle to be marked or placarded under 49 CFR 177.823, except drivers operating interstate under a waiver issued through the FMCSA Military Pilot Program, or any other approved non-military extension thereof and as recognized consistent with §-Section 42-2-404 (4) (b), CRS. All other drivers operating intrastate only must be at least 18 years of age."

6.9. Amending HOS and Applicability Thereof.

The HOS regulations set forth within 49 CFR 395 are amended as follows:

6.9.1. Public transit agency carriers and their drivers operating in intrastate commerce

may satisfy the requirements of 49 CFR 395.1 (e) (1) (ii) by either meeting the existing regulation or by replacing 49 CFR 395.1 (e) (1) and (2) with "the driver is released from work within 12 consecutive hours."

- **6.9.2.** 49 CFR 395.3 and 395.5 do not apply to drivers of either Colorado governmental vehicles or tow trucks working an emergency, as defined in 49 CFR 390.
- **6.9.3.** 49 CFR 395.3 does not apply to drivers who are towing a vehicle from a public roadway at the request of a public officer or for other law enforcement purposes.
- **6.9.4.** Drivers transporting livestock, poultry, slaughtered animals, or the grain, corn feed, hay, etc. used to feed animals are eligible to use the agricultural operations exception in 49 CFR 395.1 (k).
- **6.9.5.** 49 CFR 395.1 (k) is amended to read: "Is conducted during the planting and harvesting seasons within Colorado as determined by the Department of Agriculture to be from January 1 to December 31."

6.10. References to Federal Agencies to Include State Agencies.

All references to federal agencies and authorized personnel are to be construed to include the CSP, PUC, and other state or local enforcement agencies who have with a signed MOU with the CSP and their authorized personnel.

6.11. Filing of Information Related to FMCSR Reporting Requirements.

All motor carrier and driving requirements adopted by 8 CCR 1507-25 and/or referred to in 49 CFR 40, 368, 380, 382, 383, 385, 387, 390, 391, 392, 393, 395, 396, 397, and 399 must be filed with or delivered by mutually agreed upon methods upon request to the MCSS at 15075 S. Golden Rd., Golden, CO., 80401.

6.12. Other General Exceptions.

These rules and regulations apply to all vehicles meeting the definition of a commercial vehicle outlined in §-Section 42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS, and drivers who meet the definition of "Driver" as described in 49 CFR 390.5, with the following exceptions:

- **6.12.1.** Drivers of intrastate vehicles and vehicle combinations having a GVWR or GCWR of not more than 26,000 lbs., not requiring a CDL to operate, are not subject to 49 CFR 391, Subpart E, Physical Qualifications and Examinations.
- **6.12.2.** Vehicles owned and operated by the federal government or state government or **a** political subdivision thereof not domiciled in Colorado, and not transporting hazardous materials of a type and quantity requiring the vehicle to be marked or placarded under 49 CFR 172.504.
- **6.12.3.** The operation of authorized emergency vehicles, as defined in §-Section 42-1-102 (6), CRS, while in emergency and related operations.

6.12.4. The operation of snowplows, as defined in <u>§-Section</u> 42-1-102 (91), CRS, and all other vehicles engaged in supporting the use thereof when snowplows are removing snow/ice from the roadway or engaged in related snow/ice removal operations.

MCS 7: Use and Carry of Traction Devices are Required.

7.1. Drivers Must Carry Chains.

Drivers must carry chains consistent with Section 42-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS, operating a commercial vehicle as defined in CDOT Rule 2 CCR 601-14, except for mobile cranes, operating on Interstate 70 between mileposts 133 and 259 between September 1st and May 31st must carry tire chains consistent with the requirements detailed within §42-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS. when operating vehicles designed to carry 16 or more passengers (including the driver) or having a combined weight of 16,001 lbs. or more (except for mobile cranes) on the following public highways between September 1st and May 31st:

- 7.1.1. I-70 West of milepost 259 in Morrison, Colorado.
- 7.1.2. Colorado Highway 9, from milepost 63 to milepost 97, between Frisco and Fairplay, Colorado.
- 7.1.3. US Route 40 West of milepost 256 in Empire, Colorado.
- 7.1.4. US Route 50 West of milepost 225 in Salida, Colorado.
- 7.1.5. US Route 160 West of milepost 304 in Walsenburg, Colorado.
- 7.1.6. US Route 285 West of milepost 250 in Morrison, Colorado.
- 7.1.7. US Route 550 between mileposts 0 and 130.

7.2. Use of Chains and Alternative Traction Devices.

The use of chains by drivers of commercial vehicles must occur consistent with the requirements set forth within Section 42-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS. Drivers of commercial vehicles may use Alternative Traction Devices (ATDs), including tire cables, auto socks, or sanders, may also be used as each is defined and as their use is consistent with 2 CCR 601-14.

MCS 8: Intrastate Medical Waivers.

MCSS may grant variances/waivers to drivers unable to satisfy the requirements of 49 CFR 391, Subpart E, consistent with these rules.

8.1. Approval of Medical Waivers.

Individual applications requesting a variance/waiver of specific requirements may be approved when the approval of a variance/waiver is supported by the decisions of a certified medical examiner and the documented determination of an appropriate medical professional, combined with the satisfaction of any applicable performance standards which that support a decision that a medical condition has no adverse impact on safety.

8.2. Medical Waiver Information Available Online.

Medical waiver requirements, submission information, and other relevant documents are available online at https://csp.colorado.gov/medical-waivers. Medical waiver applications may also be requested in person by fax or by US mail from the MCSS office. Additional questions concerning the Colorado CDL Medical Waiver Program may be directed to the MCSS by phone at (303) 273-1875.

8.3. Written Notice of Terms and Conditions.

Medical waiver cardholders are provided written notice of relevant program terms and conditions at the time of card approval and subsequent renewal(s).

8.4. Denial of Medical Waiver Application.

An application for a medical waiver may be denied if:

- **8.4.1.** The applicant does not currently possess or is not in the process of attaining a state of Colorado CDL.
- **8.4.2.** The applicant has a medical condition for which a waiver or variance is not available; or
- **8.4.3.** Either the certified medical examiner or the medical professional fails to complete or certify the required medical waiver form(s).
- **8.4.4.** Denial of a medical waiver application will be by written notice from the MCSS.
 - **8.4.4.1.** Medical waiver applications denied as a result of incomplete, insufficient, or ineligible information may be resubmitted at the convenience of an applicant upon correction, completion, or meeting requirements of eligibility without prejudice.

8.5. Appeal of Medical Waiver Denial.

Both new and renewal medical waiver applicants have rights of appeal in the event of application denial.

- **8.5.1.** Where after review of an application and consideration of relevant motor vehicle operation data available to the CSP at the time of application receipt, the CSP decides to deny a request for a medical waiver, an applicant may request a hearing appealing the denial within 60 days.
- **8.5.2.** Upon review of relevant motor vehicle operation data available to the CSP at the time of receipt of paperwork to re-issue a medical waiver to an individual having an expired or expiring waiver, the CSP may deny to renew or re-issue a medical

waiver if the CSP determines that to re-issue a medical waiver to an individual does not promote safety, protect human life, or preserve the highways of this state. An applicant seeking renewal of an existing or expiring medical waiver may appeal this decision. The denial of an application for re-issue or renewal of a medical waiver to an individual based on relevant motor vehicle operation data available to the CSP at the time of the receipt of paperwork is entitled to the same appeal rights as a waiver revocation as set forth within Part 8.6 of these rules.

8.6. Medical Waiver Revocation.

A medical waiver may be revoked where if the CSP determines that issue of issuing a waiver to a driver does not promote safety, protect human life, or preserve the highways of this state.

- **8.6.1.** A medical waiver may be revoked by the **The** CSP **may revoke a medical waiver** when a waiver holder fails to comply with the applicable terms and conditions of the CSP Medical Waiver Program.
- **8.6.2.** A medical waiver may be revoked by the CSP when it is determined that, based on relevant motor vehicle operations data available to the CSP, the continued use of the waiver by a holder fails to promote safety, protect human life, or preserve the highways of this state.
- **8.6.3.** Revocation of any medical waiver will be by written notice from the MCSS consistent with §-Section 24-4-104, CRS.

8.7. Right to Hearing Upon Medical Waiver Revocation.

The MCSS will provide the waiver holder an opportunity to attend a hearing. Notice of this hearing will be in writing and will-provide give the waiver applicant with at least 30 day²s-notice of the time, date, place, and nature of the hearing. Notice will be served in person or by certified mail or, upon agreement of the parties, by email.

8.8. Right to Appeal Medical Waiver Revocation.

Within 30 days of the completion of a hearing or the failure of the waiver holder to file a written answer in response thereto to it, the Chief or his or her designee will issue a decision either affirming the revocation or reinstating the medical waiver. Within 30 days of receiving written notice from the MCSS revoking a medical waiver, the aggrieved holder of a medical waiver may submit an exception or appeal. Additionally:

- **8.8.1.** Appeal requests must be made in writing.
- **8.8.2.** Appeal requests must be addressed to the Chief at the MCSS at 15075 S. Golden Rd., Golden, CO., 80401.
- **8.8.3.** The Chief will hold a hearing on the appeal.

- **8.8.4.** The Chief will issue a written decision within 20 business days of the completed hearing. Notice of the decision will be served in person or by certified mail to the last known address provided for the appealing party. Upon agreement of the parties, service may also occur by email.
 - **8.8.4.1.** If the Chief finds by **a** preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is sufficient, revocation of the medical waiver will be sustained.
 - **8.8.4.2.** If the Chief finds by **a** preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is insufficient, the revocation of the medical waiver will be immediately reversed, and the medical waiver will be reinstated.
- **8.8.5.** The decision of the Chief on appeal will constitute a final agency action and is subject to judicial review as outlined in <u>§-Section</u> 24-4-106, CRS.

MCS 9. Compliance Reviews and the Assignment of Intrastate Safety Fitness Ratings.

Section 42-4-235 (2) (c), CRS, gives the CSP the exclusive authority to conduct Compliance Reviews. Out of this exclusive authority arises the ability to assign Safety Fitness Ratings to motor carriers and the responsibility to levy sanctions in the form of Civil Penalties for violations against persons for operating commercial vehicles inconsistent with these rules.

9.1. Exclusive Authority to Conduct Compliance Reviews.

§-Section 42-4-235 (2) (c), CRS, gives the CSP exclusive authority to conduct Compliance Reviews, as defined in 49 CFR 385.3, and to impose Civil Penalties pursuant to such reviews. Only authorized CSP Enforcement Officials have the authority to conduct Compliance Reviews.

9.2. Application of Intrastate Carrier Safety Ratings.

The CSP will establish a Safety Fitness Rating for each motor carrier upon which it conducts a Compliance Review. Upon completion of a Compliance Review, the CSP will assign a proposed Safety Fitness Rating that will be based on the degree of compliance with the federal motor carrier Safety Fitness Standards for motor carriers outlined in 49 CFR 385.5.

- **9.2.1.** The Safety Fitness Rating will be determined using the factors prescribed in 49 CFR 395.7 as guidance. A motor carrier may determine their degree of compliance with the Safety Fitness Standard by reviewing 49 CFR 385.5.
- **9.2.2.** On the 61st day after the assignment of a proposed Safety Fitness Rating, the motor carrier's Safety Fitness Rating will become the final Safety Fitness Rating.
- **9.2.3.** The final Safety Fitness Rating for an intrastate motor carrier will be available to the public on request by contacting the CSP CRU at:

Colorado State Patrol, Central Records Unit 700 Kipling St. Lakewood, CO., 80215 (303) 239 - 4180 <u>https://csp.colorado.gov/talk-with-us/central-records-unit</u> email: cdps_csprecords@state.co.us

9.3. Administrative Review of Safety Fitness Rating.

If a motor carrier believes the CSP committed an error in assigning its' Safety Fitness Rating, the motor carrier may request an administrative review of the Compliance Review that resulted in the assignment of the disputed Safety Fitness Rating. The request from the motor carrier must comply with the following provisions:

- **9.3.1.** The request must be in writing and addressed to the Chief within 30 days of the assignment of the proposed Safety Fitness Rating.
- **9.3.2.** The request must explain the error the motor carrier believes the CSP committed in issuing the Safety Fitness Rating. The motor carrier must include a list of all factual and procedural issues in dispute and any information or documentation that supports its assignment.
- **9.3.3.** The Chief may request more information and/or require the motor carrier to attend a conference to discuss the rating. If the motor carrier does not provide the information request or attend the conference, the Chief may dismiss the request.
- **9.3.4.** The Chief will serve the decision in writing within 30 days of receiving the request.
- **9.3.5.** The proposed Safety Fitness Rating will remain as a proposed Safety Fitness Rating until the decision of the Chief.
- **9.3.6.** The decision of the Chief will include the assignment of a final Safety Fitness Rating. The decision will constitute a final action by the CSP.
- **9.4.** Motor Carrier Request to Change Safety Fitness Rating for Corrective Action(s). An intrastate motor carrier may request a change to their its' Safety Fitness Rating based on corrective actions completed by the motor carrier. A request to change a Safety Fitness Rating based on corrective action(s) cannot be made by a motor carrier and will not be acted upon by the CSP sooner than 90 days after the assignment of a proposed Safety Fitness Rating. The request must be submitted in writing and addressed to the Chief. The request must include the following information as it is relevant to the motor carrier:
 - **9.4.1.** A description of corrective action(s) taken by the motor carrier since the

assignment of the Safety Fitness Rating.

- **9.4.2.** A description of how the corrective action(s) address(es) each violation-identified in the most recent Compliance Review as an acute and/or critical violation. The motor carrier must also address factor six (crashes) of the Compliance Review when the rating entered for factor six is "unsatisfactory."
- **9.4.3.** An explanation as to why the violation(s) cited as acute and/or critical were permitted to occur.
- **9.4.4.** The corrective action(s) taken by the motor carrier to ensure against these critical and/or acute violations in the future.
- **9.4.5.** If factor six (crashes) is rated unsatisfactory, an accident countermeasure program must be included as part of the corrective action(s) addressed. The program must include, but not be limited to, defensive driving training.
- **9.4.6.** If the corrective action(s) include(s) action(s) to be taken shortly, such as training, reorganization of departments, purchasing of computer programs, etc., a schedule of when the corrective action(s) is to occur must be included.
- **9.4.7.** Any additional documentation or information that relates to motor carrier safety, additional voluntary corrective action(s), and the prevention of crashes and hazardous materials incidents must be included.
- **9.4.8.** A written statement certifying that the motor carrier will operate in compliance with the motor carrier safety and hazardous materials regulations adopted by the CSP under §§-Sections 42-4-235 and 42-20-108, CRS, and all other relevant state and local laws.
- **9.4.9.** The request must be signed by a corporate officer in the case of a corporation, a member or manager in the case of an LLC, by the general partner of a limited partnership, or by all partners or proprietors in the case of a general partnership or proprietorship.
- **9.5.** Motor Carrier Request to Change Safety Fitness Rating Through Compliance Review. A motor carrier may request a change in their Safety Fitness Rating by requesting a subsequent Compliance Review, as follows:
 - **9.5.1.** The request for a subsequent Compliance Review must be made to the Chief in writing.
 - **9.5.2.** The request cannot be made by the motor carrier and will not be acted upon by the CSP sooner than 90 days after the assignment of a proposed Safety Fitness Rating.

9.5.3. As part of the subsequent Compliance Review, a Compliance Review Investigator will review the corrective action(s) taken by the motor carrier since the last Compliance Review.

9.6. Request for an Administrative Review/Compliance Review Does Not Preempt Requests for Other Administrative/Compliance Reviews.

Requesting a review of a Safety Fitness Rating under Part 9.3 of these rules will not prevent a motor carrier from requesting a review of the same Safety Fitness Rating under Parts 9.4 or 9.5 of these rules. Conversely, a request to review initially under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Parts 9.3 or 9.5, nor will an initial request to review under Part 9.5 prohibit subsequent requests to review under Parts 9.3 or 9.4.

9.7. Final Safety Fitness Rating Assignment.

Absent any request from a motor carrier to administratively review a Compliance Review resulting in the assignment of a Safety Fitness Rating or any other request to change a Safety Fitness Rating from a motor carrier, a Safety Fitness Rating becomes final on the 91st day following its assignment.

MCS 10. Compliance Reviews and Civil Penalties.

Under §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (c), CRS, the CSP has the exclusive enforcement authority to conduct Compliance Reviews as defined in 49 CFR 385.3 and to impose sanctions on motor carriers in the form of Civil Penalties for violations discovered as a result thereof. §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS, provides that any person who violates the rules adopted by the Chief under § Section 42-4-235 (4) (a), CRS, is subject to the Civil Penalties authorized by 49 CFR 386, Subpart G. §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS, authorizes the assessment of Civil Penalties against intrastate motor carriers determined to be operating in violation of these rules.

10.1. Determination of Civil Penalty Assessment.

The amount of a Civil Penalty Assessment against an intrastate motor carrier is influenced by the Civil Penalties authorized by 49 CFR 386 Subpart G, as it is codified into §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS. The following criteria are factors included in the determination of any intrastate Civil Penalty Assessment:

10.1.1. Scope of Review May Not Exceed 3 Years.

Consistent with §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (b) (II), CRS, an authorized CSP Enforcement Official will not consider more than three years of a motor carrier's safety compliance history when determining a Civil Penalty Assessment.

10.1.2. Applicability of 49 CFR 386 Subpart G to Intrastate Motor Carriers.

As codified into law through §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (b) (I), CRS, 49 CFR 386 Subpart G applies to the determination of Civil Penalties assessed against intrastate motor carriers thus that:

10.1.2.1. The determination of an intrastate motor carrier Civil Penalty may

include consideration of the nature and gravity of the violation(s) identified, the degree of culpability, and such other matters as justice and public safety may require.

- 10.1.2.2. The Civil Penalty Fine Schedules detailed within Appendices A and B to Subpart G of 49 CFR 386 are codified as a result of §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS. These fine schedules provide guidance and support for the determination determining and calculating-calculation of Civil Penalty Assessments. The Civil Penalty Fine Schedules of Appendices A and B to Subpart G of 49 CFR 386 are incorporated into these rules as is consistent with §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS.
- **10.1.2.3.** Provisions of 49 CFR 386 Subpart G relating the amount of a Civil Penalty Assessment to the ability of a motor carrier to pay the assessment are explicitly excluded. and They are not considered when determining or assessing a Civil Penalty against an intrastate motor carrier.
- 10.1.2.4. The intrastate operation of implements of husbandry is exempted from and-are is not subject to the Civil Penalties that may be assessed under §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS. §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS, does not repeal, preempt, or negate any existing regulatory agricultural exemption that is extended to any vehicle operated intrastate consistent with §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (b) (III), CRS.

10.2. Notice of Civil Penalty Assessment (NOC).

A Compliance Review may or may not result in the assessment of a Civil Penalty for violations discovered during a Compliance Review. If a Civil Penalty is assessed upon the completion of a Compliance Review, written notification of a Civil Penalty assessment will be served on a motor carrier in the form of a NOC.

10.3. Motor Carrier Response to Civil Penalty NOC Required.

A motor carrier must respond to the MCSS within 30 days of service of the NOC on the carrier by either:

- 10.3.1. Paying the full amount of the Civil Penalty as instructed in the NOC; or
- **10.3.2.** Submitting a written request for a payment plan to the Commander of the MCSS; or
- **10.3.3.** By submitting Submitting a written response requesting an administrative review of the Civil Penalty Assessment.
- **10.4.** Motor Carrier Requests for Administrative Review of Civil Penalty Assessments. If a motor carrier believes the CSP committed an error in the determination determining

or **assessing** assessment of a Civil Penalty, a motor carrier may request an administrative review. The following provisions apply to the administrative review process:

- **10.4.1.** A request for an administrative review of a Civil Penalty Assessment must be in writing and addressed to the Chief within 30 days of the service of the NOC.
- **10.4.2.** A request must explain the error the motor carrier believes the CSP committed in determining or assessing the Civil Penalty. The written request must include a list of issues in dispute and any supporting information or documentation.
- 10.4.3. The Chief or his or her designee may request additional information and/or request the motor carrier to attend an administrative review conference to discuss the penalty. A motor carrier must respond within 30 days of any request for additional information and will receive at least 30 Days' notice of any scheduled administrative review conference. Notice will be in person, by certified mail, or upon the agreement of the parties' agreement, by email.
- **10.4.4.** The Chief or his or her designee will serve the motor carrier with a written decision within 30 days after the Chief or his or her designee has determined the administrative record is complete. An administrative record will not be determined complete before the end of any request or review conference and response period extended by the CSP to the motor carrier through 10.4.3.
 - **10.4.4.1.** The failure of a carrier to provide additional information as requested under 10.4.3 for purposes of an administrative review will be construed to mean the motor carrier has submitted their complete response.
- **10.4.5.** Within 30 days after service of the written decision of the Chief or his or her designee, a motor carrier may appeal a Civil Penalty Assessment. Appeals must be in writing and addressed to the Chief. Additionally, appeals of civil penalties following an administrative review must:
 - **10.4.5.1.** Be mailed to the Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety Section.
 - **10.4.5.2.** Include a copy of the letter outlining the decision reached by the administrative review completed by the Chief or his or her designee.
 - **10.4.5.32.** A statement specifically outlining the error the motor carrier believes the Colorado State Patrol made in its sanctioning of the motor carrier, either in **determining** the determination of the violations or **assessing** the assessment of the Civil Penalty.
 - **10.4.5.43.** A list of any issues stipulated to, resolved, or upon which

agreement was reached during the administrative review process.

- **10.4.5.54.** A list of any issues upon which agreement was not reached and remained in dispute or that the motor carrier finds to be in error despite the administrative review process.
- **10.4.5.65.** Whether the motor carrier is appealing the civil penalty in whole or in part and any legal documentation or authority available supporting or substantiating the motor carrier's position; and
- **10.4.5.76.** Whether the motor carrier requests that the hearing be presided over by an Administrative Law Judge from the Office of Administrative Courts instead of the Chief of the CSP or his or her designee.
- **10.4.6.** Absent a specific request otherwise, the Chief of the CSP or his or her designee may preside over a hearing appealing a Civil Penalty after an administrative review. The Chief or his or her designee may withdraw and request an Administrative Law Judge from the Office of the Administrative Courts to be assigned and continue the hearing unless the withdrawal of the Chief or his or her designee would make it impossible for the CSP to render a decision.
- 10.4.7. The Chief or the Administrative Law Judge will serve the parties with a written decision within 30 days after the Chief or the Administrative Law Judge has determined that the administrative hearing record is complete. Upon agreement of the parties, Notice the notice will be in writing by certified mail or by email, and will also be made in person, or by certified mail, or by email upon agreement of the parties. This written decision will constitute a final agency action.
- **10.4.8.** The motor carrier has 35 days from the date of a final agency decision to file an action in an appropriate district court under §-Section 24-4-106 (4), CRS.

10.5. Motor Carrier Failure to Respond or Cooperate.

A motor carrier who fails to cooperate with the completion of a Compliance Review or who fails to pay in full a Civil Penalty assessed consistent with these rules and §-Section 42-4-235 (2), CRS, is subject to additional statutory action.

- **10.5.1.** Under <u>§</u>-Section 42-4-235 (2) (d) (I), CRS, the MCSS will forward to the CDOR the information of any motor carrier who does not cooperate with a request for a Compliance Review or who fails to pay a Civil Penalty Assessment in full 30 days subsequent notice of failure of a specified motor carrier to cooperate or pay.
- **10.5.2.** The CDOR will take action against a motor carrier as authorized and required under §-Section 42-3-120, CRS.

MCS 11. Information on These Rules.

All contact with the CSP concerning these rules or their applicability should be addressed to:

Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety Section 15075 S. Golden Rd. Golden, CO., 80401-3990 (303)-273-1875 (Office) (303)-273-1939 (Fax) MCSAP@state.co.us

MCS 12. Information Maintenance and Reference of Publications, Standards, Guidelines and Rules.

All publications, standards, guidelines, and rules adopted and incorporated by reference in these rules are on file and available for public inspection. These rules are available upon request from the MCSS at 15075 S. Golden Rd., Golden, CO., 80401-3990, during regular business hours and are also available online through the CDPS Rulemaking Information Website, <u>https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/get-involved/rules-and-regulations</u>.

12.1. Available for Public Inspection and Referenced Consistent with Statute.

All publications, standards, guidelines, and rules adopted and incorporated by reference by these rules are available for examination at any state publications depository as required by §-Section 24-4-103 (12.5), CRS. The following publications, standards, guidelines, and rules are adopted as each-are is amended by and within these rules and as is consistent with §-Section 24-4-103 (12.5), CRS. References here follow:

- **12.1.1.** Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance (2024-2025), North American Standard Outof-Service Criteria (OOSC). April 1, 2024-2025. Greenbelt, MD: Author.
- 12.1.2. Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 40, 380, 382, 383, 385, 387, 390, 391-397, 399, and Appendix A (October 1, 2023-2024). This information is also available online through the FMCSA website, https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/regulations.
- 12.1.3. Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 386, Subpart G, and Appendices A and B thereto as codified by §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS. Appendices A and B to Subpart G of 49 CFR 386 may be found online through the FMCSA website, <u>https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/regulations</u>.

12.2. Maintenance of Copies.

The CSP will maintain complete texts of each of the publications, standards, and guidelines referenced herein and these rules.

12.3. Availability of Copies.

Interested parties may access information about referenced documents online free of

charge-online. Interested parties may also inspect the referenced materials and/or obtain copies of any referenced publications, standards, or guidelines for a reasonable fee by contacting the CSP CRU. Copies of referenced publications, standards, and guidelines may also be available from the organizations or agencies of their origin.

- **12.3.1.** Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance (CVSA), 6303 Ivy Lane, Suite 310, Greenbelt, Maryland, 20770-6319. Phone: (301)-830-6143. Email: <u>cvsahq@cvsa.org</u>.
- **12.3.2.** Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA), 1200 New Jersey Ave., SE, Room W-65-206, Washington, DC, 20590. Phone: 1 (800)-832-5660. Website: <u>www.fmcsa.dot.gov</u>.

MCS 13. Severability.

If any provision of these rules or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is determined to be unlawful or invalid, the remaining provisions of these rules will not be affected, absent a specific reference.

MCS 14. Effective Date.

The effective date of these rules is April 1, 2024-2025.

Summary of Proposed Changes Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles

Purpose:

This document is developed as a companion to assist in the reading and understanding changes proposed to 8 CCR 1507-1, the Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles. Changes proposed in the redlined rules filed with the Colorado Secretary of State and the Colorado Department of Regulatory Agencies are discussed in the order they appear in the redlined document. Changes are identified by section with a description of the change proposed. Included with each change is an explanation for the change.

Accessibility Editing Note:

The redlined rules include formatting updates and minor edits not affecting the content or interpretation of 8 CCR 1507-1 necessary to comply with the document accessibility standards required by Section 24-34-802, CRS. Changes to these rules to comply with the accessibility standards include changing capitalized text to mixed-case or lower-case text, removing underlined text, increasing font size, exchanging symbols for words throughout the document, enabling hyperlinked text associated with website addresses, and adjustments to the physical paragraph structure of the document to more effectively support bookmarking for electronic reading software.

The Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety Section is committed to supporting effective communication and access to these rules by all members of the public. If you experience difficulty with or are unable to use this document, please go to <u>https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/accessibility-interpretation-and-translation-support</u> or contact the Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety Section at (303)-273-1875 for assistance.

Page 1: Table of Contents:

The Table of Contents is a new addition and appears in red text. The Table of Contents outlines these rules by section and supports efficient document navigation. Although not required, including a Table of Contents in longer documents is a best practice supported by the state accessibility rules and Section 24-34-802, CRS. The Table of Contents is beneficial to all readers viewing the rules electronically but is especially helpful for those members of the public viewing the document using e-reading programs.

Page 3: MCS 2- grammar correction:

The grammar is corrected in MCS 2, exchanging the word "who" with "that" and eliminating the unnecessary phrase "they are" so that the resulting sentence reads, "These rules and regulations apply to individuals, corporations, Colorado government or governmental subdivisions or agencies, or other legal entities **that** operate commercial vehicles as they are defined in §-Section 42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS," instead of "These rules and regulations apply to

individuals, corporations, Colorado government or governmental subdivisions or agencies, or other legal entities who operate commercial vehicles as they are defined in <u>§-Section</u> 42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS."

Page 3: MCS 3- removal of unnecessary phrase:

The word "found" is removed from the second sentence of MCS 3 because it is unnecessary and does not add value to the communication. As updated, the sentence reads, "Definitions relevant to these rules are in Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations," instead of "Definitions relevant to these rules are found in Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations."

Page 4, Subpart MCS 3.1, punctuation correction:

Subpart MCS 3.1, the definition of Action, is updated to correct for a missing comma after the word "relief" and before the words "or the equivalent thereof." As updated, Subpart MCS 3.1 reads, "**Action:** Consistent with **Section** 24-4-102 (1), CRS, and as used within these rules, an action includes the whole or any part of any agency rule, order, interlocutory order, license, sanction, relief, or the equivalent or the denial thereof, or failure to act," instead of "**Action:** Consistent with **Section** 24-4-102 (1), CRS, and as used within these rules, an action includes the whole or any part of the denial thereof, or failure to act," instead of "**Action:** Consistent with **Section** 24-4-102 (1), CRS, and as used within these rules, an action includes the whole or any part of any agency rule, order, interlocutory order, license, sanction, relief or the equivalent or the denial thereof.

Page 4, Subpart MCS 3.3, new definition- Authorized Enforcement Official:

Authorized Enforcement Official is a new definition proposed to be included in this version of the rules and appears in red text. Alphabetically, this new definition fits in after "Aggrieved," which appears in the rules as Subpart MCS 3.2 and before CDL, which was formerly assigned to Subpart MCS 3.3 and is pushed forward to Subpart MCS 3.4 as a result of the insertion of this new definition. As proposed, this definition reads, "Authorized Enforcement Official: Enforcement Officials, as defined within these rules, who are also certified to complete commercial vehicle inspections under Section 42-4-235 (4) (a), CRS, are authorized to perform commercial vehicle inspections consistent with their certification level. Level I CVSA-certified Colorado State Patrol Troopers assigned to the Motor Carrier Safety Section are the only Colorado law enforcement officials authorized to perform Compliance Reviews on and to assign Safety Ratings for commercial motor carrier operators or drivers." This definition is proposed to clarify and identify which law enforcement officials are authorized to complete commercial vehicle inspections and/or compliance reviews and the criteria that officers must satisfy.

Pages 4 – 7, Subparts MCS 3.3 through MCS 3.39- renumbering of subparts as a result of the insertion of "Authorized Enforcement Official":

To preserve the alphabetical nature of the definitions in the rules, the new definition of "Authorized Enforcement Official" must be inserted as existing subpart MCS 3.3, and "CDL" must be renumbered as subpart MCS 3.4. All other definitions throughout MCS 3 must be renumbered one subpart forward, adding new subpart 3.39 for "USDOT Number," previously numbered as subpart 3.38. All of the renumbered subparts are for definitions previously existing in these rules.

Page 5, Subpart MCS 3.14, deletion of the unnecessary phrase:

The phrase "in place" is deleted as unnecessary and potentially confusing. As revised, the definition reads, "Conditional Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standards that could result in the occurrences listed in 49 CFR 385.5," instead of "Conditional Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls to ensure with the safety fitness standards that could result in the occurrences listed in 49 CFR 385.5," instead of "Conditional Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standards that could result in the occurrences listed in 49 CFR 385.5."

Page 5, Subpart MCS 3.20, deletion of the unnecessary phrase:

The phrase "it is" is deleted as unnecessary. As revised, the definition reads, "**Enforcement Official: The definition of an Enforcement Official will be as defined by Sections 16-2.5-101, 16-2.5-114, 16-2.5-115, and 16-2.5-143, and as outlined in Section 42-20-103 (2), CRS**," instead of "Enforcement Official: The definition of an Enforcement Official will be as it is defined by Sections 16-2.5-101, 16-2.5-114, 16-2.5-115, and 16-2.5-143, and as outlined in Section 42-20-103 (2), CRS."

Page 6, Subpart MCS 3.29, deletion of the unnecessary phrase:

The phrase "it is" is deleted as unnecessary. As proposed, the definition reads, "**Motor Carrier: The definition of a motor carrier will be as outlined in Section 42-4-235 (1) (c), CRS**," instead of "Motor Carrier: The definition of a motor carrier will be as it is outlined in Section 42-4-235 (1) (c), CRS."

Pages 6 – 7, Subpart MCS 3.34. addition of comma to the second sentence:

A comma is added to the second sentence after "including civil penalties." As updated, the second sentence reads, "Sanction also applies to the imposition of any form of penalty or fine, including civil penalties, as they are assessed to be consistent with state statutes and these rules," instead of "Sanction also applies to the imposition of any form of penalty or fine, including civil penalties as they are assessed to be consistent with state statutes and these rules."

Page 7, Subpart MCS 3.38, deletion of the unnecessary phrase:

The phrase "in place" is deleted as unnecessary and potentially confusing. As revised, the definition reads, "Unsatisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standard, resulting in occurrences as listed in 49 CFR 385.5" instead of "Unsatisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standard, resulting in occurrences as listed in 49 CFR 385.5."

Page 7, Subpart MCS 3.39, new subpart MCS 3.39 and grammar correction:

Subpart MCS 3.39 is a new subpart for a preexisting definition, "USDOT Number." The definition is corrected by removing the word "an" after "time of" and before "application submission." As corrected, the definition reads, "USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number can be for intrastate or interstate use, depending on the information provided by the motor carrier to the FMCSA at the time of application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier record," instead of "USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number assigned to a motor carrier to the FMCSA at the time of application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier record," instead of "USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number can be for intrastate or interstate use, depending on the information provided by the motor carrier to the FMCSA. The number can be to a motor carrier by the FMCSA at the time of an application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier to the FMCSA at the time of an application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier record."

Page 8, MCS 4, the addition of the word "all" to the sentence:

MCS 4 is edited to insert the word "all" after "will at" and before "times have" into the sentence where it appeared previously in the rules before last year's adoptions. The word "all" was edited out of MCS 4 in error. As corrected, MCS 4 reads, "Authorized Enforcement Officials will at **all** times have the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents consistent with Part MCS 4 of these rules," instead of "Authorized Enforcement Officials will at times have the authority to inspect commercial vehicles commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents consistent with Part MCS 4 of these rules," instead of "Authorized Enforcement Officials will at times have the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents consistent with Part MCS 4 of these rules."

Page 8, Sub-subpart MCS 4.1.1, publication date update:

The CVSA Operations Manual is updated annually each April. The most current version of this manual will be published on April 1, 2025, and will be available at the same time these rules become effective. To ensure that these rules reference the CVSA Operations Manual's correct version, the publication year must be updated from 2024 to 2025. As revised, the end of MCS Sub-subpart 4.1.1. is amended to read "...effective April 1, 2025," instead of "...effective April 1, 2024."

Page 8, Subpart MCS 4.2, publication date update:

The Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations (FMCSRs), which appear as part of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFRs), are updated annually every October. The FMCSRs in effect presently at the time of this rulemaking were published October 1, 2024, and are the rules being referenced within this version of the rules. Consequently, it is necessary to update the year of publication appearing in these rules from 2023 to 2024. The end of the sentence for Subpart MCS 4.2. is updated to read, "...as revised October 1, 2024," instead of "...as revised October 1, 2023."

Page 8, Subpart MCS 4.3, publication date update:

As previously stated, the FMCSRs, which appear as part of the CFRs, are updated annually every October. The FMCSRs in effect presently at the time of this rulemaking were published October 1, 2024, and are the rules being referenced within this version of the rules. Consequently, it is

necessary to update the year of publication appearing in these rules from 2023 to 2024. The end of the sentence for Subpart MCS 4.3 is updated to read, "...revised October 1, **2024**," instead of "revised October 1, **2023**."

Page 8, Subpart MCS 5.1, publication date update:

The CVSA bylaws appear within the CVSA Operations Manual. As stated previously in MCS Subsubpart 4.1.1, the CVSA Operations Manual referenced inclusive of the CVSA bylaws, inspector level, and methods of inspection guidelines, and the OOS criteria referenced by these rules are those as revised and effective April 1, 2025. To ensure the proper bylaws are referenced, the publication year in subpart MCS 5.1 must be updated from 2024 to 2025. The last part of the sentence in subpart MCS 5.1 is updated to read, "...as they are revised and effective April 1, **2025**," instead of "...as they are revised and effective April 1, **2024**."

Page 9, MCS 3, publication date update:

The FMCSRs, which appear as part of the CFRs, are updated annually every October. The FMCSRs in effect presently at the time of this rulemaking were published October 1, 2024, and are the rules being referenced within this version of the rules. Consequently, it is necessary to update the year of publication appearing in these rules from 2023 to 2024. Following the list of sections appearing in the middle of the paragraph, the sentence is updated in part to read, "of the FMCSA as the same were effective October 1, 2024," instead of "of the FMCSA as the same were effective October 1, 2024," instead of "of the FMCSA as the same were effective October 1, 2023."

Page 10, MCS Sub-subpart 6.3.1, added a comma to the sentence:

A comma has been added to MCS Sub-subpart 6.3.1 to improve its readability. As revised, the sentence reads, "49 CFR 385.309 through 385.319 (a), hereafter referred to collectively as the Colorado Intrastate New Entrant Safety Assurance Program, applies to intrastate motor carriers who are beginning intrastate operations and are required to obtain an intrastate USDOT number from the FMCSA," instead of "49 CFR 385.309 through 385.319 (a), hereafter referred to collectively as the Colorado Intrastate New Entrant Safety Assurance Program applies to intrastate USDOT number from the FMCSA," instead of "49 CFR 385.309 through 385.319 (a), hereafter referred to collectively as the Colorado Intrastate New Entrant Safety Assurance Program applies to intrastate motor carriers who are beginning intrastate operations and are required to obtain an intrastate USDOT number from the FMCSA."

Page 10, MCS Sub-subpart 6.3.2., exchanged "at" for an unnecessary phrase:

MCS Sub-subpart 6.3.2. is updated to replace an unnecessary phrase with the word "at" to improve overall message delivery. Revised, the sentence reads, "Intrastate motor carriers can confirm if they need a USDOT number and complete an intrastate application online at <u>https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/registration/do-i-need-usdot-number</u>," instead of "Intrastate motor carriers can confirm if they need a USDOT number a USDOT number and complete an intrastate application online at <u>https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/registration/do-i-need-usdot-number</u>," instead of "Intrastate application only by going to <u>https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/registration/do-i-need-usdot-number</u>."

Page 10, MCS Subpart 6.4, second sentence updated to improve readability:

The second sentence of MCS Subpart 6.4 is updated to improve message delivery and readability. As revised, the sentence reads, "These same provisions do not apply to commercial

vehicles operated by river outfitters regulated by the Colorado Department of Natural Resources, Division of Wildlife, under 2 CCR 405-3," instead of "**Additionally, these** same provisions do not apply to commercial vehicles operated by river outfitters regulated by the Colorado Department of Natural Resources, Division of Wildlife, under 2 CCR 405-3."

Page 11, MCS Sub-subpart 6.6.2, sentence updated to improve readability:

The sentence is updated to improve message delivery and readability. The phrase "through the addition of" is deleted, and "by adding" is suggested. As revised, the sentence reads, "The definition of an "emergency" is amended **by adding** the following: "A governmental agency has determined that a local emergency requires relief from the maximum driving time in 49 CFR 395.3 or 395.5," instead of "The definition of an "emergency" is amended by through the addition of the following: "A governmental agency has determined that a local emergency requires relief from the maximum driving time in 49 CFR 395.3 or 395.5," instead of "The definition of an "emergency" is amended by through the addition of the following: "A governmental agency has determined that a local emergency requires relief from the maximum driving time in 49 CFR 395.3 or 395.5."

Page 11, MCS Sub-subpart 6.7.1, sentence updated to improve readability:

The sentence is updated to improve message delivery and readability and to read in the present rather than past tense. As updated, the sentence reads, "**The FMCSA processes** USDOT numbers for intrastate motor carriers," instead of "USDOT numbers for intrastate motor carriers," are processed by the FMCSA."

Page 12, MCS Subpart 6.10, grammar correction:

The grammar in MCS Subpart 6.10 is corrected, and the sentence is updated to read in part "... or local enforcement agencies **with** a signed MOU with the CSP and their authorized personnel" instead of "...or local agencies **who have** a signed MOU with the CSP and their authorized personnel."

Page 12, MCS Sub-subpart 6.12.2, sentence updated to correct punctuation and improve readability:

The sentence is updated to correct punctuation and to improve readability and message delivery. The word "thereof" after the word "subdivision" is removed, and a comma is removed after the word "Colorado" in exchange for the insertion of the word "and" after the word "Colorado" and before the word "not." The status of "political subdivision" in the sentence is also clarified through the insertion of "a" in front of "political subdivision." As revised, the sentence reads, "Vehicles owned and operated by the federal government or state government or **a** political subdivision not domiciled in Colorado **and** not transporting hazardous materials of a type and quantity requiring the vehicle to be marked or placarded under 49 CFR 172.504," instead of "Vehicles owned and operated by the federal government or state government or political subdivision thereof not domiciled in Colorado, not transporting hazardous materials of a type and quantity requiring the vehicle to be marked or placarded under 49 CFR 172.504,"

Page 13, MCS 7, Update of Title Part:

The part title has been updated to read "**Use and Carry of** Traction Devices" instead of "Traction Devices **are Required**."

Page 13, MCS Subpart 7.1, New Subpart 7.1 "Drivers Must Carry Chains":

This version of the rules includes a new subpart and subpart title: MCS 7.1. The title "**Drivers Must Carry Chains**" appears in red text.

Page 13, MCS Subpart 7.1 (inclusive of sub-subparts 7.1.1 through 7.1.7), legislative and statutory update revising existing rules:

During the 2024 Legislative Session, the Colorado Legislature passed SB 24-100, which amended 42-4-106, CRS, and Governor Polis signed it into law. This legislation updates the commercial vehicle chain law, extending its geographic and physical impact on commercial vehicle operations within Colorado. The rules must be updated to remain consistent with the statutory changes resulting from this legislation. The sentences that appeared as part of MCS 7 are now divided into MCS Sub-subparts 7.1 and 7.2, with the text of each sub-subpart including some of the language that made up the former MCS 7. Much of the text from former MCS 7 appearing in MCS Subpart 7.1 is superseded and marked as strike out for deletion.

As inserted, the new MCS Subpart 7.1 (inclusive of sub-subparts 7.1.1 through 7.1.7) reads, "Drivers must carry chains consistent with Section 42-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS, when operating vehicles in commerce designed to carry 16 or more passengers (including the driver) or having a combined weight of 16,001 lbs. or more (except for mobile cranes) on the following public highways between September 1st and May 31st:

- 7.1.1. I-70 West of milepost 259 in Morrison, Colorado.
- 7.1.2. Colorado Highway 9, from milepost 63 to milepost 97, between Frisco and Fairplay, Colorado.
- 7.1.3. US Route 40 West of milepost 259 in Empire, Colorado.
- 7.1.4. US Route 50 West of milepost 225 in Salida, Colorado.
- 7.1.5. US Route 160 West of milepost 250 in Morrison, Colorado.
- 7.1.6. US Route 550 between mileposts 0 and 130,

Instead of "Drivers operating a commercial vehicle as defined in CDOT Rule 2 CCR 601-14, except for mobile cranes, operating on Interstate 70 between mileposts 133 and 259 between September 1st and May 31st must carry tire chains consistent with the requirements detailed within Section 42-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS."

Page 13, New Subpart MCS 7.2 "Use of Chains and Alternative Traction Devices": This version of the rules includes a new subpart and subpart title: MCS 7.2. The title "Use of Chains and Alternative Traction Devices" appears in red text.

Page 13, MCS Subpart 7.2, legislative and statutory update revising existing rules:

Again, in response to statutory changes prompted by SB 24-100, Subpart 7.2 updates the rules to remain consistent with the state statute concerning the use of chains and alternative traction

devices. Language from MCS 7 is retained as part of the new MCS subpart 7.2 and appears in the standard text; language added to achieve statutory compliance appears in bold red font. As proposed, MCS Subpart 7.2 reads, "The use of chains by drivers of commercial vehicles must occur consistent with the requirements set forth within Section 42+-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS. Drivers of commercial vehicles may use Alternative Traction Devices (ATDs), including tire cables, auto socks, or sanders, as each is defined and as their use is consistent with 2 CCR 601-14." Previously, the phrase "may also be used" appeared in the text when discussing the use of ATDs, but this has been deleted for this version.

Pages 13 -14, MCS Subpart 8.1, grammar correction:

The grammar in the second half of the sentence in MCS Subpart 8.1. is corrected to exchange the word "which" appearing after the word "standards" with the word "that." As revised, the second part of the sentence reads in part, "...combined with the satisfaction of any applicable performance standards **that** support a decision that a medical condition has no adverse impact on safety," instead of "...combined with the satisfaction of any applicable performance standards **which** support a decision that a medical condition has no adverse impact."

Page 15, MCS Subpart 8.6, sentence updated to improve readability:

The sentence is updated to improve message delivery and readability. As revised, the sentence reads, "A medical waiver may be revoked **if** the CSP determines that **issuing** a waiver to a driver does not promote safety, protect human life, or preserve the highways of this state," instead of "A medical waiver may be revoked **where** the CSP determines that **issue of** a waiver to a driver does not promote safety, protect human life, or preserve the highways of this state."

Page 15, MCS Sub-subpart 8.6.1, sentence updated to improve readability:

The sentence is updated to improve message delivery and readability and to revise it to read in the present tense. As updated, the sentence reads, "**The** CSP **may revoke a medical waiver** when a waiver holder fails to comply with the applicable terms and conditions of the CSP Medical Waiver Program," instead of "**A medical waiver may be revoked by the** CSP when a waiver holder fails to comply with the applicable terms and conditions of the CSP Medical Waiver Program," instead of "**A medical waiver may be revoked by the** CSP when a waiver holder fails to comply with the applicable terms and conditions of the CSP Medical Waiver Program."

Page 15, MCS Subpart 8.7, sentence updated to improve readability and correct punctuation:

The second sentence of MCS Subpart 8.7 is updated to improve readability and correct punctuation errors. As updated, the sentence reads, "Notice of this hearing will be in writing and will **give** the waiver applicant at least 30 days²-notice of the time, date, place, and nature of the hearing," instead of "Notice of this hearing will be in writing and will **provide** the waiver applicant at least 30 days of the time, date, place, and nature of the hearing."

Page 15, MCS Subpart 8.8, sentence updated to improve readability:

The first two sentences of MCS Subpart 8.8 are updated to improve their readability and message delivery by removing unnecessary phrases. As proposed, the sentences are revised to read, "Within 30 days of the completion of a hearing or the failure of the waiver holder to file a

written answer in response **to it**, the Chief or his or her designee will issue a decision either affirming the revocation or reinstating the medical waiver. Within 30 days of receiving written notice from the MCSS revoking a medical waiver, the aggrieved holder may submit an exception or appeal" instead of "Within 30 days of the completion of a hearing or the failure of the waiver holder to file a written answer in response **thereto**, the Chief or his or her designee will issue a decision either affirming the revocation or reinstating the medical waiver. Within 30 days of receiving written notice from the MCSS revoking a medical waiver, the aggrieved holder **of a medical waiver** may submit an exception or appeal.

Page 16, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 8.8.4.1, grammar correction:

The grammar in MCS Sub-subpart 8.8.4.1 is corrected so that the sentence reads, "If the Chief finds by **a** preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is sufficient, revocation of the medical waiver will be sustained," instead of "if the Chief finds by preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is sufficient, revocation of the medical waiver will be sustained."

Page 16, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 8.8.4.2, grammar correction:

The grammar in MCS Sub-subpart 8.8.4.2 is corrected so that the sentence reads, "If the Chief finds by **a** preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is sufficient, revocation of the medical waiver will be sustained," instead of "if the Chief finds by preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is sufficient, revocation of the medical waiver will be sustained."

Page 17, MCS Subpart 9.4, grammar correction:

The grammar is corrected to update the pronoun usage in the first sentence of MCS Subpart 9.4. The sentence is revised to read, "An intrastate motor carrier may request a change to **its**' Safety Fitness Rating based on corrective actions completed by the motor carrier," instead of "An intrastate motor carrier may request a change to **their** Safety Fitness Rating based on corrective actions completed by the motor carrier."

Page 19, MCS Subpart 9.6, punctuation correction:

The punctuation in the second sentence is updated by adding a comma after "under Parts 9.3 or 9.5" and before "nor will an initial request." As revised, the second sentence reads, "Conversely, a request to review initially under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Parts 9.3 or 9.5, nor will an initial request to review under Part 9.5 prohibit subsequent requests to review under Parts 9.3 or 9.4," instead of "Conversely, a request to review initially under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests to review under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Parts 9.3 or 9.5 nor will an initial request to review under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Parts 9.3 or 9.5 nor will an initial request to review under Parts 9.3 or 9.4," instead of "Conversely, a request to review initially under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Parts 9.3 or 9.5 nor will an initial request to review under Part 9.5 prohibit subsequent requests to review under Parts 9.3 or 9.4."

Page 20, MCS Sub-subpart 10.1.2.2, sentence updated to correct readability:

The second sentence of MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.2 is updated to correct readability and deliver the sentence's message in the active tense. As updated, the sentence reads, "These fine

schedules provide guidance and support for **determining** and **calculating** Civil Penalty Assessments, " instead of "These fine schedules provide guidance and support for **the determination** and **calculation of** Civil Penalty Assessments."

Page 20, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.3, updated to improve readability:

MCS Sub-subpart 10.1.2.3 is updated from a single sentence into two sentences, and the word "and" is deleted to separate the sentences. As revised, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.3 reads, "Provisions of 49 CFR 386 Subpart G relating the amount of a Civil Penalty Assessment to the ability of a motor carrier to pay the assessment are explicitly excluded. They are not considered when determining or assessing a Civil Penalty against an intrastate motor carrier," instead of "Provisions of 49 CFR 386 Subpart G relating the amount of a Civil Penalty Assessment to the ability of a motor carrier to pay the assessment are explicitly excluded and they are not considered when determining or assessing a Civil Penalty against to the ability of a motor carrier to pay the assessment to the ability of a motor carrier to pay the assessment are explicitly excluded and they are not considered when determining or assessing a Civil Penalty against an intrastate motor carrier."

Page 20, MCS Sub-subpart 10.1.2.4, grammar correction:

The first sentence of MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.4 is updated to correct the grammar, exchanging "are" for "is." As revised, the sentence reads, "The intrastate operation of implements of husbandry is exempted from and **is** not subject to the Civil Penalties that may be assessed under Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS," instead of "The intrastate operation of implements of husbandry **are** exempted from and is not subject to the Civil Penalties that may be assessed under Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS."

Page 20, MCS Sub-subpart 10.3.3, updated to improve readability:

MCS Sub-subpart 10.3.3 is updated to improve its readability. The phrase "By submitting" is deleted from the beginning of the sentence, and "Submitting" begins the sentence. Updated, MCS Sub-subpart 10.3.3 reads, "**Submitting** a written response requesting an administrative review of a Civil Penalty Assessment," instead of "**By submitting** a written response requesting an administrative review of the Civil Penalty Assessment."

Pages 20 - 21, MCS Subpart 10.4, updated to improve readability:

The first sentence of MCS Subpart 10.4 is updated to improve its readability and deliver the message in an active tense. The first sentence is revised to read, "If a motor carrier believes the CSP committed an error **determining** or **assessing** a Civil Penalty, a motor carrier may request an administrative review," instead of "If a motor carrier believes the CSP committed an error in **the determination** or **assessment of** a Civil Penalty, a motor carrier may request an administrative review."

Page 21, MCS Sub-subpart 10.4.3, updated to improve readability:

The last sentence of MCS Sub-subpart 10.4.3 is updated to improve readability. As revised, the sentence reads, "Notice will be in person, by certified mail, or upon the parties' **agreement**, by email," instead of "Notice will be in person, by certified mail, or upon the **agreement of the** parties, by email."

Page 21 – 22, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.4.5.2 (as duplicated) through 10.4.5.7, updated to correct numbering sequence:

The numbering sequence is in error. MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.4.5.2 is duplicated, appearing twice. The duplicate 10.4.5.2 is renumbered by one to 10.4.5.3, 10.4.5.3 is renumbered to 10.4.5.4, 10.4.5.5 is renumbered to 10.4.5.6, and 10.4.5.6 is renumbered to new sub-sub-subpart 10.4.5.7.

Page 21, MCS Sub-sub-subpart (duplicate) 10.4.5.2 (as renumbered to 10.4.5.3, updated to improve readability:

MCS Sub-subpart 10.4.5.2, duplicated and renumbered as 10.4.5.3, has been updated to improve readability and deliver the message in an active tense. As updated, the sentence reads in part, "...either in **determining** the violations or **assessing** the Civil Penalty," instead of "either in **the determination of** the violations or **the assessment of** the Civil Penalty."

Page 22, MCS Sub-subpart 10.4.7, updated to improve readability:

The second sentence of MCS Sub-subpart 10.4.7 has been updated to improve readability and message delivery. Revised, it reads, "**Upon agreement of the parties, the** notice will be in writing **by certified mail or by email,** and **will also** be made in person," instead of "Notice will be in writing, and be made in person, or by certified mail, or by email upon agreement of the parties."

Page 23, MCS Subpart 12.1, grammar correction:

The grammar in the second sentence of MCS 12.1 is corrected, exchanging the word "are" for the word "is." As corrected, the second sentence reads, "The following publications, standards, guidelines, and rules are adopted as each is amended by and within these rules and as **is** consistent with Section 24-4-103 (12.5), CRS," instead of "The following publications, standards, guidelines, and rules are adopted as each is amended by and within these rules and as **are** consistent with Section 24-4-103 (12.5), CRS."

Page 23, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 12.1.1, date of publication update:

The year and date of publication for the CVSA North American Standard Out-of-Service Criteria (OOSC) must be updated to be consistent with the version referenced within these redlined rules. The version referenced within these rules is the version that will be effective April 1, 2025. The year 2024 in MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.1 must be updated to 2025. As updated, MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.1 reads, "Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance (2025), North American Standard Out-of-Service Criteria (OOSC). April 1, 2025. Greenbelt, MD: Author," instead of "Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance (2024), North American Standard Out-of-Service Criteria (OOSC). April 1, 2025. April 1, 2024. Greenbelt, MD: Author."

Page 23, MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.2, date of publication update:

The year and date of publication for the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations (FMCSRs) referenced within these redlined rules must be updated to reference the correct version. The version referenced throughout these redlined rules has a publication date of October 1, 2024.

The year in MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.2 must be updated from 2023 to 2024. As updated, the first sentence of MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.2 reads, "Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 40, 380, 382, 383, 385, 387, 390, 391-397, 399, and Appendix A (October 1, **2024**)," instead of "Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 40, 380, 382, 383, 385, 387, 390, 391-397, 399, and Appendix A (October 1, **2023**)."

Page 23, MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.3, updated to improve readability:

The first sentence of MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.3 is updated to improve readability by deleting the word "thereto." As revised, the sentence reads, "Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 386, Subpart G, and Appendices A and B as codified by Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS," instead of "Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 386, Subpart G, and Appendices A and B **thereto** as codified by Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS."

Pages 23 - 24, MCS Subpart 12.3, updated to improve readability:

The first sentence of MCS Subpart 12.3 is updated to improve readability. As updated, the sentence reads, "Interested parties may access information about referenced documents **online** free of charge," instead of "Interested parties may access information about referenced documents free of charge **online**."

Page 24, MCS 14, Effective Date updated.

These rules are updated annually, and the effective date of these rules must be updated to reflect that they will become effective in 2025. The year of 2024 must be changed to 2025. The sentence is revised to read, "The effective date of these rules is April 1, **2025**," instead of "The effective date of these rules is April 1, **2024**."

The Colorado State Patrol is committed to supporting equitable access to its rules and to rulemaking activities by all members of the public. This document is a printed copy of the CDPS Rulemaking Information website as it appeared on January 14, 2025. If you experience difficulty with or are unable to use this document, please go to https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/accessibility-interpretation-and-translationsupport or contact CSP Rulemaking Coordinator Angelina Page at 303-815-9027 or CDPS Rules Administrator Christine Moreno at 719-343-0995 to request accommodations or assistance.

Select Language



COLORADO

Home (/) CDPS Rules and Regulations

CDPS Rules and Regulations

Boards, Commissions & Councils (/boards-commissions-councils)

CDPS Rules & Regulations (/cdps-rules-and-regulations)

Colorado 1033 LESO and 1122 Programs (/colorado-1033-leso-and-1122-programs)

Transparency Online Project (TOPS) (https://data.colorado.gov/stories/s/fjyf-bdat)

Rulemaking at CDPS

The Colorado Department of Public Safety is committed to governmental transparency in our stakeholder engagement and to comply with the provisions of the State Administrative Procedure Act, Section 24-4-101, et seq., of the Colorado Revised Statutes for rulemaking and regulatory procedures.

Stakeholder Engagement and Accessibility

The process of adopting, reviewing, and changing rules and regulations is a public one. We encourage your participation in our rulemaking process. Please see the information below for upcoming rulemaking hearings and how to submit comments. You are always welcome to attend any hearings associated with the rulemaking process, and your comments and questions will be taken into consideration during the rulemaking process.

We are committed to providing equitable access to our services, including the rulemaking process. Our ongoing accessibility efforts strive to align with the current Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) version, level AA criteria and to comply with the accommodation requests under the Americans with Disabilities Act.

For more information, any questions you have, including accommodation requests or assistance in accessing our rulemaking documents and participating in our rulemaking hearings, please contact the Department Rules Administrator Christine Moreno via email <u>christine.moreno@state.co.us</u> (mailto:christine.moreno@state.co.us) or by phone 719-343-0995.

All Colorado Department of Public Safety rules currently in effect are available on the Secretary of State's Website

Proposed Rulemaking

Division of Fire Prevention and Control

The Division of Fire Prevention and Control is in the planning process to adopt proposed new rules for Wildfire Resiliency Codes as established by the Wildfire Resiliency Board under the oversight of the Division. Additionally, the Division is in the planning process to adopt proposed new rules for the enforcement of the Wildfire Resiliency Codes by the Division's Fire and Life Safety Section. These rules are developed and promulgated under the statutory authority of \$24-33.5-1236(4)

The Colorado Wildfire Resiliency Code Board will hold sessions to solicit stakeholder feedback on the <u>draft statewide wildfire resiliency code</u> (<u>https://drive.google.com/file/d/19Ltcl&vQPhtUgJ02Rt6Fw0k8-9V_MKON/view?usp=sharing</u>). Townhalls will be 90-minute, virtual sessions hosted on zoom.

The public is invited to join.

Those interested in providing comment at a townhall are asked to rsvp via the <u>stakeholder and public feedback form</u> (https://forms.gle/D3FwrsLw4oiLcT2x5). Written comment may also be submitted to the WRCB at <u>cdps_dfpc_wrcb@state.co.us</u> (mailto:cdps_dfpc_wrcb@state.co.us).

January 2025

Friday, 17 Jan. 2025, 10:30am - 12:00n – Local Government Officials and Professionals
 Friday, 24 Jan. 2025, 09:00am - 10:30am – Structure-Related Industries and Professions
 Friday, 31 Jan. 2025, 09:00am - 10:30am – Insurance Industry Representatives and Professionals

February 2025

Friday, 07 Feb. 2025, 09:00am - 10:30am - Fire Service Professionals Friday, 21 Feb. 2025, 09:00am - 10:30am - Community and Advocacy Organizations

Zoom Invitation - Same for all sessions

Zoom Link: <u>https://zoom.us/j/95132897404?pwd=rg9FnFSRHRiDRnnBgByNqgMZzmnJDR.1</u> (https://zoom.us/j/95132897404? pwd=rg9FnFSRHRiDRnnBgByNqgMZzmnJDR.1) Meeting ID: 951 3289 7404 Passcode: P0HzW5

Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management

The Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (DHSEM) is adopting emergency rules to establish registration and fees for Telecommunication Providers planning to remove, discontinue, or replace any telecommunications equipment from a federally banned entity as well as to establish notification procedures to relevant State Agencies or political subdivision of the State by the Telecommunication Provider. The emergency rules will be effective and available for review here as soon as possible. Providers and interested parties may reference the DHSEM grant program webpage (https://dhsem.colorado.gov/grants-management/grant-programs/colorado-telecommunications-security-registration-program) for procedural information.

SB 24-151 enacted Section 24-33.5-1624, C.R.S. to secure Colorado's telecommunications network and to protect national security by identifying and removing communications hardware and software produced by countries of concern or by other sanctioned entities from Colorado's telecommunications network and by monitoring the progress of the removal of such equipment.

Stakeholders and interested parties are invited to comment on the adopted emergency rules and on the proposed permanent rules forthcoming through the permanent rulemaking process pursuant to the State Administrative Procedure Act (APA), Section 24-4-101, et seq., Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.). Comments made by submitted via email to CDPS Rules Administrator, Chris Moreno, at <u>christine.moreno@state.co.us</u> (mailto:christine.moreno@state.co.us) or by phone at 719-343-0995.

Notice of the permanent rulemaking hearing, including a redline version of the proposed rules and time and date, will be posted on this webpage once the hearing is scheduled. The hearing will be held virtually on the Google Meet platform.

CDPS Regulatory Report and Agenda

CDPS 2024 Regulatory Report

The CDPS Regulatory Report of all rulemaking activities in the Department for calendar year 2024 can be found <u>here in PDF format</u> (<u>https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/2024%20CDPS%20Regulatory%20Report.pdf</u>) or <u>here in docx format</u> (<u>https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/2024%20CDPS%20Regulatory%20Report.docx</u>). This report includes cyclical rule reviews, new rules adopted, repealed rules, and amended rules adopted and includes a brief summary of the actions taken and the statutory authority, if applicable.

CDSP 2025 Regulatory Agenda

The CDPS Regulatory Agenda of all planned and anticipated rulemaking activities in the Department for calendar year 2025 can be found <u>here in PDF format</u> (<u>https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/2025%20CDPS%20Regulatory%20Agenda.pdf</u>) or <u>here in docx format</u> (<u>https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/2025%20CDPS%20Regulatory%20Agenda.docx</u>). This agenda includes cyclical rule reviews, planned rule amendments, and new rules authorized by statute.

Rulemaking Updates and Public Hearings

Proposed and completed rulemaking for the calendar year are listed below. Stakeholder notices include drafts of the the proposed new or amended rules along with invitations and information for stakeholder and public comments. Upcoming rulemaking hearing announcements include the draft of the proposed rules, information on the meeting time, date and virtual platform/link (hearings are held virtually unless otherwise noted), and invitation to submit comments before the hearing. Completed rulemaking hearings include the adopted rules, hearing exhibits, and hearing information. Rulemaking hearings are held to review and to update rules and regulations to remain consist with Colorado statutes, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) and/or national criteria.

CDPS is committed to the full inclusion of all individuals. As part of this commitment, CDPS will ensure reasonable accommodations are provided to enable all people to engage fully in our trainings, meetings and events. To request accommodations, please contact Rules Administrator, Christine Moreno at <u>christine.moreno@state.co.us</u> (mailto:christine.moreno@state.co.us) or by phone 719-343-0995, at least two (2) weeks prior to the hearing/meeting. Please contact Rules Administrator, Christine Moreno at <u>christine.moreno@state.co.us</u> (mailto:christine.moreno@state.co.us) or by phone 719-343-0995, if you need any of the materials translated into a language other than English or provided in an alternative format for accessibility.

Upcoming Public Hearings

Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety, Hazardous Materials, and Port of Entry Rules - January 17, 2025 10:00 AM (MST)

The Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety, Hazardous Materials, and Port of Entry Sections will hold a hybrid public rulemaking on Friday, January 17, 2025, at 10 am at the Colorado State Patrol Academy in Building 100, located at 15165 S. Golden Rd., Golden, CO., 80401. The public is invited to attend in person or virtually using Google Meet.

Date: Friday, January 17, 2025

Time: 10:00 AM MST

Location: Colorado State Patrol Academy, Building 100, 15165 S. Golden Rd., Golden, CO., 80401

Virtual Attendance via Google Meet Video call link: https://meet.google.com/zzp-rksu-wgo (https://meet.google.com/zzp-rksu-wgo)

Or dial: (US) +1 252-825-7041 PIN: 392 848 705#

More phone numbers: https://tel.meet/zzp-rksu-wgo?pin=5780870178372 (https://tel.meet/zzp-rksu-wgo?pin=5780870178372)

- 8 CCR 1507-1 Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles
- 8 CCR 1507-25 Permitting, Routing and Transportation of Hazardous and Nuclear Materials and the Intrastate Transportation of Agricultural Products in the State of Colorado
- 8 CCR 1507-28 Port of Entry Rules for Commercial Motor Carrier Size, Weight and Clearance

The proposed amendments of these rules include updated formatting to comply with the state accessibility standards required under Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.) Section 24-34-802.

A Notice of Public Rulemaking for each of these rules was filed with the Colorado Secretary of State and the Colorado Department of Regulatory Agencies on Thursday, December 12, 2024. The Colorado State Patrol filed both the redlined proposed rule changes and the companion document with these agencies consistent with Sections 24-4-103 (2.5) and (3) (a), C.R.S. of the State Administrative Procedure Act. The proposed rules drafts may be revised before the public rulemaking hearing on January 17, 2025, and any further proposed amendments to these proposed rules drafts between now and January 11, 2025 will be updated in this notice of rulemaking.

To prepare for the hearing, we invite any interested party to review the following statements of Basis, Authority, and Purpose, summaries of proposed rules amendments, and the redlined versions of the proposed rules amendments:

- 8 CCR 1507-1 Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles
 - Redlined draft rules in docx format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/8%20CCR%201507-1 updated%20010725.docx) or in pdf format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/8%20CCR%201507-1 updated%20010725.pdf)

 - Statement of Basis and Purpose in docx format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/Statement%20of%20Basis%20Statutory%20Authority%20and%20PurposeNS_8%20CCR%201507-1.docx) or in pdf format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/8%20CCR%201507-1_DORA%20merge_updated%20010325.pdf)
- 8 CCR 1507-25 Permitting, Routing and Transportation of Hazardous and Nuclear Materials and the Interstate Transportation of Agricultural Products in the State of Colorado
 - Redlined draft rules in docx format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/8%20CCR%201507-25 2025%20DORA%20accessibility%20RL updated%20010725.docx) or in pdf format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/8%20CCR%201507-25 2025%20DORA%20accessibility%20RL updated%20010725.pdf)
 - Summary of Proposed Rules Amendments in docx format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/Summary%20of%20Proposed%20Changes 8%20CCR%201507%2025%20Companion%20Document 01082 or in pdf format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/Summary%20of%20Proposed%20Changes 8%20CCR%201507%2025%20Companion%20Document 01082
 - Statement of Basis and Purpose <u>in docx format</u> (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/Statement%20of%20Basis%20Authority%20and%20PurposeNS_8%20CCR%201507-25.docx) or <u>in</u> pdf format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/Statement%20of%20Basis%20Authority%20and%20PurposeNS_8%20CCR%201507-25.pdf)
- 8 CCR 1507-28 Port of Entry Rules for Commercial Motor Carrier Size, Weight and Clearance
 - Redlined draft rules in docx format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/8%20CCR%201507 28 DORA%20accessibility%20%281%29.docx) or in pdf format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/8%20CCR%201507 28 DORA%20accessibility%20%281%29.pdf)
 - Summary of Proposed Rules Amendments in docx format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/Summary%20of%20Proposed%20Changes_8%20CCR%201507-28%20%282%29.docx) or in pdf format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/Summary%20of%20Proposed%20Changes_8%20CCR%201507-28%20%281%29.pdf)
 - Statement of Basis and Purpose <u>in docx format</u> <u>(https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/Statement%20of%20Basis%20Authority%20and%20PurposeNS_8%20CCR%201507-28.docx)</u> or <u>in</u> <u>pdf format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/Statement%20of%20Basis%20Authority%20and%20PurposeNS_8%20CCR%201507-28.docx)</u> or <u>in</u> <u>pdf format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/Statement%20of%20Basis%20Authority%20and%20PurposeNS_8%20CCR%201507-28.docx)</u> or <u>in</u> <u>pdf format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/Statement%20of%20Basis%20Authority%20and%20PurposeNS_8%20CCR%201507-28.docx)</u> or <u>in</u> <u>pdf format (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/sites/publicsafety/files/Statement%20of%20Basis%20Authority%20and%20PurposeNS_8%20CCR%201507-28.pdf)</u>

The Colorado State Patrol is committed to supporting effective communication and access to these rules and their supporting documents by all members of the public. If you experience difficulty with or are unable to use any of these documents, please go to https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/accessibility-interpretation-and-translation-support (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/accessibility-interpretation-and-translation-support) or contact CSP Rulemaking Coordinator Angelina Page at (303) 815-9027 for assistance.

Completed Rulemaking & Hearings

About CDPS Rulemaking and Stakeholder Engagement

Virtually all state government agencies issue rules or regulations of some kind. Most rules and regulations exist at the direction of the state legislature in order to regulate certain business and personal activities. Rules and regulations exist because it's easier to update them, eliminate them, or alter them administratively than it is to pass new legislation as conditions change.

CDPS Protocol: How We Engage Stakeholders

Find out how the processes CDPS uses to engage stakeholder and how you can get involved by visiting our <u>Stakeholder Engagement Protocol Page (/cdps-rulemaking-stakeholder-engagement-protocol)</u>.

For Further Rulemaking Information

CDPS Rules on the Secretary of State's Website

Learn About Rulemaking and Regulatory Review in Colorado from the Colorado Office of Policy, Research & Regulatory Reform (COPRRR) in the Department of Regulatory Agencies (DORA). Additional information, including how to request a Cost-Benefit Analysis of proposed rules, make be found in this <u>Citizen's Guide to</u> <u>Colorado Rulemaking (https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B6RhHT- h2 eVLJxWDh5aDRuUzA/view?usp=sharing&resourcekey=0-DkkxgWbEDdbCWQZBEGbtaw)</u> published by COPRRR and also available on the <u>DORA/COPRRR Website (https://coprrr.colorado.gov/)</u>.

To receive CDPS regulatory notices, submit comments on CDPS Rules, and/or to request further information on CDPS Rules and rulemaking, please contact CDPS Rules Administrator, Chris Moreno, at <u>christine.moreno@state.co.us</u> (mailto:christine.moreno@state.co.us) or by phone at 719-343-0995.

To receive email notifications and updates for Notices of Rulemaking, including proposed or amended rules, adopted permanent or emergency rules, and the associated Attorney General Opinions for adopted rules as published by the Secretary of State in the Colorado Register, sign up on the <u>Colorado Secretary of State</u> <u>Code of Regulations webpage (https://www.coloradosos.gov/pubs/rule_making/rules.html)</u>.

Colorado Department of Public Safety

Contact

For emergencies, please call 911 (tel:911).

To report aggressive or drunk drivers, call <u>*277 (tel:*277)</u> from your mobile phone.

To contact a division within CDPS, please see our Contact Us list (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/contact).

To submit a records request, visit our CORA instructions page (/contact-us/colorado-open-records-request).

Explore careers with CDPS (/cdps-careers)! .

CDPS Social Media Terms of Use & Guidelines (/cdps-social-media-guidelines)

Resources & Info

<u>Colorado.gov</u> Connect with state of Colorado government services & help.

211 Colorado

A confidential and multilingual service to access vital resources across the state. Call <u>211 (tel:211)</u> or <u>866-760-6489 (tel:866-760-6489)</u> or **Text** your **ZIP CODE** to 898-211

CO-HELP

Colorado's call line for general questions about the COVID-19. Call <u>303-389-1687 (tel:303-389-1687)</u> or <u>877-462-2911 (tel:877-462-2911)</u>

Accessibility

The State of Colorado is committed to providing equitable access to our services to all Coloradans. <u>View the Accessibility, Interpretation & Translation</u> <u>Support page (https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/accessibility-interpretation-and-translation-support</u>).

© 2025 State of Colorado | <u>Transparency Online (https://data.colorado.gov/stories/s/fjyf-bdat)</u> | <u>General Notices (https://www.colorado.gov/general-notices)</u>



Page - CDPS, Angelina <angelina.page@state.co.us>

No Public Cost-Benefit Analysis Request for Rule - Commercial Vehicle Safety Rules

DORA_OPR_Website@state.co.us <DORA_OPR_Website@state.co.us> To: angelina.page@state.co.us Fri, Jan 3, 2025 at 7:45 PM

The deadline for public Cost-Benefit Analysis requests has passed for the following Proposed Rule:

Department:	Department of Public Safety
Rulemaking Agency:	Colorado State Patrol
Rule ID:	10514
Title or Subject:	Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles
Submitted by:	Angelina M Page
Date Submitted:	12/12/2024
Deadline for Public Cost-Benefit Analysis Request:	December 30, 2024 11:59 pm

No public requests were received by the deadline. A Cost-Benefit Analysis is not required for this submission.

Please contact us at DORA_OPR_Website@state.co.us if you have further questions regarding this e-mail message.



STATE OF COLORADO

Page - CDPS, Angelina <angelina.page@state.co.us>

8 CCR 1507-1 Notice of Public Rulemaking Filing, Public Hearing Information, and Invitation to Comment



Good afternoon,

If you are receiving this email, you have been identified as an interested party, potential stakeholder, or governmental colleague having an interest in 8 CCR 1507-1, the "Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles," also known as the "Motor Carrier Safety Rules."

Attached to this email are three documents. First is a letter providing information about the December 14, 2024, Notice of Public Rulemaking filed with the Colorado Secretary of State and Department of Regulatory Agencies. This letter also shares essential information about the time, date, and location of the public rulemaking hearing, how to attend virtually, and other relevant details.

The second document attached is a redlined copy of the rules. This document indicates all proposed updates to the rules, with deletions indicated in strikeout text and additions appearing in red font. The third document included is a companion to the redline rule copy and reviews in order each of the proposed changes to the rules, providing a brief explanation for each. Both of these documents are also available online through the CDPS Rulemaking Information website; parties are encouraged to review the documents online before the public hearing in the event of any updates.

The Colorado State Patrol is committed to supporting effective communication and access to the rulemaking process by all members of the public. If you experience difficulty with or are unable to use any of these documents or need further assistance, please go to https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/accessibility-interpretation-and-support or contact CSP Rulemaking Coordinator Angelina Page at 303-815-9027 or Angelina.Page@state.co.us.

Thank you for your support and commitment to the rulemaking process.

Sincerely, Angelina M. Page, Esq. CSP Rulemaking Coordinator Colorado State Patrol 303-815-9027 (office and mobile) 303-273-1939 (fax) angelina.page@state.co.us (email)

Upcoming Dates Away from or Out of the Office or Delayed Response Times:

- 12/23/2024: Leaving office for lunch at 2/230; off at 3:00 pm
- 12/24/2024: off at 3:00 pm
- 12/25/2024: off, Christmas Holiday
- 12/26/2024: limited in-office hours, working remotely
- 12/27/2024: working remotely
- 12/30/2024: Office hours part day/remote part day
- 12/31/2024: working remotely
- 1/1/2025: off, New Year's Day Holiday
- 1/2/2025: off, Governor's Holiday

• 1/3/2025: working remotely

3 attachments

- B CCR 1507 1 post NRPM Stakeholder comment letter_Jan 3 2025.pdf
- 8 CCR 1507-1_DORA merge_updated 010325.pdf 467K
- Summary of Proposed Changes_8 CCR 1507-1.pdf 214K



January 3, 2025

RE: Notice of Public Rulemaking Filing with the Colorado Secretary of State (SOS) and Department of Regulatory Agencies (DORA), Invitation for Comments, and Public Hearing Information for 8 CCR 1507-1, the "Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles."

Dear Stakeholders, Interested Parties, and Governmental Colleagues:

If you are receiving this letter, you have been identified as an interested party or stakeholder potentially having an interest in 8 CCR 1507-1, the "Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles," also known as the "Motor Carrier Safety Rules."

The amendments proposed to the POE Rules by the CSP include:

- Document formatting adjustments that do not affect the content or interpretation of these rules have been made throughout the document to comply with the state accessibility standards required under Section 24-34-802, CRS. Examples of these adjustments include changing capitalized text to mixed-case or lower-case text, removing underlined text, increasing font size, using the word "section" instead of the section symbol, enabling hyperlinked text, and adjusting the documents paragraph structure to support electronic bookmarking for use with electronic reading software.
- Insertion of a Table of Contents, facilitating document navigation.
- To include a new definition for "Authorized Enforcement Official," clarifying which law enforcement officials are authorized to complete commercial vehicle inspections and/or compliance reviews and the criteria officers must satisfy.
- Updating references to the commercial vehicle chain law requirements to be consistent with legislative changes effected by SB 24-100 and its amendments of Section 42-4-106, CRS.
- Updating references to the Colorado Revised Statutes, the Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance (CVSA) Inspector Criteria, CVSA OOS Criteria, CVSA Bylaws, and FMCSRs to maintain consistency with controlling and authorizing authorities.
- Revising verbiage throughout the rules to improve overall readability and message clarity and

• Correcting minor errors in grammar, editing, spelling, formatting, and updating references to resources.

This letter includes a companion document outlining the changes proposed to the rules with a redlined copy of the rules. These documents were filed with the Colorado SOS and DORA on December 14, 2024, and recently published in the Colorado Register on December 25, 2024. These documents are also accessible and available for download from the Colorado Department of Public Safety (CDPS) Rulemaking Information website at https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/get-involved/rules-and-regulations.

Responses to the proposed changes and stakeholder comments are invited and encouraged before the public hybrid hearing scheduled for Friday, January 17, 2025, at 10 am. Submitting comments in advance allows the CSP the opportunity to review and consider the substance of any comments and potentially update the changes proposed to the rules in response thereto before the public hearing. All stakeholders, interested parties, and governmental colleagues are encouraged to attend the hybrid hearing in person at 10 am on January 17th, 2025, using either of the following locations:

- In Person: CSP Academy, Building 100, Carrell Hall, 15165 S. Golden Rd., Golden, CO., 80401; or
- Virtually, using Google Meet Video call link: <u>https://meet.google.com/zzp-rksu-wgo</u> or dial: (US) +1 252-825-7041 PIN: 392 848 705#. More phone numbers: <u>https://tel.meet/zzp-rksu-wgo?pin=5780870178372</u>

An active link for the public hearing is also available online through the CDPS Rulemaking Information website. CSP Rulemaking Coordinator Angelina Page can be contacted directly at Angelina.Page@state.co.us to request the link.

Any responses and comments received before and through the end of the public comment period for these rules will be considered and included as exhibits supporting this rulemaking. Comments sent by USPS should be addressed to Captain John Hahn of the CSP Motor Carrier Safety Section at 15075 S. Golden Rd., Golden, CO., 80401. Comments by email should be sent to CSP Rulemaking Coordinator Angelina Page at <u>Angelina.Page@state.co.us</u> and Captain Hahn at John.Hahn@state.co.us.

These proposed rule changes were filed consistent with Sections 24-4-103 (2.5 and (3) (a), CRS, of the State Administrative Procedure Act. These rule changes are preliminary; additional updates may be between now and the public hearing on January 17, 2025. Should any further updates or changes to these rules be proposed between now and January 11, 2025, updated redline versions of the rules and the companion document explaining the changes will be

uploaded to the CDPS Rulemaking Information website and made publicly accessible, consistent with Section 24-4-103 (4) (a), CRS.

The Colorado State Patrol is committed to supporting effective communication and access to the rulemaking process by all members of the public. If you experience difficulty with or are unable to use any of these documents or need further assistance, please go to https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/accessibility-interpretation-and-support or contact CSP Rulemaking Coordinator Angelina Page at 303-815-9027 or <u>Angelina.Page@state.co.us</u>.

We thank you for your support and commitment to the rulemaking process.

Sincerely,

Angelina Page, Esq. CSP Rulemaking Coordinator Office: 303-273-1864 Mobile: 303-815-9027 Email: Angelina.Page@state.co.us

Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles

Accessibility Editing Note:

Document formatting adjustments that do not affect the content or interpretation of these rules have been made throughout this document to comply with the state accessibility standards required under Section 24-34-802, CRS. Examples of these formatting adjustments include changing capitalized text to mixed-case or lower-case text, removing underlining, increasing font size, using words instead of symbols, enabling hyperlink text, and adjusting the structure of the paragraphs to allow for electronic bookmarking to support electronic readers. The CSP Motor Carrier Safety Section is committed to supporting effective communication and access to these rules by all members of the public. If you experience difficulty with or are unable to use this document, please go to https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/accessibility-interpretation-and-translation-support or contact the CSP Motor Carrier Safety Section at (303) 273-1875 for assistance.

Disclaimer:

This draft is filed with the Department of State and submitted to the Department of Regulatory Agencies, consistent with Sections 24-4-103 (2.5) and (3) (a), CRS, of the State Administrative Procedure Act. This preliminary draft may be revised before the public rulemaking hearing on January 17, 2025. If any changes are made, a revised copy of the rules and any supporting documents will be made available to the public and posted on the Colorado Department of Public Safety Rulemaking Information website at <u>https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/get-involved/cdps-rules-and-regulations</u>. Any updates or revisions will be made available as required by Sections 24-4-103 (4) (a), CRS, and posted to the Colorado Department of Public Safety Rulemaking Information website no later than January 11, 2025.

Table of Contents

ehicles1	d Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehi	Rules and I
3	: Authority to Adopt Standards and Specifications.	MCS 1:
3	: Applicability	MCS 2:
3	Compliance with 8 CCR 1507-25 as Appropriate	2.1.
3	Approval of Temporary Rule Variance(s).	2.2.
3	: General Definitions.	MCS 3:
		MCS 4:
8	Safety Inspections	4.1.
8	Authority to Inspect	4.2.
8	Authority to Conduct Compliance Reviews and Safety Audits.	4.3.
8	: Inspection Standards and Reports.	MCS 5:
		5.1.
8	Minimum Information and Report Disposition	5.2.

MCS 6: 6.1.	State Adoption of FMCSR
6.2.	Entry-Level Driver Training9
6.3.	New Entrant Safety Program9
6.4.	Financial Responsibility (Insurance) of Motor Carriers10
6.5.	Amended General Applicability of the FMCSR
6.6.	Amended Applicability of FMCSR Definitions10
6.7.	Amended Motor Carrier Identification Requirements11
6.8.	Age of Drivers Operating in Interstate Commerce11
6.9.	Amending HOS and Applicability Thereof
6.10.	References to Federal Agencies to Include State Agencies12
6.11.	Filing of Information Related to FMCSR Reporting Requirements12
6.12.	Other General Exceptions12
MCS 7: MCS 7	Use and Carry of Traction Devices are Required 13 .1. Drivers Must Carry Chains13
MCS 7	.2. Use of Chains and Alternative Traction Devices
MCS 8: 8.1.	Intrastate Medical Waivers
8.2.	Medical Waiver Information Available Online14
8.3.	Written Notice of Terms and Conditions14
8.4.	Denial of Medical Waiver Application14
8.5.	Appeal of Medical Waiver Denial14
8.6.	Medical Waiver Revocation15
8.7.	Right to Hearing Upon Medical Waiver Revocation15
8.8.	Right to Appeal Medical Waiver Revocation
MCS 9. 9.1.	Compliance Reviews and the Assignment of Intrastate Safety Fitness Ratings16 Exclusive Authority to Conduct Compliance Reviews
9.2.	Application of Intrastate Carrier Safety Ratings16
9.3.	Administrative Review of Safety Fitness Rating
9.4.	Motor Carrier Request to Change Safety Fitness Rating for Corrective Action(s)17
9.5.	Motor Carrier Request to Change Safety Fitness Rating Through Compliance Review18
9.6. for Otl	Request for an Administrative Review/Compliance Review Does Not Preempt Requests ner Administrative/Compliance Reviews19
9.7.	Final Safety Fitness Rating Assignment19
MCS 10. 10.1.	Compliance Reviews and Civil Penalties19 Determination of Civil Penalty Assessment19
10.2.	Notice of Civil Penalty Assessment (NOC)20

10.3.	Motor Carrier Response to Civil Penalty NOC Required20
10.4.	Motor Carrier Requests for Administrative Review of Civil Penalty Assessments21
10.5.	Motor Carrier Failure to Respond or Cooperate22
MCS 11. MCS 12. Rules.	Information on These Rules23 Information Maintenance and Reference of Publications, Standards, Guidelines and 23
12.1.	Available for Public Inspection and Referenced Consistent with Statute23
12.2.	Maintenance of Copies23
12.3.	Availability of Copies24
MCS 13.	Severability24
MCS 14.	Effective Date

MCS 1: Authority to Adopt Standards and Specifications.

The Chief of the Colorado State Patrol is authorized by the provisions of <u>§-Section</u> 42-4-235 (4) (a) (i), CRS, to adopt rules and regulations setting safety standards and specifications for the operation of all commercial vehicles in Colorado, both in interstate and intrastate transportation.

MCS 2: Applicability.

These rules and regulations apply to individuals, corporations, Colorado government or governmental subdivisions or agencies, or other legal entities who that operate commercial vehicles as they are defined in §-Section 42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS.

2.1. Compliance with 8 CCR 1507-25 as Appropriate.

In addition to this rule, any person who transports hazardous materials as defined in 49 CFR 171.8 and §-Section 42-20-103 (3), CRS, and/or nuclear materials as defined in § Section 42-20-402 (3) (a) – (c), CRS, must operate consistent with 8 CCR 1507-25, the CSP Rules and Regulations Concerning the Permitting, Routing, and Transportation of Hazardous and Nuclear Materials and the Intrastate Transportation of Agricultural Products in the State of Colorado.

2.2. Approval of Temporary Rule Variance(s).

Provided a variance is not in violation of <u>§-Section</u> 42-4-235, CRS, the CSP Motor Carrier Safety Section (MCSS) may consider and grant requests of intrastate commercial motor carriers for temporary variances from these rules.

MCS 3: General Definitions.

The following definitions apply throughout these rules unless otherwise specified. Definitions relevant to these rules are found in Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations. These definitions are amended to maintain consistency with the Colorado Revised Statutes as necessary.

3.1. Action: Consistent with §-Section 24-4-102 (1), CRS, and as used within these rules, an

action includes the whole or any part of any agency rule, order, interlocutory order, license, sanction, relief, or the equivalent or the denial thereof, or failure to act.

- **3.2.** Aggrieved: Consistent with §-Section 24-4-102 (3.5), CRS, and as may be used in connection with judicial review of rule-making, means having suffered actual loss or injury or being exposed to potential loss or injury to legitimate interests including but not limited to, business, economic, aesthetic, governmental, recreational, or conservational interests.
- **3.3.** Authorized Enforcement Official: Enforcement Officials, as defined within these rules, who are also certified to complete commercial vehicle inspections under Section 42-4-235 (4) (a), CRS, are authorized to perform commercial vehicle inspections consistent with their certification level. Level I CVSA-certified Colorado State Patrol Troopers assigned to the Motor Carrier Safety Section are the only Colorado law enforcement officials authorized to perform Compliance Reviews on and to assign Safety Ratings for commercial motor carrier operators or drivers. <u>CDL: Commercial Driver's License.</u>
- 3.4. CDL: Commercial Driver's License. CDOR: Colorado Department of Revenue.
- **3.5. CDOR: Colorado Department of Revenue. CDOT: Colorado Department of Transportation.**
- **3.6. CDOT: Colorado Department of Transportation. CDPS:** Colorado Department of Public Safety.
- 3.7. CDPS: Colorado Department of Public Safety. CFR: Code of Federal Regulations.
- **3.8.** CFR: Code of Federal Regulations. Chief: The Chief of the Colorado State Patrol, or his or her designee as appropriate, unless otherwise specified.
- 3.9. Chief: The Chief of the Colorado State Patrol, or his or her designee as appropriate, unless otherwise specified. Civil Penalty: A financial penalty imposed on a motor carrier by the Colorado State Patrol after a Compliance Review for violations of rules adopted by the Chief consistent with §42-4-235 (4) (a) (I), CRS.
- 3.10. Civil Penalty: A financial penalty imposed on a motor carrier by the Colorado State Patrol after a Compliance Review for violations of rules adopted by the Chief consistent with Section 42-4-235 (4) (a) (I), CRS. Civil Penalty Process: The process and procedures to collect Civil Penalties issued by the CSP for violations of §42-4-235 (4) (a), CRS, under the authority provided by §42-4-235 (2)(a), CRS, and determined consistent with the provisions of Subpart G of 49 CFR 386 as codified within §42-4-235 (2) (b) (I), CRS.
- **3.11.** Civil Penalty Process: The process and procedures to collect Civil Penalties issued by the CSP for violations of Section 42-4-235 (4) (a), CRS, under the authority provided by Section 42-4-235 (2)(a), CRS, and determined consistent with the provisions of Subpart

G of 49 CFR 386 as codified within Section 42-4-235 (2) (b) (I), CRS. Commercial Vehicle: The definition of commercial vehicle will be as outlined in §42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS.

- 3.12. Commercial Vehicle: The definition of commercial vehicle will be as outlined in Section 42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS. Compliance Review: An examination of motor carrier operations, such as driver's hours of service, maintenance and inspection, driver qualifications, CDL requirements, financial responsibility, accidents, hazardous materials, and other safety and transportation records to determine whether a motor carrier meets safety fitness standards.
- 3.13. Compliance Review: An examination of motor carrier operations, such as driver's hours-of-service, maintenance and inspection, driver qualifications, CDL requirements, financial responsibility, accidents, hazardous materials, and other safety and transportation records to determine whether a motor carrier meets safety fitness standards. Conditional Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standards that could result in the occurrences listed in 49 CFR 385.5.
- 3.14. Conditional Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standards that could result in the occurrences listed in 49 CFR 385.5. CRS: Colorado Revised Statutes.
- 3.15. CRS: Colorado Revised Statutes. CRU: Colorado State Patrol Central Records Unit.
- 3.16. CRU: Colorado State Patrol Central Records Unit. CSP: Colorado State Patrol.
- 3.17. CSP: Colorado State Patrol. CVSA: Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance.
- **3.18.** CVSA: Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance. Decision: As used within these rules, means the determinative action in adjudication and includes order, opinion, sanction, and relief.
- **3.19.** Decision: As used within these rules, means the determinative action in adjudication and includes order, opinion, sanction, and relief. Enforcement Official: The definition of an Enforcement Official will be as it is defined by §§-16-2.5-101, 16-2.5-114, 16-2.5-115, and 16-2.5-143, and as outlined in §-42-20-103 (2), CRS.
- 3.20. Enforcement Official: The definition of an Enforcement Official will be as it is defined by Sections 16-2.5-101, 16-2.5-114, 16-2.5-115, and 16-2.5-143, and as outlined in Section 42-20-103 (2), CRS. FMCSA: Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration.
- 3.21. FMCSA: Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration. FMCSR: Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations.

- 3.22. FMCSR: Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations. GCWR: Gross Combined Weight Rating.
- 3.23. GCWR: Gross Combined Weight Rating. GVWR: Gross Vehicle Weight Rating.
- **3.24. GVWR: Gross Vehicle Weight Rating. Initial Decision:** As it applies to the assessment of civil penalties or the assignment of Safety Fitness Ratings under these rules, reflects a decision that will become a final agency action of the CSP unless administratively reviewed by the CSP at the request of a motor carrier consistent with these rules.
- 3.25. Initial Decision: As it applies to the assessment of civil penalties or the assignment of Safety Fitness Ratings under these rules, reflects a decision that will become a final agency action of the CSP unless administratively reviewed by the CSP at the request of a motor carrier consistent with these rules. Interested Person: Includes any persons who may be aggrieved by agency action.
- **3.26.** Interested Person: Includes any persons who may be aggrieved by agency action. LLC: Limited Liability Company or Limited Liability Corporation.
- **3.27.** LLC: Limited Liability Company or Limited Liability Corporation. MCSS: Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety Section.
- **3.28.** LLC: Limited Liability Company or Limited Liability Corporation. Motor Carrier: The definition of a motor carrier will be as it is outlined in § 42 4 235 (1) (c), CRS.
- 3.29. Motor Carrier: The definition of a motor carrier will be as it is outlined in Section 42-4-235 (1) (c), CRS. MOU: Memorandum of Understanding.
- **3.30. MOU: Memorandum of Understanding. Notice of Claim Letter (NOC):** As it is used within these rules, a written order informing a motor carrier of its Civil Penalty Assessment, the rights associated with the penalty, and the process for responding to the penalty.
- **3.31.** Notice of Claim Letter (NOC): As it is used within these rules, a written order informing a motor carrier of its Civil Penalty Assessment, the rights associated with the penalty, and the process for responding to the penalty. **OOS:** Out-of-Service.
- 3.32. OOS: Out-of-Service. PUC: Colorado Public Utilities Commission.
- **3.33. PUC: Colorado Public Utilities Commission. Sanction:** Includes any prohibition, requirement, limitation, or other condition affecting the freedom of any person. Sanction also applies to the imposition of any form of penalty or fine, including civil penalties as they are assessed consistent with state statutes and these rules.
- **3.34.** Sanction: Includes any prohibition, requirement, limitation, or other condition affecting the freedom of any person. Sanction also applies to the imposition of any

form of penalty or fine, including civil penalties, as they are assessed to be consistent with state statutes and these rules. Satisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a motor carrier has in place and functioning adequate Safety Fitness controls to meet the safety fitness standard prescribed in 49 CFR 385.5. Safety Fitness controls are adequate if they are appropriate for the size and type of operation of the motor carrier.

- 3.35. Satisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier has in place and functioning adequate Safety Fitness controls to meet the safety fitness standard prescribed in 49 CFR 385.5. Safety Fitness controls are adequate if they are appropriate for the motor carrier's size and type of operation of the motor carrier. Served/Service: Indicates a NOC or other service document sent by first class mail to the last address furnished to the MCSS by the motor carrier or personally served on the motor carrier by a uniformed member of the CSP.
 - **3.35.1.** Service of an NOC or document by first class mail is considered complete when it is mailed, not when it is received.
- 3.36. Served/Service: Indicates a NOC or other service document sent by first class mail to the last address furnished to the MCSS by the motor carrier or personally served on the motor carrier by a uniformed member of the CSP. Unrated Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a safety rating has not been assigned to the motor carrier by the CSP.
 - **3.36.1.** Service of an NOC or document by first class mail is considered complete when it is mailed, not when it is received.
- 3.37. Unrated Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a safety rating has not been assigned to the motor carrier by the CSP. Unsatisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standard, resulting in occurrences as listed in 49 CFR 385.5.
- 3.38. Unsatisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place-to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standard, resulting in occurrences as listed in 49 CFR 385.5. USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number can be for intrastate or interstate use, depending on the information provided by the motor carrier to the FMCSA at the time of an application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier record.
- 3.39. USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number can be for intrastate or interstate use, depending on the information provided by the motor carrier to the FMCSA at the time of an-application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier record.

MCS 4: Authority to Inspect Vehicles, Drivers, Cargo, Books, and Records. Authorized Enforcement Officials will at all times have the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents consistent with Part MCS 4 of these rules.

4.1. Safety Inspections.

Enforcement Officials who are authorized to perform motor vehicle safety inspections on commercial motor vehicles and drivers are required to meet the inspector qualifications outlined in §-Section 42-4-235 (4) (a) (I), CRS, while performing CVSA North American Standard Safety Inspections.

4.1.1. All Enforcement Officials performing North American Standard Safety Inspections must maintain the certification requirements prescribed in the current published CVSA Operations Manual, effective April 1, 2024-2025.

4.2. Authority to Inspect.

Authorized Enforcement Officials have the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents, as such documents apply to motor vehicle or commercial vehicle transport by 8 CCR 1507-25 and/or as are outlined in 49 CFR, Subchapter B, Parts 383, 387, 390, 391, 392, 393, 395, 396, 397, and 399, as revised October 1, 2023-2024.

4.3. Authority to Conduct Compliance Reviews and Safety Audits.

CSP Enforcement Officials who are certified by the FMCSA under 49 CFR 385, Subpart C, to perform compliance reviews and safety audits have the authority to enter the facilities of and inspect any motor carrier, as defined in §-Section 42- 4-235 (1) (c), CRS. Inspection includes the review of any required records and supporting documents as may apply through 8 CCR 1507-25 and/or as they are identified and defined in 49 CFR, Subchapter B, Parts 40 380, 382, 383, 385, 387, 390, 392, 393, 395, 397, 399, and Appendix A, revised October 1, 2023-2024.

MCS 5: Inspection Standards and Reports.

Through an MOU with the CVSA, dated October 21, 2022, the CSP adopts the standards and procedures established for the inspection of commercial vehicles, collectively known as the North American Uniform Driver/Vehicle Inspection.

5.1. CVSA Bylaws as General Inspection Guidelines.

Authorized Enforcement Officials performing safety inspections on commercial vehicles, drivers, and cargo will use as general guidelines the levels, methods of inspections, and the OOS criteria found in the CVSA bylaws, as they are revised and effective April 1, 2024-2025.

5.2. Minimum Information and Report Disposition.

Authorized Enforcement Officials will, upon the completion of each inspection, prepare a report which, at minimum, identifies the inspector, the inspector's agency, the name and address of the motor carrier, the date and time of the inspection, the location of the inspection, the vehicle, and the driver, any defects or violations found, and the disposition of the vehicle. A copy of the inspection report will be provided to the driver or motor carrier.

MCS 6: State Adoption of FMCSR.

All intrastate and interstate motor carriers, commercial vehicles, and drivers thereof operating within Colorado must operate consistent with the safety regulations detailed within:

49 CFR 40	Procedures for Transportation Workplace
49 CFR 380	Drug and Alcohol Testing Programs Special Training Requirements
49 CFR 382	Controlled Substances and Alcohol Use and
49 CFR 387	Testing Minimum Levels of Financial Responsibility for Motor Carriers
49 CFR 390	Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations: General
49 CFR 391	Qualifications of Drivers and Longer Combination Vehicle (LCV) Driver Instructors
49 CFR 392	Driving of Commercial Motor Vehicles
49 CFR 393	Parts & Accessories Necessary for Safe
	Operation
49 CFR 395	Hours of Service of Drivers
49 CFR 396	Inspections, Repair, and Maintenance
49 CFR 397	Transportation of Hazardous Materials,
	Driving and Parking Rules
49 CFR 399	Employee Safety and Health Standards
49 CFR 396 Appendix A to Subtitle B of Chapter III	Minimum Periodic Inspection Standards

of the FMCSA as the same were effective October 1, 2023-2024, and published in Title 49 of the CFR, Subtitle B, Chapter III, Parts 200 through 399, with references therein, with modifications as are necessitated by state law and set forth by and within these rules:

6.1. Intrastate Commerce Included.

Unless otherwise specified, all references to interstate commerce by the FMCSR hereby adopted by these rules also include and apply to intrastate commerce.

6.2. Entry-Level Driver Training.

49 CFR 380.509 (a) is amended to read: "Each employer must ensure each entry-level driver, who first begins operating a commercial motor vehicle requiring a CDL under § Section 42-2-404, CRS, receives the training required by 49 CFR 380.503."

6.3. New Entrant Safety Program.

49 CFR 385.501 (b) and (c), through 385.505, and 385.319 (b) through 385.337 do not

apply.

- **6.3.1.** 49 CFR 385.309 through 385.319 (a), hereafter referred to collectively as the Colorado Intrastate New Entrant Safety Assurance Program, applies to intrastate motor carriers who are beginning intrastate operations and are required to obtain an intrastate USDOT number from the FMCSA.
- **6.3.2.** Intrastate motor carriers can confirm if they need a USDOT number and complete an intrastate application online **at-by going to** <u>https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/registration/do-i-need-usdot-number</u>.
- **6.3.3.** All interstate motor carriers beginning operations in Colorado must submit to a safety audit consistent with 49 CFR 385.3.
- **6.3.4.** All intrastate motor carriers beginning operations in Colorado are eligible for the Colorado Intrastate New Entrant Safety Assurance Program. New intrastate carriers may schedule training by contacting the MCSS. A prior interstate safety audit or compliance review will meet the requirement for a safety audit.

6.4. Financial Responsibility (Insurance) of Motor Carriers.

Under §-Section 42-4-235 (4) (a) (I), CRS, the financial responsibility and insurance provisions of these rules do not apply to commercial vehicles regulated by the PUC. Additionally, these These same provisions do not apply to commercial vehicles operated by river outfitters regulated by the Colorado Department of Natural Resources, Division of Wildlife, under 2 CCR 405-3. These noted exceptions aside, 49 CFR 387.1 through 387.17, 387.303, 387.305, and 387.309 apply to the operation of commercial vehicles in Colorado with the following exceptions:

- 6.4.1. 49 CFR 387.7 (e) and (g) do not apply.
- 6.4.2. 49 CFR 387.9 (4) applies only to interstate and foreign commerce.
- **6.4.3.** Transportation carriers may obtain a certificate of self insurance issued under §42-7-501, CRS, or 49 CFR 387.
- **6.4.4.** Motor carriers subject to these rules must carry a minimum level of cargo liability coverage of \$10,000 for loss or damage to property carried on any one motor vehicle, or an amount adequate to cover the value of the property being transported, whichever is less unless the shipper and the property carrier otherwise agree by written contract to a lesser amount.

6.5. Amended General Applicability of the FMCSR. 49 CFR 390.3 (f), (1) - (2), and (6) do not apply.

6.6. Amended Applicability of FMCSR Definitions. The following definitions set forth within 49 CFR 390.5 are amended by these rules:

- **6.6.1.** The definitions of "Commercial Motor Vehicle" and "Motor Carrier" do not apply.
- **6.6.2.** The definition of an "emergency" is amended through the addition of by adding the following: "A governmental agency has determined that a local emergency requires relief from the maximum driving time in 49 CFR 395.3 or 395.5."

6.7. Amended Motor Carrier Identification Requirements.

49 CFR 390.19 (a) is amended to read: "Each motor carrier that conducts operations in intrastate commerce must apply for and receive an intrastate USDOT Number before beginning operations within the state. The motor carrier is required to update this information every 24 months."

- **6.7.1.** The FMCSA processes USDOT numbers for intrastate motor carriers-are processed by the FMCSA.
- **6.7.2.** 49 CFR 390.21 (b) is amended through the addition of the following: "Intrastate carriers must mark their vehicles with the assigned intrastate USDOT number, preceded by the letters "USDOT" and followed by the suffix "CO" (e.g.: USDOT 1234567 CO)."
 - **6.7.2.1.** Motor carriers operating in intrastate commerce, not transporting 16 or more passengers (including the driver) or transporting placarded hazardous materials and having a GVWR or GCWR equal to or over 16,001 lbs., but not in excess of 26,000 lbs., may meet the marking requirements of 49 CFR 390.21 by marking the trailer or secondary unit, if the GVWR of the self-propelled unit itself is less than 16,001 lbs.
 - **6.7.2.2.** In the interests of public safety, intrastate motor carriers who operate as repossessors as defined within <u>§-Section</u> 42-6-146 (4), CRS, are not subject to the marking requirements of 49 CFR 390.21.

6.8. Age of Drivers Operating in Interstate Commerce.

49 CFR 391.11 (b) (1) is amended to read: "Is at least 21 years old if engaged in interstate commerce or transporting hazardous materials of a type or quantity that would require the vehicle to be marked or placarded under 49 CFR 177.823, except drivers operating interstate under a waiver issued through the FMCSA Military Pilot Program, or any other approved non-military extension thereof and as recognized consistent with §-Section 42-2-404 (4) (b), CRS. All other drivers operating intrastate only must be at least 18 years of age."

6.9. Amending HOS and Applicability Thereof.

The HOS regulations set forth within 49 CFR 395 are amended as follows:

6.9.1. Public transit agency carriers and their drivers operating in intrastate commerce

may satisfy the requirements of 49 CFR 395.1 (e) (1) (ii) by either meeting the existing regulation or by replacing 49 CFR 395.1 (e) (1) and (2) with "the driver is released from work within 12 consecutive hours."

- **6.9.2.** 49 CFR 395.3 and 395.5 do not apply to drivers of either Colorado governmental vehicles or tow trucks working an emergency, as defined in 49 CFR 390.
- **6.9.3.** 49 CFR 395.3 does not apply to drivers who are towing a vehicle from a public roadway at the request of a public officer or for other law enforcement purposes.
- **6.9.4.** Drivers transporting livestock, poultry, slaughtered animals, or the grain, corn feed, hay, etc. used to feed animals are eligible to use the agricultural operations exception in 49 CFR 395.1 (k).
- **6.9.5.** 49 CFR 395.1 (k) is amended to read: "Is conducted during the planting and harvesting seasons within Colorado as determined by the Department of Agriculture to be from January 1 to December 31."

6.10. References to Federal Agencies to Include State Agencies.

All references to federal agencies and authorized personnel are to be construed to include the CSP, PUC, and other state or local enforcement agencies who have with a signed MOU with the CSP and their authorized personnel.

6.11. Filing of Information Related to FMCSR Reporting Requirements.

All motor carrier and driving requirements adopted by 8 CCR 1507-25 and/or referred to in 49 CFR 40, 368, 380, 382, 383, 385, 387, 390, 391, 392, 393, 395, 396, 397, and 399 must be filed with or delivered by mutually agreed upon methods upon request to the MCSS at 15075 S. Golden Rd., Golden, CO., 80401.

6.12. Other General Exceptions.

These rules and regulations apply to all vehicles meeting the definition of a commercial vehicle outlined in §-Section 42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS, and drivers who meet the definition of "Driver" as described in 49 CFR 390.5, with the following exceptions:

- **6.12.1.** Drivers of intrastate vehicles and vehicle combinations having a GVWR or GCWR of not more than 26,000 lbs., not requiring a CDL to operate, are not subject to 49 CFR 391, Subpart E, Physical Qualifications and Examinations.
- 6.12.2. Vehicles owned and operated by the federal government or state government or a political subdivision thereof not domiciled in Colorado, and not transporting hazardous materials of a type and quantity requiring the vehicle to be marked or placarded under 49 CFR 172.504.
- **6.12.3.** The operation of authorized emergency vehicles, as defined in §-Section 42-1-102 (6), CRS, while in emergency and related operations.

6.12.4. The operation of snowplows, as defined in §-Section 42-1-102 (91), CRS, and all other vehicles engaged in supporting the use thereof when snowplows are removing snow/ice from the roadway or engaged in related snow/ice removal operations.

MCS 7: Use and Carry of Traction Devices are Required.

7.1. Drivers Must Carry Chains.

Drivers must carry chains consistent with Section 42-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS, operating a commercial vehicle as defined in CDOT Rule 2 CCR 601-14, except for mobile cranes, operating on Interstate 70 between mileposts 133 and 259 between September 1st and May 31st must carry tire chains consistent with the requirements detailed within §42-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS.- when operating vehicles designed to carry 16 or more passengers (including the driver) or having a combined weight of 16,001 lbs. or more (except for mobile cranes) on the following public highways between September 1st and May 31st:

- 7.1.1. I-70 West of milepost 259 in Morrison, Colorado.
- 7.1.2. Colorado Highway 9, from milepost 63 to milepost 97, between Frisco and Fairplay, Colorado.
- 7.1.3. US Route 40 West of milepost 256 in Empire, Colorado.
- 7.1.4. US Route 50 West of milepost 225 in Salida, Colorado.
- 7.1.5. US Route 160 West of milepost 304 in Walsenburg, Colorado.
- 7.1.6. US Route 285 West of milepost 250 in Morrison, Colorado.
- 7.1.7. US Route 550 between mileposts 0 and 130.
- 7.2. Use of Chains and Alternative Traction Devices.

The use of chains by drivers of commercial vehicles must occur consistent with the requirements set forth within Section 42-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS. Drivers of commercial vehicles may use Alternative Traction Devices (ATDs), including tire cables, auto socks, or sanders, may also be used as each is defined and as their use is consistent with 2 CCR 601-14.

MCS 8: Intrastate Medical Waivers.

MCSS may grant variances exemptions/waivers to drivers unable to satisfy the requirements of 49 CFR 391, Subpart E, consistent with these rules.

8.1. Approval of Medical Waivers.

Individual applications requesting an variance-exemption/waiver of specific requirements may be approved when the approval of an exemption-variance/waiver is supported by the decisions of a certified medical examiner and the documented

determination of an appropriate medical professional, combined with the satisfaction of any applicable performance standards which that support a decision that a medical condition has no adverse impact on safety.

8.2. Medical Waiver Information Available Online.

Medical waiver requirements, submission information, and other relevant documents are available online at https://csp.colorado.gov/medical-waivers. Medical waiver applications may also be requested in person by fax or by US mail from the MCSS office. Additional questions concerning the Colorado CDL Medical Waiver Program may be directed to the MCSS by phone at (303) 273-1875.

8.3. Written Notice of Terms and Conditions.

Medical waiver cardholders are provided written notice of relevant program terms and conditions at the time of card approval and subsequent renewal(s).

8.4. Denial of Medical Waiver Application.

An application for a medical waiver may be denied if:

- **8.4.1.** The applicant does not currently possess or is not in the process of attaining a state of Colorado CDL.
- **8.4.2.** The applicant has a medical condition for which a waiver or variance is not available; or
- **8.4.3.** Either the certified medical examiner or the medical professional fails to complete or certify the required medical waiver form(s).
- **8.4.4.** Denial of a medical waiver application will be by written notice from the MCSS.
 - **8.4.4.1.** Medical waiver applications denied as a result of incomplete, insufficient, or ineligible information may be resubmitted at the convenience of an applicant upon correction, completion, or meeting requirements of eligibility without prejudice.

8.4.4.2. Medical limb waiver applications denied for a failure to pass the Skills Performance Evaluation (SPE) will include a written explanation of the reason for failure and denial.

8.5. Appeal of Medical Waiver Denial.

Both new and renewal medical waiver applicants have rights of appeal in the event of application denial.

8.5.1. Where after review of an application and consideration of relevant motor vehicle operation data available to the CSP at the time of application receipt, the CSP decides to deny a request for a medical waiver, an applicant may request a hearing appealing the denial within 60 days.

8.5.2. Upon review of relevant motor vehicle operation data available to the CSP at the time of receipt of paperwork to re-issue a medical waiver to an individual having an expired or expiring waiver, the CSP may deny to renew or re-issue a medical waiver if the CSP determines that to re-issue a medical waiver to an individual does not promote safety, protect human life, or preserve the highways of this state. An applicant seeking renewal of an existing or expiring medical waiver may appeal this decision. The denial of an application for re-issue or renewal of a medical waiver to an individual based on relevant motor vehicle operation data available to the CSP at the time of the receipt of paperwork is entitled to the same appeal rights as a waiver revocation as set forth within Part 8.6 of these rules.

8.6. Medical Waiver Revocation.

A medical waiver may be revoked where if the CSP determines that issue of issuing a waiver to a driver does not promote safety, protect human life, or preserve the highways of this state.

- **8.6.1.** A medical waiver may be revoked by the The CSP may revoke a medical waiver when a waiver holder fails to comply with the applicable terms and conditions of the CSP Medical Waiver Program.
- **8.6.2.** A medical waiver may be revoked by the CSP when it is determined that, based on relevant motor vehicle operations data available to the CSP, the continued use of the waiver by a holder fails to promote safety, protect human life, or preserve the highways of this state.
- **8.6.3.** Revocation of any medical waiver will be by written notice from the MCSS consistent with <u>§-Section</u> 24-4-104, CRS.

8.7. Right to Hearing Upon Medical Waiver Revocation.

The MCSS will provide the waiver holder an opportunity to attend a hearing. Notice of this hearing will be in writing and will-provide give the waiver applicant with at least 30 day's-notice of the time, date, place, and nature of the hearing. Notice will be served in person or by certified mail or, upon agreement of the parties, by email.

8.8. Right to Appeal Medical Waiver Revocation.

Within 30 days of the completion of a hearing or the failure of the waiver holder to file a written answer in response thereto to it, the Chief or his or her designee will issue a decision either affirming the revocation or reinstating the medical waiver. Within 30 days of receiving written notice from the MCSS revoking a medical waiver, the aggrieved holder of a medical waiver may submit an exception or appeal. Additionally:

- **8.8.1.** Appeal requests must be made in writing.
- 8.8.2. Appeal requests must be addressed to the Chief at the MCSS at 15075 S. Golden

Rd., Golden, CO., 80401.

- **8.8.3.** The Chief will hold a hearing on the appeal.
- **8.8.4.** The Chief will issue a written decision within 20 business days of the completed hearing. Notice of the decision will be served in person or by certified mail to the last known address provided for the appealing party. Upon agreement of the parties, service may also occur by email.
 - **8.8.4.1.** If the Chief finds by **a** preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is sufficient, revocation of the medical waiver will be sustained.
 - **8.8.4.2.** If the Chief finds by **a** preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is insufficient, the revocation of the medical waiver will be immediately reversed, and the medical waiver will be reinstated.
- **8.8.5.** The decision of the Chief on appeal will constitute a final agency action and is subject to judicial review as outlined in <u>§-Section</u> 24-4-106, CRS.

MCS 9. Compliance Reviews and the Assignment of Intrastate Safety Fitness Ratings. §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (c), CRS, gives the CSP the exclusive authority to conduct Compliance Reviews. Out of this exclusive authority arises the ability to assign Safety Fitness Ratings to motor carriers and the responsibility to levy sanctions in the form of Civil Penalties for violations against persons for operating commercial vehicles inconsistent with these rules.

9.1. Exclusive Authority to Conduct Compliance Reviews.

Section 42-4-235 (2) (c), CRS, gives the CSP exclusive authority to conduct Compliance Reviews, as defined in 49 CFR 385.3, and to impose Civil Penalties pursuant to such reviews. Only authorized CSP Enforcement Officials have the authority to conduct Compliance Reviews.

9.2. Application of Intrastate Carrier Safety Ratings.

The CSP will establish a Safety Fitness Rating for each motor carrier upon which it conducts a Compliance Review. Upon completion of a Compliance Review, the CSP will assign a proposed Safety Fitness Rating that will be based on the degree of compliance with the federal motor carrier Safety Fitness Standards for motor carriers outlined in 49 CFR 385.5.

- 9.2.1. The Safety Fitness Rating will be determined using the factors prescribed in 49 CFR 395.7 as guidance. A motor carrier may determine their degree of compliance with the Safety Fitness Standard by reviewing 49 CFR 385.5.
- **9.2.2.** On the 61st day after the assignment of a proposed Safety Fitness Rating, the motor carrier's Safety Fitness Rating will become the final Safety Fitness Rating.

9.2.3. The final Safety Fitness Rating for an intrastate motor carrier will be available to the public on request by contacting the CSP CRU at:

Colorado State Patrol, Central Records Unit 700 Kipling St. Lakewood, CO., 80215 (303) 239 – 4180 <u>https://csp.colorado.gov/talk-with-us/central-records-unit</u> email: cdps csprecords@state.co.us

9.3. Administrative Review of Safety Fitness Rating.

If a motor carrier believes the CSP committed an error in assigning its' Safety Fitness Rating, the motor carrier may request an administrative review of the Compliance Review that resulted in the assignment of the disputed Safety Fitness Rating. The request from the motor carrier must comply with the following provisions:

- **9.3.1.** The request must be in writing and addressed to the Chief within 30 days of the assignment of the proposed Safety Fitness Rating.
- **9.3.2.** The request must explain the error the motor carrier believes the CSP committed in issuing the Safety Fitness Rating. The motor carrier must include a list of all factual and procedural issues in dispute and any information or documentation that supports its assignment.
- **9.3.3.** The Chief may request more information and/or require the motor carrier to attend a conference to discuss the rating. If the motor carrier does not provide the information request or attend the conference, the Chief may dismiss the request.
- **9.3.4.** The Chief will serve the decision in writing within 30 days of receiving the request.
- **9.3.5.** The proposed Safety Fitness Rating will remain as a proposed Safety Fitness Rating until the decision of the Chief.
- **9.3.6.** The decision of the Chief will include the assignment of a final Safety Fitness Rating. The decision will constitute a final action by the CSP.
- **9.4.** Motor Carrier Request to Change Safety Fitness Rating for Corrective Action(s). An intrastate motor carrier may request a change to their its' Safety Fitness Rating based on corrective actions completed by the motor carrier. A request to change a Safety Fitness Rating based on corrective action(s) cannot be made by a motor carrier and will not be acted upon by the CSP sooner than 90 days after the assignment of a proposed Safety Fitness Rating. The request must be submitted in writing and addressed to the Chief. The request must include the following information as it is

relevant to the motor carrier:

- **9.4.1.** A description of corrective action(s) taken by the motor carrier since the assignment of the Safety Fitness Rating.
- **9.4.2.** A description of how the corrective action(s) address(es) each violation-identified in the most recent Compliance Review as an acute and/or critical violation. The motor carrier must also address factor six (crashes) of the Compliance Review when the rating entered for factor six is "unsatisfactory."
- **9.4.3.** An explanation as to why the violation(s) cited as acute and/or critical were permitted to occur.
- **9.4.4.** The corrective action(s) taken by the motor carrier to ensure against these critical and/or acute violations in the future.
- **9.4.5.** If factor six (crashes) is rated unsatisfactory, an accident countermeasure program must be included as part of the corrective action(s) addressed. The program must include, but not be limited to, defensive driving training.
- **9.4.6.** If the corrective action(s) include(s) action(s) to be taken shortly, such as training, reorganization of departments, purchasing of computer programs, etc., a schedule of when the corrective action(s) is to occur must be included.
- **9.4.7.** Any additional documentation or information that relates to motor carrier safety, additional voluntary corrective action(s), and the prevention of crashes and hazardous materials incidents must be included.
- **9.4.8.** A written statement certifying that the motor carrier will operate in compliance with the motor carrier safety and hazardous materials regulations adopted by the CSP under <u>§§</u>-Sections 42-4-235 and 42-20-108, CRS, and all other relevant state and local laws.
- **9.4.9.** The request must be signed by a corporate officer in the case of a corporation, a member or manager in the case of an LLC, by the general partner of a limited partnership, or by all partners or proprietors in the case of a general partnership or proprietorship.
- **9.5.** Motor Carrier Request to Change Safety Fitness Rating Through Compliance Review. A motor carrier may request a change in their Safety Fitness Rating by requesting a subsequent Compliance Review, as follows:
 - **9.5.1.** The request for a subsequent Compliance Review must be made to the Chief in writing.
 - **9.5.2.** The request cannot be made by the motor carrier and will not be acted upon by

the CSP sooner than 90 days after the assignment of a proposed Safety Fitness Rating.

9.5.3. As part of the subsequent Compliance Review, a Compliance Review Investigator will review the corrective action(s) taken by the motor carrier since the last Compliance Review.

9.6. Request for an Administrative Review/Compliance Review Does Not Preempt Requests for Other Administrative/Compliance Reviews.

Requesting a review of a Safety Fitness Rating under Part 9.3 of these rules will not prevent a motor carrier from requesting a review of the same Safety Fitness Rating under Parts 9.4 or 9.5 of these rules. Conversely, a request to review initially under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Parts 9.3 or 9.5, nor will an initial request to review under Part 9.5 prohibit subsequent requests to review under Parts 9.3 or 9.4.

9.7. Final Safety Fitness Rating Assignment.

Absent any request from a motor carrier to administratively review a Compliance Review resulting in the assignment of a Safety Fitness Rating or any other request to change a Safety Fitness Rating from a motor carrier, a Safety Fitness Rating becomes final on the 91ST day following its assignment.

MCS 10. Compliance Reviews and Civil Penalties.

Under §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (c), CRS, the CSP has the exclusive enforcement authority to conduct Compliance Reviews as defined in 49 CFR 385.3 and to impose sanctions on motor carriers in the form of Civil Penalties for violations discovered as a result thereof. §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS, provides that any person who violates the rules adopted by the Chief under § Section 42-4-235 (4) (a), CRS, is subject to the Civil Penalties authorized by 49 CFR 386, Subpart G. §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS, authorizes the assessment of Civil Penalties against intrastate motor carriers determined to be operating in violation of these rules.

10.1. Determination of Civil Penalty Assessment.

The amount of a Civil Penalty Assessment against an intrastate motor carrier is influenced by the Civil Penalties authorized by 49 CFR 386 Subpart G, as it is codified into §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS. The following criteria are factors included in the determination of any intrastate Civil Penalty Assessment:

10.1.1. Scope of Review May Not Exceed 3 Years.

Consistent with <u>§-Section</u> 42-4-235 (2) (b) (II), CRS, an authorized CSP Enforcement Official will not consider more than three years of a motor carrier's safety compliance history when determining a Civil Penalty Assessment.

10.1.2. Applicability of 49 CFR 386 Subpart G to Intrastate Motor Carriers.

As codified into law through <u>§-Section</u> 42-4-235 (2) (b) (I), CRS, 49 CFR 386 Subpart G applies to the determination of Civil Penalties assessed against intrastate motor carriers thus that:

- **10.1.2.1.** The determination of an intrastate motor carrier Civil Penalty may include consideration of the nature and gravity of the violation(s) identified, the degree of culpability, and such other matters as justice and public safety may require.
- 10.1.2.2. The Civil Penalty Fine Schedules detailed within Appendices A and B to Subpart G of 49 CFR 386 are codified as a result of <u>§-Section</u> 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS. These fine schedules provide guidance and support for the determination determining and calculating-calculation of Civil Penalty Assessments. The Civil Penalty Fine Schedules of Appendices A and B to Subpart G of 49 CFR 386 are incorporated into these rules as is consistent with <u>§-Section</u> 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS.
- **10.1.2.3.** Provisions of 49 CFR 386 Subpart G relating the amount of a Civil Penalty Assessment to the ability of a motor carrier to pay the assessment are explicitly excluded. and They are not considered when determining or assessing a Civil Penalty against an intrastate motor carrier.
- 10.1.2.4. The intrastate operation of implements of husbandry is exempted from and-are is not subject to the Civil Penalties that may be assessed under §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS. §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS, does not repeal, preempt, or negate any existing regulatory agricultural exemption that is extended to any vehicle operated intrastate consistent with §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (b) (III), CRS.

10.2. Notice of Civil Penalty Assessment (NOC).

A Compliance Review may or may not result in the assessment of a Civil Penalty for violations discovered during a Compliance Review. If a Civil Penalty is assessed upon the completion of a Compliance Review, written notification of a Civil Penalty assessment will be served on a motor carrier in the form of a NOC.

10.3. Motor Carrier Response to Civil Penalty NOC Required.

A motor carrier must respond to the MCSS within 30 days of service of the NOC on the carrier by either:

- 10.3.1. Paying the full amount of the Civil Penalty as instructed in the NOC; or
- **10.3.2.** Submitting a written request for a payment plan to the Commander of the MCSS; or
- **10.3.3.** By submitting Submitting a written response requesting an administrative review of the Civil Penalty Assessment.

- **10.4.** Motor Carrier Requests for Administrative Review of Civil Penalty Assessments. If a motor carrier believes the CSP committed an error in the determination determining or assessing assessment of a Civil Penalty, a motor carrier may request an administrative review. The following provisions apply to the administrative review process:
 - **10.4.1.** A request for an administrative review of a Civil Penalty Assessment must be in writing and addressed to the Chief within 30 days of the service of the NOC.
 - **10.4.2.** A request must explain the error the motor carrier believes the CSP committed in determining or assessing the Civil Penalty. The written request must include a list of issues in dispute and any supporting information or documentation.
 - 10.4.3. The Chief or his or her designee may request additional information and/or request the motor carrier to attend an administrative review conference to discuss the penalty. A motor carrier must respond within 30 days of any request for additional information and will receive at least 30 Days' notice of any scheduled administrative review conference. Notice will be in person, by certified mail, or upon the agreement of the parties' agreement, by email.
 - **10.4.4.** The Chief or his or her designee will serve the motor carrier with a written decision within 30 days after the Chief or his or her designee has determined the administrative record is complete. An administrative record will not be determined complete before the end of any request or review conference and response period extended by the CSP to the motor carrier through 10.4.3.
 - **10.4.4.1.** The failure of a carrier to provide additional information as requested under 10.4.3 for purposes of an administrative review will be construed to mean the motor carrier has submitted their complete response.
 - **10.4.5.** Within 30 days after service of the written decision of the Chief or his or her designee, a motor carrier may appeal a Civil Penalty Assessment. Appeals must be in writing and addressed to the Chief. Additionally, appeals of civil penalties following an administrative review must:
 - **10.4.5.1.** Be mailed to the Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety Section.
 - **10.4.5.2.** Include a copy of the letter outlining the decision reached by the administrative review completed by the Chief or his or her designee.
 - **10.4.5.32.** A statement specifically outlining the error the motor carrier believes the Colorado State Patrol made in its sanctioning of the motor carrier, either in **determining** the determination of the violations or

assessing the assessment of the Civil Penalty.

- **10.4.5.43.** A list of any issues stipulated to, resolved, or upon which agreement was reached during the administrative review process.
- **10.4.5.54.** A list of any issues upon which agreement was not reached and remained in dispute or that the motor carrier finds to be in error despite the administrative review process.
- **10.4.5.65.** Whether the motor carrier is appealing the civil penalty in whole or in part and any legal documentation or authority available supporting or substantiating the motor carrier's position; and
- **10.4.5.76.** Whether the motor carrier requests that the hearing be presided over by an Administrative Law Judge from the Office of Administrative Courts instead of the Chief of the CSP or his or her designee.
- 10.4.6. Absent a specific request otherwise, the Chief of the CSP or his or her designee may preside over a hearing appealing a Civil Penalty after an administrative review. The Chief or his or her designee may withdraw and request an Administrative Law Judge from the Office of the Administrative Courts to be assigned and continue the hearing unless the withdrawal of the Chief or his or her designee would make it impossible for the CSP to render a decision.
- 10.4.7. The Chief or the Administrative Law Judge will serve the parties with a written decision within 30 days after the Chief or the Administrative Law Judge has determined that the administrative hearing record is complete. Upon agreement of the parties, Notice the notice will be in writing by certified mail or by email, and will also be made in person, or by certified mail, or by email upon agreement of the parties. This written decision will constitute a final agency action.
- 10.4.8. The motor carrier has 35 days from the date of a final agency decision to file an action in an appropriate district court under <u>§-Section</u> 24-4-106 (4), CRS.

10.5. Motor Carrier Failure to Respond or Cooperate.

A motor carrier who fails to cooperate with the completion of a Compliance Review or who fails to pay in full a Civil Penalty assessed consistent with these rules and §-Section 42-4-235 (2), CRS, is subject to additional statutory action.

- 10.5.1. Under §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (d) (I), CRS, the MCSS will forward to the CDOR the information of any motor carrier who does not cooperate with a request for a Compliance Review or who fails to pay a Civil Penalty Assessment in full 30 days subsequent notice of failure of a specified motor carrier to cooperate or pay.
- 10.5.2. The CDOR will take action against a motor carrier as authorized and required

under §-Section 42-3-120, CRS.

MCS 11. Information on These Rules.

All contact with the CSP concerning these rules or their applicability should be addressed to:

Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety Section 15075 S. Golden Rd. Golden, CO., 80401-3990 (303)-273-1875 (Office) (303)-273-1939 (Fax) MCSAP@state.co.us

MCS 12. Information Maintenance and Reference of Publications, Standards, Guidelines and Rules.

All publications, standards, guidelines, and rules adopted and incorporated by reference in these rules are on file and available for public inspection. These rules are available upon request from the MCSS at 15075 S. Golden Rd., Golden, CO., 80401-3990, during regular business hours and are also available online through the CDPS Rulemaking Information Website, <u>https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/get-involved/rules-and-regulations</u>.

12.1. Available for Public Inspection and Referenced Consistent with Statute.

All publications, standards, guidelines, and rules adopted and incorporated by reference by these rules are available for examination at any state publications depository as required by §-Section 24-4-103 (12.5), CRS. The following publications, standards, guidelines, and rules are adopted as each-are is amended by and within these rules and as is consistent with §-Section 24-4-103 (12.5), CRS. References here follow:

- 12.1.1. Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance (2024-2025), North American Standard Outof-Service Criteria (OOSC). April 1, 2024-2025. Greenbelt, MD: Author.
- 12.1.2. Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 40, 380, 382, 383, 385, 387, 390, 391-397, 399, and Appendix A (October 1, 2023-2024). This information is also available online through the FMCSA website, https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/regulations.
- 12.1.3. Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 386, Subpart G, and Appendices A and B thereto as codified by <u>§-Section</u> 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS. Appendices A and B to Subpart G of 49 CFR 386 may be found online through the FMCSA website, <u>https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/regulations</u>.

12.2. Maintenance of Copies.

The CSP will maintain complete texts of each of the publications, standards, and guidelines referenced herein and these rules.

12.3. Availability of Copies.

Interested parties may access information about referenced documents **online** free of charge-online. Interested parties may also inspect the referenced materials and/or obtain copies of any referenced publications, standards, or guidelines for a reasonable fee by contacting the CSP CRU. Copies of referenced publications, standards, and guidelines may also be available from the organizations or agencies of their origin.

- **12.3.1.** Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance (CVSA), 6303 Ivy Lane, Suite 310, Greenbelt, Maryland, 20770-6319. Phone: (301)-830-6143. Email: <u>cvsahq@cvsa.org</u>.
- 12.3.2. Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA), 1200 New Jersey Ave., SE, Room W-65-206, Washington, DC, 20590. Phone: 1 (800)-832-5660. Website: <u>www.fmcsa.dot.gov</u>.

MCS 13. Severability.

If any provision of these rules or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is determined to be unlawful or invalid, the remaining provisions of these rules will not be affected, absent a specific reference.

MCS 14. Effective Date.

The effective date of these rules is April 1, 2024-2025.

Summary of Proposed Changes Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles

Purpose:

This document is developed as a companion to assist in the reading and understanding changes proposed to 8 CCR 1507-1, the Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles. Changes proposed in the redlined rules filed with the Colorado Secretary of State and the Colorado Department of Regulatory Agencies are discussed in the order they appear in the redlined document. Changes are identified by section with a description of the change proposed. Included with each change is an explanation for the change.

Accessibility Editing Note:

The redlined rules include formatting updates and minor edits not affecting the content or interpretation of 8 CCR 1507-1 necessary to comply with the document accessibility standards required by Section 24-34-802, CRS. Changes to these rules to comply with the accessibility standards include changing capitalized text to mixed-case or lower-case text, removing underlined text, increasing font size, exchanging symbols for words throughout the document, enabling hyperlinked text associated with website addresses, and adjustments to the physical paragraph structure of the document to more effectively support bookmarking for electronic reading software.

The Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety Section is committed to supporting effective communication and access to these rules by all members of the public. If you experience

difficulty with or are unable to use this document, please go to <u>https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/accessibility-interpretation-and-translation-support</u> or contact the Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety Section at (303)-273-1875 for assistance.

Page 1: Table of Contents:

The Table of Contents is a new addition and appears in red text. The Table of Contents outlines these rules by section and supports efficient document navigation. Although not required, including a Table of Contents in longer documents is a best practice supported by the state accessibility rules and Section 24-34-802, CRS. The Table of Contents is beneficial to all readers viewing the rules electronically but is especially helpful for those members of the public viewing the document using e-reading programs.

Page 3: MCS 2- grammar correction:

The grammar is corrected in MCS 2, exchanging the word "who" with "that" and eliminating the unnecessary phrase "they are" so that the resulting sentence reads, "These rules and regulations apply to individuals, corporations, Colorado government or governmental subdivisions or agencies, or other legal entities **that** operate commercial vehicles as they are defined in §-Section 42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS," instead of "These rules and regulations apply to individuals, corporations, Colorado government or governmental subdivisions or agencies, or other legal entities who operate commercial and regulations apply to individuals, corporations, Colorado government or governmental subdivisions or agencies, or other legal entities who operate commercial vehicles as they are defined in §-Section 42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS."

Page 3: MCS 3- removal of unnecessary phrase:

The word "found" is removed from the second sentence of MCS 3 because it is unnecessary and does not add value to the communication. As updated, the sentence reads, "Definitions relevant to these rules are in Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations," instead of "Definitions relevant to these rules are found in Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations."

Page 4, Subpart MCS 3.1, punctuation correction:

Subpart MCS 3.1, the definition of Action, is updated to correct for a missing comma after the word "relief" and before the words "or the equivalent thereof." As updated, Subpart MCS 3.1 reads, "Action: Consistent with Section 24-4-102 (1), CRS, and as used within these rules, an action includes the whole or any part of any agency rule, order, interlocutory order, license, sanction, relief, or the equivalent or the denial thereof, or failure to act," instead of "Action: Consistent with Section 24-4-102 (1), CRS, and as used within these rules, an action includes the whole or any part of any agency rule, order, failure to act," instead of "Action: Consistent with Section 24-4-102 (1), CRS, and as used within these rules, an action includes the whole or any part of any agency rule, order, interlocutory order, license, sanction, relief or the equivalent or the denial thereof, or failure to act."

Page 4, Subpart MCS 3.3, new definition- Authorized Enforcement Official:

Authorized Enforcement Official is a new definition proposed to be included in this version of the rules and appears in red text. Alphabetically, this new definition fits in after "Aggrieved," which appears in the rules as Subpart MCS 3.2 and before CDL, which was formerly assigned to Subpart MCS 3.3 and is pushed forward to Subpart MCS 3.4 as a result of the insertion of this new definition. As proposed, this definition reads,

"Authorized Enforcement Official: Enforcement Officials, as defined within these rules, who are also certified to complete commercial vehicle inspections under Section 42-4-235 (4) (a), CRS, are authorized to perform commercial vehicle inspections consistent with their certification level. Level I CVSA-certified Colorado State Patrol Troopers assigned to the Motor Carrier Safety Section are the only Colorado law enforcement officials authorized to perform Compliance Reviews on and to assign Safety Ratings for commercial motor carrier operators or drivers." This definition is proposed to clarify and identify which law enforcement officials are authorized to complete commercial vehicle inspections and/or compliance reviews and the criteria that officers must satisfy.

Pages 4 – 7, Subparts MCS 3.3 through MCS 3.39- renumbering of subparts as a result of the insertion of "Authorized Enforcement Official":

To preserve the alphabetical nature of the definitions in the rules, the new definition of "Authorized Enforcement Official" must be inserted as existing subpart MCS 3.3, and "CDL" must be renumbered as subpart MCS 3.4. All other definitions throughout MCS 3 must be renumbered one subpart forward, adding new subpart 3.39 for "USDOT Number," previously numbered as subpart 3.38. All of the renumbered subparts are for definitions previously existing in these rules.

Page 5, Subpart MCS 3.14, deletion of the unnecessary phrase:

The phrase "in place" is deleted as unnecessary and potentially confusing. As revised, the definition reads, "Conditional Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standards that could result in the occurrences listed in 49 CFR 385.5," instead of "Conditional Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standards that could result in the occurrences listed in 49 CFR 385.5."

Page 5, Subpart MCS 3.20, deletion of the unnecessary phrase:

The phrase "it is" is deleted as unnecessary. As revised, the definition reads, "Enforcement Official: The definition of an Enforcement Official will be as defined by Sections 16-2.5-101, 16-2.5-114, 16-2.5-115, and 16-2.5-143, and as outlined in Section 42-20-103 (2), CRS," instead of "Enforcement Official: The definition of an Enforcement Official will be as it is defined by Sections 16-2.5-101, 16-2.5-114, 16-2.5-115, and 16-2.5-143, and as outlined in Section 42-20-103 (2), CRS."

Page 6, Subpart MCS 3.29, deletion of the unnecessary phrase:

The phrase "it is" is deleted as unnecessary. As proposed, the definition reads, "Motor Carrier: The definition of a motor carrier will be as outlined in Section 42-4-235 (1) (c), CRS," instead of "Motor Carrier: The definition of a motor carrier will be as it is outlined in Section 42-4-235 (1) (c), CRS."

Pages 6 – 7, Subpart MCS 3.34. addition of comma to the second sentence:

A comma is added to the second sentence after "including civil penalties." As updated, the second sentence reads, "Sanction also applies to the imposition of any form of penalty or fine, including civil penalties, as they are assessed to be consistent with state statutes and these rules," instead of "Sanction also applies to the imposition of

any form of penalty or fine, including civil penalties as they are assessed to be consistent with state statutes and these rules."

Page 7, Subpart MCS 3.38, deletion of the unnecessary phrase:

The phrase "in place" is deleted as unnecessary and potentially confusing. As revised, the definition reads, "Unsatisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standard, resulting in occurrences as listed in 49 CFR 385.5" instead of "Unsatisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls to ensure does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standard, resulting in occurrences as listed in 49 CFR 385.5."

Page 7, Subpart MCS 3.39, new subpart MCS 3.39 and grammar correction:

Subpart MCS 3.39 is a new subpart for a preexisting definition, "USDOT Number." The definition is corrected by removing the word "an" after "time of" and before "application submission." As corrected, the definition reads, "USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number can be for intrastate or interstate use, depending on the information provided by the motor carrier to the FMCSA at the time of application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier record," instead of "USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier record, instead of "USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier record, instead of "USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number can be for intrastate or interstate use, depending on the information provided by the motor carrier to the to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number can be for intrastate or interstate use, depending on the information provided by the motor carrier to the FMCSA at the time of an application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier for the function provided by the motor carrier to the FMCSA at the time of an application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier record."

Page 8, MCS 4, the addition of the word "all" to the sentence:

MCS 4 is edited to insert the word "all" after "will at" and before "times have" into the sentence where it appeared previously in the rules before last year's adoptions. The word "all" was edited out of MCS 4 in error. As corrected, MCS 4 reads, "Authorized Enforcement Officials will at **all** times have the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents consistent with Part MCS 4 of these rules," instead of "Authorized Enforcement Officials will at times have the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, and any required documents consistent with Part MCS 4 of these rules," instead of "Authorized Enforcement Officials will at times have the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents consistent with Part the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents consistent with Part the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents consistent with Part the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents consistent with Part MCS 4 of these rules."

Page 8, Sub-subpart MCS 4.1.1, publication date update:

The CVSA Operations Manual is updated annually each April. The most current version of this manual will be published on April 1, 2025, and will be available at the same time these rules become effective. To ensure that these rules reference the CVSA Operations Manual's correct version, the publication year must be updated from 2024 to 2025. As revised, the end of MCS Sub-subpart 4.1.1. is amended to read "...effective April 1, **2025**," instead of "...effective April 1, **2024**."

Page 8, Subpart MCS 4.2, publication date update:

The Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations (FMCSRs), which appear as part of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFRs), are updated annually every October. The FMCSRs in effect presently at the time of this rulemaking were published October 1, 2024, and are the rules being referenced within this version of the rules. Consequently, it is necessary

to update the year of publication appearing in these rules from 2023 to 2024. The end of the sentence for Subpart MCS 4.2. is updated to read, "...as revised October 1, **2024**," instead of "...as revised October 1, **2023**."

Page 8, Subpart MCS 4.3, publication date update:

As previously stated, the FMCSRs, which appear as part of the CFRs, are updated annually every October. The FMCSRs in effect presently at the time of this rulemaking were published October 1, 2024, and are the rules being referenced within this version of the rules. Consequently, it is necessary to update the year of publication appearing in these rules from 2023 to 2024. The end of the sentence for Subpart MCS 4.3 is updated to read, "...revised October 1, 2024," instead of "revised October 1, 2023."

Page 8, Subpart MCS 5.1, publication date update:

The CVSA bylaws appear within the CVSA Operations Manual. As stated previously in MCS Sub-subpart 4.1.1, the CVSA Operations Manual referenced inclusive of the CVSA bylaws, inspector level, and methods of inspection guidelines, and the OOS criteria referenced by these rules are those as revised and effective April 1, 2025. To ensure the proper bylaws are referenced, the publication year in subpart MCS 5.1 must be updated from 2024 to 2025. The last part of the sentence in subpart MCS 5.1 is updated to read, "...as they are revised and effective April 1, **2025**," instead of "...as they are revised and effective April 1, **2024**."

Page 9, MCS 3, publication date update:

The FMCSRs, which appear as part of the CFRs, are updated annually every October. The FMCSRs in effect presently at the time of this rulemaking were published October 1, 2024, and are the rules being referenced within this version of the rules. Consequently, it is necessary to update the year of publication appearing in these rules from 2023 to 2024. Following the list of sections appearing in the middle of the paragraph, the sentence is updated in part to read, "of the FMCSA as the same were effective October 1, **2024**," instead of "of the FMCSA as the same were effective October 1, **2023**."

Page 10, MCS Sub-subpart 6.3.1, added a comma to the sentence:

A comma has been added to MCS Sub-subpart 6.3.1 to improve its readability. As revised, the sentence reads, "49 CFR 385.309 through 385.319 (a), hereafter referred to collectively as the Colorado Intrastate New Entrant Safety Assurance Program, applies to intrastate motor carriers who are beginning intrastate operations and are required to obtain an intrastate USDOT number from the FMCSA," instead of "49 CFR 385.309 through 385.319 (a), hereafter referred to collectively as the Colorado Intrastate New Entrant Safety Assurance Program applies to intrastate motor carriers who are beginning intrastate motor carriers who are beginning intrastate operations and are required to obtain an intrastate USDOT number from the FMCSA," instead of "49 CFR 385.309 through 385.319 (a), hereafter referred to collectively as the Colorado Intrastate New Entrant Safety Assurance Program applies to intrastate motor carriers who are beginning intrastate operations and are required to obtain an intrastate USDOT number from the FMCSA."

Page 10, MCS Sub-subpart 6.3.2., exchanged "at" for an unnecessary phrase:

MCS Sub-subpart 6.3.2. is updated to replace an unnecessary phrase with the word "at" to improve overall message delivery. Revised, the sentence reads, "Intrastate motor carriers can confirm if they need a USDOT number and complete an intrastate application online at <u>https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/registration/do-i-need-usdot-number</u>," instead of "Intrastate motor carriers can confirm if they need a USDOT

number and complete an intrastate application only by going to https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/registration/do-i-need-usdot-number."

Page 10, MCS Subpart 6.4, second sentence updated to improve readability:

The second sentence of MCS Subpart 6.4 is updated to improve message delivery and readability. As revised, the sentence reads, "**These** same provisions do not apply to commercial vehicles operated by river outfitters regulated by the Colorado Department of Natural Resources, Division of Wildlife, under 2 CCR 405-3," instead of "**Additionally**, **these** same provisions do not apply to commercial vehicles operated by river outfitters regulated by river outfitters regulated by the Colorado Department 2 CCR 405-3," instead of "Additionally, **these** same provisions do not apply to commercial vehicles operated by river outfitters regulated by the Colorado Department of Natural Resources, Division of Wildlife, under 2 CCR 405-3."

Page 11, MCS Sub-subpart 6.6.2, sentence updated to improve readability:

The sentence is updated to improve message delivery and readability. The phrase "through the addition of" is deleted, and "by adding" is suggested. As revised, the sentence reads, "The definition of an "emergency" is amended **by adding** the following: "A governmental agency has determined that a local emergency requires relief from the maximum driving time in 49 CFR 395.3 or 395.5," instead of "The definition of an "emergency" is amended by through the addition of the following: "A governmental agency has determined that a local emergency requires relief from the maximum driving time in 49 CFR 395.3 or 395.5," instead of "The definition of an "emergency" is amended by through the addition of the following: "A governmental agency has determined that a local emergency requires relief from the maximum driving time in 49 CFR 395.3 or 395.5."

Page 11, MCS Sub-subpart 6.7.1, sentence updated to improve readability:

The sentence is updated to improve message delivery and readability and to read in the present rather than past tense. As updated, the sentence reads, "**The FMCSA processes** USDOT numbers for intrastate motor carriers," instead of "USDOT numbers for intrastate motor carriers," instead of "USDOT numbers for intrastate motor carriers are processed by the FMCSA."

Page 12, MCS Subpart 6.10, grammar correction:

The grammar in MCS Subpart 6.10 is corrected, and the sentence is updated to read in part "...or local enforcement agencies **with** a signed MOU with the CSP and their authorized personnel" instead of "...or local agencies **who have** a signed MOU with the CSP and their authorized personnel."

Page 12, MCS Sub-subpart 6.12.2, sentence updated to correct punctuation and improve readability:

The sentence is updated to correct punctuation and to improve readability and message delivery. The word "thereof" after the word "subdivision" is removed, and a comma is removed after the word "Colorado" in exchange for the insertion of the word "and" after the word "Colorado" and before the word "not." The status of "political subdivision" in the sentence is also clarified through the insertion of "a" in front of "political subdivision." As revised, the sentence reads, "Vehicles owned and operated by the federal government or state government or **a** political subdivision not domiciled in Colorado and not transporting hazardous materials of a type and quantity requiring the vehicle to be marked or placarded under 49 CFR 172.504," instead of "Vehicles owned and operated by the federal government or state government or state government or political subdivision thereof not domiciled in Colorado, not transporting hazardous materials of a type and quantity requiring the vehicle to be marked or placarded under 49 CFR 172.504," instead of "Vehicles owned and operated by the federal government or state government or state government or political subdivision thereof not domiciled in Colorado, not transporting hazardous materials of a type and quantity requiring the vehicle to be marked or placarded under 49 CFR 172.504," instead of "Vehicles owned and operated by the federal government or state government or state government or political subdivision thereof not domiciled in Colorado, not transporting hazardous materials of a type and quantity requiring the vehicle to be marked or placarded under 49 CFR

172.504."

Page 13, MCS 7, Update of Title Part:

The part title has been updated to read "Use and Carry of Traction Devices" instead of "Traction Devices are Required."

Page 13, MCS Subpart 7.1, New Subpart 7.1 "Drivers Must Carry Chains":

This version of the rules includes a new subpart and subpart title: MCS 7.1. The title "Drivers Must Carry Chains" appears in red text.

Page 13, MCS Subpart 7.1 (inclusive of sub-subparts 7.1.1 through 7.1.7), legislative and statutory update revising existing rules:

During the 2024 Legislative Session, the Colorado Legislature passed SB 24-100, which amended 42-4-106, CRS, and Governor Polis signed it into law. This legislation updates the commercial vehicle chain law, extending its geographic and physical impact on commercial vehicle operations within Colorado. The rules must be updated to remain consistent with the statutory changes resulting from this legislation. The sentences that appeared as part of MCS 7 are now divided into MCS Sub-subparts 7.1 and 7.2, with the text of each sub-subpart including some of the language that made up the former MCS 7. Much of the text from former MCS 7 appearing in MCS Subpart 7.1 is superseded and marked as strike out for deletion.

As inserted, the new MCS Subpart 7.1 (inclusive of sub-subparts 7.1.1 through 7.1.7) reads, "Drivers must carry chains consistent with Section 42-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS, when operating vehicles in commerce designed to carry 16 or more passengers (including the driver) or having a combined weight of 16,001 lbs. or more (except for mobile cranes) on the following public highways between September 1st and May 31st:

- 7.1.1. I-70 West of milepost 259 in Morrison, Colorado.
- 7.1.2. Colorado Highway 9, from milepost 63 to milepost 97, between Frisco and Fairplay, Colorado.
- 7.1.3. US Route 40 West of milepost 259 in Empire, Colorado.
- 7.1.4. US Route 50 West of milepost 225 in Salida, Colorado.
- 7.1.5. US Route 160 West of milepost 250 in Morrison, Colorado.
- 7.1.6. US Route 550 between mileposts 0 and 130,

Instead of "Drivers operating a commercial vehicle as defined in CDOT Rule 2 CCR 601-14, except for mobile cranes, operating on Interstate 70 between mileposts 133 and 259 between September 1st and May 31st must carry tire chains consistent with the requirements detailed within Section 42-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS."

Page 13, New Subpart MCS 7.2 "Use of Chains and Alternative Traction Devices": This version of the rules includes a new subpart and subpart title: MCS 7.2. The title "Use of Chains and Alternative Traction Devices" appears in red text.

Page 13, MCS Subpart 7.2, legislative and statutory update revising existing rules:

Again, in response to statutory changes prompted by SB 24-100, Subpart 7.2 updates the rules to remain consistent with the state statute concerning the use of chains and alternative traction devices. Language from MCS 7 is retained as part of the new MCS subpart 7.2 and appears in the standard text; language added to achieve statutory compliance appears in bold red font. As proposed, MCS Subpart 7.2 reads, "The use of

chains by drivers of commercial vehicles must occur consistent with the requirements set forth within Section 42+-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS. Drivers of commercial vehicles may use Alternative Traction Devices (ATDs), including tire cables, auto socks, or sanders, as each is defined and as their use is consistent with 2 CCR 601-14." Previously, the phrase "may also be used" appeared in the text when discussing the use of ATDs, but this has been deleted for this version.

Pages 13 -14, MCS Subpart 8.1, grammar correction:

The grammar in the second half of the sentence in MCS Subpart 8.1. is corrected to exchange the word "which" appearing after the word "standards" with the word "that." As revised, the second part of the sentence reads in part, "...combined with the satisfaction of any applicable performance standards **that** support a decision that a medical condition has no adverse impact on safety," instead of "...combined with the satisfaction of any applicable performance standards **which** support a decision that a medical condition has no adverse impact on safety," instead of "...combined with the satisfaction of any applicable performance standards **which** support a decision that a medical condition has no adverse impact on safety."

Page 15, MCS Subpart 8.6, sentence updated to improve readability:

The sentence is updated to improve message delivery and readability. As revised, the sentence reads, "A medical waiver may be revoked **if** the CSP determines that **issuing** a waiver to a driver does not promote safety, protect human life, or preserve the highways of this state," instead of "A medical waiver may be revoked **where** the CSP determines that **issue of** a waiver to a driver does not promote safety, protect human life, or preserve the highways of this state."

Page 15, MCS Sub-subpart 8.6.1, sentence updated to improve readability:

The sentence is updated to improve message delivery and readability and to revise it to read in the present tense. As updated, the sentence reads, "The CSP may revoke a medical waiver when a waiver holder fails to comply with the applicable terms and conditions of the CSP Medical Waiver Program," instead of "A medical waiver may be revoked by the CSP when a waiver holder fails to comply with the applicable terms and conditions of the CSP Medical Waiver Program."

Page 15, MCS Subpart 8.7, sentence updated to improve readability and correct punctuation: The second sentence of MCS Subpart 8.7 is updated to improve readability and correct punctuation errors. As updated, the sentence reads, "Notice of this hearing will be in writing and will give the waiver applicant at least 30 days'-notice of the time, date, place, and nature of the hearing," instead of "Notice of this hearing will be in writing and will provide the waiver applicant at least 30 days' notice of the time, date, place and nature of the hearing."

Page 15, MCS Subpart 8.8, sentence updated to improve readability:

The first two sentences of MCS Subpart 8.8 are updated to improve their readability and message delivery by removing unnecessary phrases. As proposed, the sentences are revised to read, "Within 30 days of the completion of a hearing or the failure of the waiver holder to file a written answer in response **to it**, the Chief or his or her designee will issue a decision either affirming the revocation or reinstating the medical waiver. Within 30 days of receiving written notice from the MCSS revoking a medical waiver, the aggrieved holder may submit an exception or appeal" instead of "Within 30 days of the

completion of a hearing or the failure of the waiver holder to file a written answer in response **thereto**, the Chief or his or her designee will issue a decision either affirming the revocation or reinstating the medical waiver. Within 30 days of receiving written notice from the MCSS revoking a medical waiver, the aggrieved holder **of a medical waiver** may submit an exception or appeal.

Page 16, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 8.8.4.1, grammar correction:

The grammar in MCS Sub-subpart 8.8.4.1 is corrected so that the sentence reads, "If the Chief finds by **a** preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is sufficient, revocation of the medical waiver will be sustained," instead of "if the Chief finds by preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is sufficient, revocation of the medical waiver will be sustained."

Page 16, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 8.8.4.2, grammar correction:

The grammar in MCS Sub-subpart 8.8.4.2 is corrected so that the sentence reads, "If the Chief finds by **a** preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is sufficient, revocation of the medical waiver will be sustained," instead of "if the Chief finds by preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is sufficient, revocation of the medical waiver will be sustained."

Page 17, MCS Subpart 9.4, grammar correction:

The grammar is corrected to update the pronoun usage in the first sentence of MCS Subpart 9.4. The sentence is revised to read, "An intrastate motor carrier may request a change to **its'** Safety Fitness Rating based on corrective actions completed by the motor carrier," instead of "An intrastate motor carrier may request a change to **their** Safety Fitness Rating based on corrective actions completed by the motor carrier."

Page 19, MCS Subpart 9.6, punctuation correction:

The punctuation in the second sentence is updated by adding a comma after "under Parts 9.3 or 9.5" and before "nor will an initial request." As revised, the second sentence reads, "Conversely, a request to review initially under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Parts 9.3 or 9.5, nor will an initial request to review under Part 9.5 prohibit subsequent requests to review under Parts 9.3 or 9.4," instead of "Conversely, a request to review initially under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests to review under Parts 9.3 or 9.4," instead of "Conversely, a request to review initially under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Parts 9.3 or 9.5 nor will an initial request to review under Part 9.5 prohibit subsequent requests to review under Parts 9.3 or 9.4."

Page 20, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.2, sentence updated to correct readability:

The second sentence of MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.2 is updated to correct readability and deliver the sentence's message in the active tense. As updated, the sentence reads, "These fine schedules provide guidance and support for **determining** and **calculating** Civil Penalty Assessments," instead of "These fine schedules provide guidance and support for **the determination** and **calculation of** Civil Penalty Assessments."

Page 20, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.3, updated to improve readability:

MCS Sub-subpart 10.1.2.3 is updated from a single sentence into two sentences, and the word "and" is deleted to separate the sentences. As revised, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.3 reads, "Provisions of 49 CFR 386 Subpart G relating the amount of a Civil Penalty Assessment to the ability of a motor carrier to pay the assessment are

explicitly excluded. **They** are not considered when determining or assessing a Civil Penalty against an intrastate motor carrier," instead of "Provisions of 49 CFR 386 Subpart G relating the amount of a Civil Penalty Assessment to the ability of a motor carrier to pay the assessment to the ability of a motor carrier to pay the assessment are explicitly excluded **and they** are not considered when determining or assessing a Civil Penalty against an intrastate motor carrier."

Page 20, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.4, grammar correction:

The first sentence of MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.4 is updated to correct the grammar, exchanging "are" for "is." As revised, the sentence reads, "The intrastate operation of implements of husbandry is exempted from and **is** not subject to the Civil Penalties that may be assessed under Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS," instead of "The intrastate operation of implements of husbandry **are** exempted from and is not subject to the Civil Penalties that Penalties that may be assessed under Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS," instead of "The intrastate operation of implements of husbandry **are** exempted from and is not subject to the Civil Penalties that may be assessed under Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS."

Page 20, MCS Sub-subpart 10.3.3, updated to improve readability:

MCS Sub-subpart 10.3.3 is updated to improve its readability. The phrase "By submitting" is deleted from the beginning of the sentence, and "Submitting" begins the sentence. Updated, MCS Sub-subpart 10.3.3 reads, "**Submitting** a written response requesting an administrative review of a Civil Penalty Assessment," instead of "**By submitting** a written response requesting an administrative review of the Civil Penalty Assessment."

Pages 20 – 21, MCS Subpart 10.4, updated to improve readability:

The first sentence of MCS Subpart 10.4 is updated to improve its readability and deliver the message in an active tense. The first sentence is revised to read, "If a motor carrier believes the CSP committed an error **determining** or **assessing** a Civil Penalty, a motor carrier may request an administrative review," instead of "If a motor carrier believes the CSP committed an error in **the determination** or **assessment of** a Civil Penalty, a motor carrier may request an administrative review."

Page 21, MCS Sub-subpart 10.4.3, updated to improve readability:

The last sentence of MCS Sub-subpart 10.4.3 is updated to improve readability. As revised, the sentence reads, "Notice will be in person, by certified mail, or upon the parties' agreement, by email," instead of "Notice will be in person, by certified mail, or upon the agreement of the parties, by email."

Page 21 – 22, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.4.5.2 (as duplicated) through 10.4.5.7, updated to correct numbering sequence:

The numbering sequence is in error. MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.4.5.2 is duplicated, appearing twice. The duplicate 10.4.5.2 is renumbered by one to 10.4.5.3, 10.4.5.3 is renumbered to 10.4.5.4, 10.4.5.5 is renumbered to 10.4.5.6, and 10.4.5.6 is renumbered to new sub-subpart 10.4.5.7.

Page 21, MCS Sub-sub-subpart (duplicate) 10.4.5.2 (as renumbered to 10.4.5.3, updated to improve readability:

MCS Sub-subpart 10.4.5.2, duplicated and renumbered as 10.4.5.3, has been updated to improve readability and deliver the message in an active tense. As updated, the sentence reads in part, "...either in **determining** the violations or **assessing** the Civil

Penalty," instead of "either in **the determination of** the violations or **the assessment of** the Civil Penalty."

Page 22, MCS Sub-subpart 10.4.7, updated to improve readability:

The second sentence of MCS Sub-subpart 10.4.7 has been updated to improve readability and message delivery. Revised, it reads, "Upon agreement of the parties, the notice will be in writing by certified mail or by email, and will also be made in person," instead of "Notice will be in writing, and be made in person, or by certified mail, or by email upon agreement of the parties."

Page 23, MCS Subpart 12.1, grammar correction:

The grammar in the second sentence of MCS 12.1 is corrected, exchanging the word "are" for the word "is." As corrected, the second sentence reads, "The following publications, standards, guidelines, and rules are adopted as each is amended by and within these rules and as **is** consistent with Section 24-4-103 (12.5), CRS," instead of "The following publications, standards, guidelines, and rules are adopted as each is amended by and within these rules and as **is** consistent with Section 24-4-103 (12.5), CRS," instead of "The following publications, standards, guidelines, and rules are adopted as each is amended by and within these rules and as **are** consistent with Section 24-4-103 (12.5), CRS."

Page 23, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 12.1.1, date of publication update:

The year and date of publication for the CVSA North American Standard Out-of-Service Criteria (OOSC) must be updated to be consistent with the version referenced within these redlined rules. The version referenced within these rules is the version that will be effective April 1, 2025. The year 2024 in MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.1 must be updated to 2025. As updated, MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.1 reads, "Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance (2025), North American Standard Out-of-Service Criteria (OOSC). April 1, 2025. Greenbelt, MD: Author," instead of "Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance (2024), North American Standard Out-of-Service Criteria (OOSC). April 1, 2024. Greenbelt, MD: Author."

Page 23, MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.2, date of publication update:

The year and date of publication for the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations (FMCSRs) referenced within these redlined rules must be updated to reference the correct version. The version referenced throughout these redlined rules has a publication date of October 1, 2024. The year in MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.2 must be updated from 2023 to 2024. As updated, the first sentence of MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.2 reads, "Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 40, 380, 382, 383, 385, 387, 390, 391-397, 399, and Appendix A (October 1, **2024**)," instead of "Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 40, 380, 385, 387, 390, 391-397, 399, and Appendix A (October 1, **2023**)."

Page 23, MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.3, updated to improve readability:

The first sentence of MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.3 is updated to improve readability by deleting the word "thereto." As revised, the sentence reads, "Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 386, Subpart G, and Appendices A and B as codified by Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS," instead of "Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 386, Subpart G, and Appendices A and B **thereto** as codified by Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS."

Pages 23 – 24, MCS Subpart 12.3, updated to improve readability:

The first sentence of MCS Subpart 12.3 is updated to improve readability. As updated, the sentence reads, "Interested parties may access information about referenced documents **online** free of charge," instead of "Interested parties may access information about referenced documents free of charge **online**."

Page 24, MCS 14, Effective Date updated.

These rules are updated annually, and the effective date of these rules must be updated to reflect that they will become effective in 2025. The year of 2024 must be changed to 2025. The sentence is revised to read, "The effective date of these rules is April 1, **2025**," instead of "The effective date of these rules is April 1, **2024**."

No responses were received by the CSP on the Motor Carrier Safety Rules

Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles

Accessibility Editing Note:

Document formatting adjustments that do not affect the content or interpretation of these rules have been made throughout this document to comply with the state accessibility standards required under Section 24-34-802, CRS. Examples of these formatting adjustments include changing capitalized text to mixed-case or lower-case text, removing underlining, increasing font size, using words instead of symbols, enabling hyperlink text, and adjusting the structure of the paragraphs to allow for electronic bookmarking to support electronic readers. The CSP Motor Carrier Safety Section is committed to supporting effective communication and access to these rules by all members of the public. If you experience difficulty with or are unable to use this document, please go to https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/accessibility-interpretation-and-translation-support or contact the CSP Motor Carrier Safety Section at (303) 273-1875 for assistance.

Disclaimer:

This draft is filed with the Department of State and submitted to the Department of Regulatory Agencies, consistent with Sections 24-4-103 (2.5) and (3) (a), CRS, of the State Administrative Procedure Act. This preliminary draft may be revised before the public rulemaking hearing on January 17, 2025. If any changes are made, a revised copy of the rules and any supporting documents will be made available to the public and posted on the Colorado Department of Public Safety Rulemaking Information website at <u>https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/get-involved/cdps-rules-and-regulations</u>. Any updates or revisions will be made available as required by Sections 24-4-103 (4) (a), CRS, and posted to the Colorado Department of Public Safety Rulemaking Information website no later than January 11, 2025.

Table of Contents

Rules and	Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles	1
MCS 1:	Authority to Adopt Standards and Specifications.	3
MCS 2:	Applicability	3
2.1.	Compliance with 8 CCR 1507-25 as Appropriate	3
2.2.	Approval of Temporary Rule Variance(s).	3
MCS 3:	General Definitions.	3
MCS 4:	Authority to Inspect Vehicles, Drivers, Cargo, Books, and Records	7
4.1.	Safety Inspections	8
4.2.	Authority to Inspect	8
4.3.	Authority to Conduct Compliance Reviews and Safety Audits.	8
MCS 5:	Inspection Standards and Reports	8
5.1.	CVSA Bylaws as General Inspection Guidelines.	
5.2.	Minimum Information and Report Disposition	8

MCS 6: 6.1.	State Adoption of FMCSR
6.2.	Entry-Level Driver Training9
6.3.	New Entrant Safety Program9
6.4.	Financial Responsibility (Insurance) of Motor Carriers10
6.5.	Amended General Applicability of the FMCSR10
6.6.	Amended Applicability of FMCSR Definitions10
6.7.	Amended Motor Carrier Identification Requirements
6.8.	Age of Drivers Operating in Interstate Commerce11
6.9.	Amending HOS and Applicability Thereof
6.10 .	References to Federal Agencies to Include State Agencies12
6.11.	Filing of Information Related to FMCSR Reporting Requirements12
6.12.	Other General Exceptions12
MCS 7: MCS 7	Use and Carry of Traction Devices are Required 13 .1. Drivers Must Carry Chains13
MCS 7	.2. Use of Chains and Alternative Traction Devices
MCS 8: 8.1.	Intrastate Medical Waivers
8.2.	Medical Waiver Information Available Online
8.3.	Written Notice of Terms and Conditions14
8.4.	Denial of Medical Waiver Application14
8.5.	Appeal of Medical Waiver Denial
8.6.	Medical Waiver Revocation15
8.7.	Right to Hearing Upon Medical Waiver Revocation15
8.8.	Right to Appeal Medical Waiver Revocation
MCS 9. 9.1.	Compliance Reviews and the Assignment of Intrastate Safety Fitness Ratings16 Exclusive Authority to Conduct Compliance Reviews
9.2.	Application of Intrastate Carrier Safety Ratings16
9.3.	Administrative Review of Safety Fitness Rating
9.4.	Motor Carrier Request to Change Safety Fitness Rating for Corrective Action(s)17
9.5.	Motor Carrier Request to Change Safety Fitness Rating Through Compliance Review18
9.6. for Otl	Request for an Administrative Review/Compliance Review Does Not Preempt Requests ner Administrative/Compliance Reviews19
9.7.	Final Safety Fitness Rating Assignment19
MCS 10. 10.1.	Compliance Reviews and Civil Penalties
10.2.	Notice of Civil Penalty Assessment (NOC)20

10.3.	Motor Carrier Response to Civil Penalty NOC Required20
10.4.	Motor Carrier Requests for Administrative Review of Civil Penalty Assessments21
10.5.	Motor Carrier Failure to Respond or Cooperate22
MCS 11. MCS 12. Rules.	Information on These Rules23 Information Maintenance and Reference of Publications, Standards, Guidelines and 23
12.1.	Available for Public Inspection and Referenced Consistent with Statute
12.2.	Maintenance of Copies23
12.3.	Availability of Copies24
MCS 13.	Severability24
MCS 14.	Effective Date

MCS 1: Authority to Adopt Standards and Specifications.

The Chief of the Colorado State Patrol is authorized by the provisions of <u>§-Section</u> 42-4-235 (4) (a) (i), CRS, to adopt rules and regulations setting safety standards and specifications for the operation of all commercial vehicles in Colorado, both in interstate and intrastate transportation.

MCS 2: Applicability.

These rules and regulations apply to individuals, corporations, Colorado government or governmental subdivisions or agencies, or other legal entities who that operate commercial vehicles as they are defined in §-Section 42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS.

2.1. Compliance with 8 CCR 1507-25 as Appropriate.

In addition to this rule, any person who transports hazardous materials as defined in 49 CFR 171.8 and §-Section 42-20-103 (3), CRS, and/or nuclear materials as defined in § Section 42-20-402 (3) (a) – (c), CRS, must operate consistent with 8 CCR 1507-25, the CSP Rules and Regulations Concerning the Permitting, Routing, and Transportation of Hazardous and Nuclear Materials and the Intrastate Transportation of Agricultural Products in the State of Colorado.

2.2. Approval of Temporary Rule Variance(s).

Provided a variance is not in violation of <u>§-Section</u> 42-4-235, CRS, the CSP Motor Carrier Safety Section (MCSS) may consider and grant requests of intrastate commercial motor carriers for temporary variances from these rules.

MCS 3: General Definitions.

The following definitions apply throughout these rules unless otherwise specified. Definitions relevant to these rules are found in Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations. These definitions are amended to maintain consistency with the Colorado Revised Statutes as necessary.

3.1. Action: Consistent with §-Section 24-4-102 (1), CRS, and as used within these rules, an

action includes the whole or any part of any agency rule, order, interlocutory order, license, sanction, relief, or the equivalent or the denial thereof, or failure to act.

- **3.2.** Aggrieved: Consistent with §-Section 24-4-102 (3.5), CRS, and as may be used in connection with judicial review of rule-making, means having suffered actual loss or injury or being exposed to potential loss or injury to legitimate interests including but not limited to, business, economic, aesthetic, governmental, recreational, or conservational interests.
- **3.3.** Authorized Enforcement Official: Enforcement Officials, as defined within these rules, who are also certified to complete commercial vehicle inspections under Section 42-4-235 (4) (a), CRS, are authorized to perform commercial vehicle inspections consistent with their certification level. Level I CVSA-certified Colorado State Patrol Troopers assigned to the Motor Carrier Safety Section are the only Colorado law enforcement officials authorized to perform Compliance Reviews on and to assign Safety Ratings for commercial motor carrier operators or drivers. <u>CDL: Commercial Driver's License.</u>
- 3.4. CDL: Commercial Driver's License. CDOR: Colorado Department of Revenue.
- **3.5. CDOR: Colorado Department of Revenue. CDOT: Colorado Department of Transportation.**
- **3.6. CDOT: Colorado Department of Transportation. CDPS:** Colorado Department of Public Safety.
- 3.7. CDPS: Colorado Department of Public Safety. CFR: Code of Federal Regulations.
- **3.8.** CFR: Code of Federal Regulations. Chief: The Chief of the Colorado State Patrol, or his or her designee as appropriate, unless otherwise specified.
- 3.9. Chief: The Chief of the Colorado State Patrol, or his or her designee as appropriate, unless otherwise specified. Civil Penalty: A financial penalty imposed on a motor carrier by the Colorado State Patrol after a Compliance Review for violations of rules adopted by the Chief consistent with §42-4-235 (4) (a) (I), CRS.
- 3.10. Civil Penalty: A financial penalty imposed on a motor carrier by the Colorado State Patrol after a Compliance Review for violations of rules adopted by the Chief consistent with Section 42-4-235 (4) (a) (I), CRS. Civil Penalty Process: The process and procedures to collect Civil Penalties issued by the CSP for violations of §42-4-235 (4) (a), CRS, under the authority provided by §42-4-235 (2)(a), CRS, and determined consistent with the provisions of Subpart G of 49 CFR 386 as codified within §42-4-235 (2) (b) (I), CRS.
- **3.11.** Civil Penalty Process: The process and procedures to collect Civil Penalties issued by the CSP for violations of Section 42-4-235 (4) (a), CRS, under the authority provided by Section 42-4-235 (2)(a), CRS, and determined consistent with the provisions of Subpart

G of 49 CFR 386 as codified within Section 42-4-235 (2) (b) (I), CRS. Commercial Vehicle: The definition of commercial vehicle will be as outlined in §42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS.

- 3.12. Commercial Vehicle: The definition of commercial vehicle will be as outlined in Section 42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS. Compliance Review: An examination of motor carrier operations, such as driver's hours of service, maintenance and inspection, driver qualifications, CDL requirements, financial responsibility, accidents, hazardous materials, and other safety and transportation records to determine whether a motor carrier meets safety fitness standards.
- 3.13. Compliance Review: An examination of motor carrier operations, such as driver's hours-of-service, maintenance and inspection, driver qualifications, CDL requirements, financial responsibility, accidents, hazardous materials, and other safety and transportation records to determine whether a motor carrier meets safety fitness standards. Conditional Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standards that could result in the occurrences listed in 49 CFR 385.5.
- 3.14. Conditional Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standards that could result in the occurrences listed in 49 CFR 385.5. CRS: Colorado Revised Statutes.
- 3.15. CRS: Colorado Revised Statutes. CRU: Colorado State Patrol Central Records Unit.
- 3.16. CRU: Colorado State Patrol Central Records Unit. CSP: Colorado State Patrol.
- 3.17. CSP: Colorado State Patrol. CVSA: Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance.
- **3.18.** CVSA: Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance. Decision: As used within these rules, means the determinative action in adjudication and includes order, opinion, sanction, and relief.
- **3.19.** Decision: As used within these rules, means the determinative action in adjudication and includes order, opinion, sanction, and relief. Enforcement Official: The definition of an Enforcement Official will be as it is defined by §§-16-2.5-101, 16-2.5-114, 16-2.5-115, and 16-2.5-143, and as outlined in §-42-20-103 (2), CRS.
- 3.20. Enforcement Official: The definition of an Enforcement Official will be as it is defined by Sections 16-2.5-101, 16-2.5-114, 16-2.5-115, and 16-2.5-143, and as outlined in Section 42-20-103 (2), CRS. FMCSA: Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration.
- 3.21. FMCSA: Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration. FMCSR: Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations.

- 3.22. FMCSR: Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations. GCWR: Gross Combined Weight Rating.
- 3.23. GCWR: Gross Combined Weight Rating. GVWR: Gross Vehicle Weight Rating.
- **3.24. GVWR: Gross Vehicle Weight Rating. Initial Decision:** As it applies to the assessment of civil penalties or the assignment of Safety Fitness Ratings under these rules, reflects a decision that will become a final agency action of the CSP unless administratively reviewed by the CSP at the request of a motor carrier consistent with these rules.
- 3.25. Initial Decision: As it applies to the assessment of civil penalties or the assignment of Safety Fitness Ratings under these rules, reflects a decision that will become a final agency action of the CSP unless administratively reviewed by the CSP at the request of a motor carrier consistent with these rules. Interested Person: Includes any persons who may be aggrieved by agency action.
- **3.26.** Interested Person: Includes any persons who may be aggrieved by agency action. LLC: Limited Liability Company or Limited Liability Corporation.
- **3.27.** LLC: Limited Liability Company or Limited Liability Corporation. MCSS: Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety Section.
- **3.28.** LLC: Limited Liability Company or Limited Liability Corporation. Motor Carrier: The definition of a motor carrier will be as it is outlined in § 42 4 235 (1) (c), CRS.
- 3.29. Motor Carrier: The definition of a motor carrier will be as it is outlined in Section 42-4-235 (1) (c), CRS. MOU: Memorandum of Understanding.
- **3.30. MOU: Memorandum of Understanding. Notice of Claim Letter (NOC):** As it is used within these rules, a written order informing a motor carrier of its Civil Penalty Assessment, the rights associated with the penalty, and the process for responding to the penalty.
- **3.31.** Notice of Claim Letter (NOC): As it is used within these rules, a written order informing a motor carrier of its Civil Penalty Assessment, the rights associated with the penalty, and the process for responding to the penalty. **OOS:** Out-of-Service.
- 3.32. OOS: Out-of-Service. PUC: Colorado Public Utilities Commission.
- **3.33. PUC: Colorado Public Utilities Commission. Sanction:** Includes any prohibition, requirement, limitation, or other condition affecting the freedom of any person. Sanction also applies to the imposition of any form of penalty or fine, including civil penalties as they are assessed consistent with state statutes and these rules.
- **3.34.** Sanction: Includes any prohibition, requirement, limitation, or other condition affecting the freedom of any person. Sanction also applies to the imposition of any

form of penalty or fine, including civil penalties, as they are assessed to be consistent with state statutes and these rules. Satisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a motor carrier has in place and functioning adequate Safety Fitness controls to meet the safety fitness standard prescribed in 49 CFR 385.5. Safety Fitness controls are adequate if they are appropriate for the size and type of operation of the motor carrier.

- 3.35. Satisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier has in place and functioning adequate Safety Fitness controls to meet the safety fitness standard prescribed in 49 CFR 385.5. Safety Fitness controls are adequate if they are appropriate for the motor carrier's size and type of operation of the motor carrier. Served/Service: Indicates a NOC or other service document sent by first class mail to the last address furnished to the MCSS by the motor carrier or personally served on the motor carrier by a uniformed member of the CSP.
 - **3.35.1.** Service of an NOC or document by first class mail is considered complete when it is mailed, not when it is received.
- 3.36. Served/Service: Indicates a NOC or other service document sent by first class mail to the last address furnished to the MCSS by the motor carrier or personally served on the motor carrier by a uniformed member of the CSP. Unrated Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a safety rating has not been assigned to the motor carrier by the CSP.
 - **3.36.1.** Service of an NOC or document by first class mail is considered complete when it is mailed, not when it is received.
- 3.37. Unrated Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a safety rating has not been assigned to the motor carrier by the CSP. Unsatisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standard, resulting in occurrences as listed in 49 CFR 385.5.
- 3.38. Unsatisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place-to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standard, resulting in occurrences as listed in 49 CFR 385.5. USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number can be for intrastate or interstate use, depending on the information provided by the motor carrier to the FMCSA at the time of an application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier record.
- 3.39. USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number can be for intrastate or interstate use, depending on the information provided by the motor carrier to the FMCSA at the time of an-application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier record.

MCS 4: Authority to Inspect Vehicles, Drivers, Cargo, Books, and Records. Authorized Enforcement Officials will at all times have the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents consistent with Part MCS 4 of these rules.

4.1. Safety Inspections.

Enforcement Officials who are authorized to perform motor vehicle safety inspections on commercial motor vehicles and drivers are required to meet the inspector qualifications outlined in §-Section 42-4-235 (4) (a) (I), CRS, while performing CVSA North American Standard Safety Inspections.

4.1.1. All Enforcement Officials performing North American Standard Safety Inspections must maintain the certification requirements prescribed in the current published CVSA Operations Manual, effective April 1, 2024-2025.

4.2. Authority to Inspect.

Authorized Enforcement Officials have the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents, as such documents apply to motor vehicle or commercial vehicle transport by 8 CCR 1507-25 and/or as are outlined in 49 CFR, Subchapter B, Parts 383, 387, 390, 391, 392, 393, 395, 396, 397, and 399, as revised October 1, 2023-2024.

4.3. Authority to Conduct Compliance Reviews and Safety Audits.

CSP Enforcement Officials who are certified by the FMCSA under 49 CFR 385, Subpart C, to perform compliance reviews and safety audits have the authority to enter the facilities of and inspect any motor carrier, as defined in §-Section 42- 4-235 (1) (c), CRS. Inspection includes the review of any required records and supporting documents as may apply through 8 CCR 1507-25 and/or as they are identified and defined in 49 CFR, Subchapter B, Parts 40 380, 382, 383, 385, 387, 390, 392, 393, 395, 397, 399, and Appendix A, revised October 1, 2023-2024.

MCS 5: Inspection Standards and Reports.

Through an MOU with the CVSA, dated October 21, 2022, the CSP adopts the standards and procedures established for the inspection of commercial vehicles, collectively known as the North American Uniform Driver/Vehicle Inspection.

5.1. CVSA Bylaws as General Inspection Guidelines.

Authorized Enforcement Officials performing safety inspections on commercial vehicles, drivers, and cargo will use as general guidelines the levels, methods of inspections, and the OOS criteria found in the CVSA bylaws, as they are revised and effective April 1, 2024-2025.

5.2. Minimum Information and Report Disposition.

Authorized Enforcement Officials will, upon the completion of each inspection, prepare a report which, at minimum, identifies the inspector, the inspector's agency, the name and address of the motor carrier, the date and time of the inspection, the location of the inspection, the vehicle, and the driver, any defects or violations found, and the disposition of the vehicle. A copy of the inspection report will be provided to the driver or motor carrier.

MCS 6: State Adoption of FMCSR.

All intrastate and interstate motor carriers, commercial vehicles, and drivers thereof operating within Colorado must operate consistent with the safety regulations detailed within:

49 CFR 40	Procedures for Transportation Workplace
	Drug and Alcohol Testing Programs
49 CFR 380	Special Training Requirements
49 CFR 382	Controlled Substances and Alcohol Use and
	Testing
49 CFR 387	Minimum Levels of Financial Responsibility
	for Motor Carriers
49 CFR 390	Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations:
	General
49 CFR 391	Qualifications of Drivers and Longer
	Combination Vehicle (LCV) Driver Instructors
49 CFR 392	Driving of Commercial Motor Vehicles
49 CFR 393	Parts & Accessories Necessary for Safe
	Operation
49 CFR 395	Hours of Service of Drivers
49 CFR 396	Inspections, Repair, and Maintenance
49 CFR 397	Transportation of Hazardous Materials,
	Driving and Parking Rules
49 CFR 399	Employee Safety and Health Standards
49 CFR 396 Appendix A to Subtitle B of Chapter III	Minimum Periodic Inspection Standards
•••	•

of the FMCSA as the same were effective October 1, 2023-2024, and published in Title 49 of the CFR, Subtitle B, Chapter III, Parts 200 through 399, with references therein, with modifications as are necessitated by state law and set forth by and within these rules:

6.1. Intrastate Commerce Included.

Unless otherwise specified, all references to interstate commerce by the FMCSR hereby adopted by these rules also include and apply to intrastate commerce.

6.2. Entry-Level Driver Training.

49 CFR 380.509 (a) is amended to read: "Each employer must ensure each entry-level driver, who first begins operating a commercial motor vehicle requiring a CDL under § Section 42-2-404, CRS, receives the training required by 49 CFR 380.503."

6.3. New Entrant Safety Program.

49 CFR 385.501 (b) and (c), through 385.505, and 385.319 (b) through 385.337 do not

apply.

- **6.3.1.** 49 CFR 385.309 through 385.319 (a), hereafter referred to collectively as the Colorado Intrastate New Entrant Safety Assurance Program, applies to intrastate motor carriers who are beginning intrastate operations and are required to obtain an intrastate USDOT number from the FMCSA.
- **6.3.2.** Intrastate motor carriers can confirm if they need a USDOT number and complete an intrastate application online **at-by going to** <u>https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/registration/do-i-need-usdot-number</u>.
- **6.3.3.** All interstate motor carriers beginning operations in Colorado must submit to a safety audit consistent with 49 CFR 385.3.
- **6.3.4.** All intrastate motor carriers beginning operations in Colorado are eligible for the Colorado Intrastate New Entrant Safety Assurance Program. New intrastate carriers may schedule training by contacting the MCSS. A prior interstate safety audit or compliance review will meet the requirement for a safety audit.

6.4. Financial Responsibility (Insurance) of Motor Carriers.

Under §-Section 42-4-235 (4) (a) (I), CRS, the financial responsibility and insurance provisions of these rules do not apply to commercial vehicles regulated by the PUC. Additionally, these These same provisions do not apply to commercial vehicles operated by river outfitters regulated by the Colorado Department of Natural Resources, Division of Wildlife, under 2 CCR 405-3. These noted exceptions aside, 49 CFR 387.1 through 387.17, 387.303, 387.305, and 387.309 apply to the operation of commercial vehicles in Colorado with the following exceptions:

- 6.4.1. 49 CFR 387.7 (e) and (g) do not apply.
- 6.4.2. 49 CFR 387.9 (4) applies only to interstate and foreign commerce.
- **6.4.3.** Transportation carriers may obtain a certificate of self insurance issued under §42-7-501, CRS, or 49 CFR 387.
- **6.4.4.** Motor carriers subject to these rules must carry a minimum level of cargo liability coverage of \$10,000 for loss or damage to property carried on any one motor vehicle, or an amount adequate to cover the value of the property being transported, whichever is less unless the shipper and the property carrier otherwise agree by written contract to a lesser amount.

6.5. Amended General Applicability of the FMCSR. 49 CFR 390.3 (f), (1) - (2), and (6) do not apply.

6.6. Amended Applicability of FMCSR Definitions. The following definitions set forth within 49 CFR 390.5 are amended by these rules:

- **6.6.1.** The definitions of "Commercial Motor Vehicle" and "Motor Carrier" do not apply.
- **6.6.2.** The definition of an "emergency" is amended through the addition of by adding the following: "A governmental agency has determined that a local emergency requires relief from the maximum driving time in 49 CFR 395.3 or 395.5."

6.7. Amended Motor Carrier Identification Requirements.

49 CFR 390.19 (a) is amended to read: "Each motor carrier that conducts operations in intrastate commerce must apply for and receive an intrastate USDOT Number before beginning operations within the state. The motor carrier is required to update this information every 24 months."

- **6.7.1.** The FMCSA processes USDOT numbers for intrastate motor carriers-are processed by the FMCSA.
- **6.7.2.** 49 CFR 390.21 (b) is amended through the addition of the following: "Intrastate carriers must mark their vehicles with the assigned intrastate USDOT number, preceded by the letters "USDOT" and followed by the suffix "CO" (e.g.: USDOT 1234567 CO)."
 - **6.7.2.1.** Motor carriers operating in intrastate commerce, not transporting 16 or more passengers (including the driver) or transporting placarded hazardous materials and having a GVWR or GCWR equal to or over 16,001 lbs., but not in excess of 26,000 lbs., may meet the marking requirements of 49 CFR 390.21 by marking the trailer or secondary unit, if the GVWR of the self-propelled unit itself is less than 16,001 lbs.
 - **6.7.2.2.** In the interests of public safety, intrastate motor carriers who operate as repossessors as defined within <u>§-Section</u> 42-6-146 (4), CRS, are not subject to the marking requirements of 49 CFR 390.21.

6.8. Age of Drivers Operating in Interstate Commerce.

49 CFR 391.11 (b) (1) is amended to read: "Is at least 21 years old if engaged in interstate commerce or transporting hazardous materials of a type or quantity that would require the vehicle to be marked or placarded under 49 CFR 177.823, except drivers operating interstate under a waiver issued through the FMCSA Military Pilot Program, or any other approved non-military extension thereof and as recognized consistent with §-Section 42-2-404 (4) (b), CRS. All other drivers operating intrastate only must be at least 18 years of age."

6.9. Amending HOS and Applicability Thereof.

The HOS regulations set forth within 49 CFR 395 are amended as follows:

6.9.1. Public transit agency carriers and their drivers operating in intrastate commerce

may satisfy the requirements of 49 CFR 395.1 (e) (1) (ii) by either meeting the existing regulation or by replacing 49 CFR 395.1 (e) (1) and (2) with "the driver is released from work within 12 consecutive hours."

- **6.9.2.** 49 CFR 395.3 and 395.5 do not apply to drivers of either Colorado governmental vehicles or tow trucks working an emergency, as defined in 49 CFR 390.
- **6.9.3.** 49 CFR 395.3 does not apply to drivers who are towing a vehicle from a public roadway at the request of a public officer or for other law enforcement purposes.
- **6.9.4.** Drivers transporting livestock, poultry, slaughtered animals, or the grain, corn feed, hay, etc. used to feed animals are eligible to use the agricultural operations exception in 49 CFR 395.1 (k).
- **6.9.5.** 49 CFR 395.1 (k) is amended to read: "Is conducted during the planting and harvesting seasons within Colorado as determined by the Department of Agriculture to be from January 1 to December 31."

6.10. References to Federal Agencies to Include State Agencies.

All references to federal agencies and authorized personnel are to be construed to include the CSP, PUC, and other state or local enforcement agencies who have with a signed MOU with the CSP and their authorized personnel.

6.11. Filing of Information Related to FMCSR Reporting Requirements.

All motor carrier and driving requirements adopted by 8 CCR 1507-25 and/or referred to in 49 CFR 40, 368, 380, 382, 383, 385, 387, 390, 391, 392, 393, 395, 396, 397, and 399 must be filed with or delivered by mutually agreed upon methods upon request to the MCSS at 15075 S. Golden Rd., Golden, CO., 80401.

6.12. Other General Exceptions.

These rules and regulations apply to all vehicles meeting the definition of a commercial vehicle outlined in §-Section 42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS, and drivers who meet the definition of "Driver" as described in 49 CFR 390.5, with the following exceptions:

- **6.12.1.** Drivers of intrastate vehicles and vehicle combinations having a GVWR or GCWR of not more than 26,000 lbs., not requiring a CDL to operate, are not subject to 49 CFR 391, Subpart E, Physical Qualifications and Examinations.
- **6.12.2.** Vehicles owned and operated by the federal government or state government or a political subdivision thereof not domiciled in Colorado, and not transporting hazardous materials of a type and quantity requiring the vehicle to be marked or placarded under 49 CFR 172.504.
- **6.12.3.** The operation of authorized emergency vehicles, as defined in §-Section 42-1-102 (6), CRS, while in emergency and related operations.

6.12.4. The operation of snowplows, as defined in §-Section 42-1-102 (91), CRS, and all other vehicles engaged in supporting the use thereof when snowplows are removing snow/ice from the roadway or engaged in related snow/ice removal operations.

MCS 7: Use and Carry of Traction Devices are Required.

7.1. Drivers Must Carry Chains.

Drivers must carry chains consistent with Section 42-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS, operating a commercial vehicle as defined in CDOT Rule 2 CCR 601-14, except for mobile cranes, operating on Interstate 70 between mileposts 133 and 259 between September 1st and May 31st must carry tire chains consistent with the requirements detailed within §42-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS.- when operating vehicles designed to carry 16 or more passengers (including the driver) or having a combined weight of 16,001 lbs. or more (except for mobile cranes) on the following public highways between September 1st and May 31st:

- 7.1.1. I-70 West of milepost 259 in Morrison, Colorado.
- 7.1.2. Colorado Highway 9, from milepost 63 to milepost 97, between Frisco and Fairplay, Colorado.
- 7.1.3. US Route 40 West of milepost 256 in Empire, Colorado.
- 7.1.4. US Route 50 West of milepost 225 in Salida, Colorado.
- 7.1.5. US Route 160 West of milepost 304 in Walsenburg, Colorado.
- 7.1.6. US Route 285 West of milepost 250 in Morrison, Colorado.
- 7.1.7. US Route 550 between mileposts 0 and 130.
- 7.2. Use of Chains and Alternative Traction Devices.

The use of chains by drivers of commercial vehicles must occur consistent with the requirements set forth within Section 42-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS. Drivers of commercial vehicles may use Alternative Traction Devices (ATDs), including tire cables, auto socks, or sanders, may also be used as each is defined and as their use is consistent with 2 CCR 601-14.

MCS 8: Intrastate Medical Waivers.

MCSS may grant variances exemptions/waivers to drivers unable to satisfy the requirements of 49 CFR 391, Subpart E, consistent with these rules.

8.1. Approval of Medical Waivers.

Individual applications requesting an variance-exemption/waiver of specific requirements may be approved when the approval of an exemption-variance/waiver is supported by the decisions of a certified medical examiner and the documented

determination of an appropriate medical professional, combined with the satisfaction of any applicable performance standards which that support a decision that a medical condition has no adverse impact on safety.

8.2. Medical Waiver Information Available Online.

Medical waiver requirements, submission information, and other relevant documents are available online at https://csp.colorado.gov/medical-waivers. Medical waiver applications may also be requested in person by fax or by US mail from the MCSS office. Additional questions concerning the Colorado CDL Medical Waiver Program may be directed to the MCSS by phone at (303) 273-1875.

8.3. Written Notice of Terms and Conditions.

Medical waiver cardholders are provided written notice of relevant program terms and conditions at the time of card approval and subsequent renewal(s).

8.4. Denial of Medical Waiver Application.

An application for a medical waiver may be denied if:

- **8.4.1.** The applicant does not currently possess or is not in the process of attaining a state of Colorado CDL.
- **8.4.2.** The applicant has a medical condition for which a waiver or variance is not available; or
- **8.4.3.** Either the certified medical examiner or the medical professional fails to complete or certify the required medical waiver form(s).
- **8.4.4.** Denial of a medical waiver application will be by written notice from the MCSS.
 - **8.4.4.1.** Medical waiver applications denied as a result of incomplete, insufficient, or ineligible information may be resubmitted at the convenience of an applicant upon correction, completion, or meeting requirements of eligibility without prejudice.

8.4.4.2. Medical limb waiver applications denied for a failure to pass the Skills Performance Evaluation (SPE) will include a written explanation of the reason for failure and denial.

8.5. Appeal of Medical Waiver Denial.

Both new and renewal medical waiver applicants have rights of appeal in the event of application denial.

8.5.1. Where after review of an application and consideration of relevant motor vehicle operation data available to the CSP at the time of application receipt, the CSP decides to deny a request for a medical waiver, an applicant may request a hearing appealing the denial within 60 days.

8.5.2. Upon review of relevant motor vehicle operation data available to the CSP at the time of receipt of paperwork to re-issue a medical waiver to an individual having an expired or expiring waiver, the CSP may deny to renew or re-issue a medical waiver if the CSP determines that to re-issue a medical waiver to an individual does not promote safety, protect human life, or preserve the highways of this state. An applicant seeking renewal of an existing or expiring medical waiver may appeal this decision. The denial of an application for re-issue or renewal of a medical waiver to an individual based on relevant motor vehicle operation data available to the CSP at the time of the receipt of paperwork is entitled to the same appeal rights as a waiver revocation as set forth within Part 8.6 of these rules.

8.6. Medical Waiver Revocation.

A medical waiver may be revoked where if the CSP determines that issue of issuing a waiver to a driver does not promote safety, protect human life, or preserve the highways of this state.

- **8.6.1.** A medical waiver may be revoked by the The CSP may revoke a medical waiver when a waiver holder fails to comply with the applicable terms and conditions of the CSP Medical Waiver Program.
- **8.6.2.** A medical waiver may be revoked by the CSP when it is determined that, based on relevant motor vehicle operations data available to the CSP, the continued use of the waiver by a holder fails to promote safety, protect human life, or preserve the highways of this state.
- **8.6.3.** Revocation of any medical waiver will be by written notice from the MCSS consistent with <u>§-Section</u> 24-4-104, CRS.

8.7. Right to Hearing Upon Medical Waiver Revocation.

The MCSS will provide the waiver holder an opportunity to attend a hearing. Notice of this hearing will be in writing and will-provide give the waiver applicant with at least 30 day's-notice of the time, date, place, and nature of the hearing. Notice will be served in person or by certified mail or, upon agreement of the parties, by email.

8.8. Right to Appeal Medical Waiver Revocation.

Within 30 days of the completion of a hearing or the failure of the waiver holder to file a written answer in response thereto to it, the Chief or his or her designee will issue a decision either affirming the revocation or reinstating the medical waiver. Within 30 days of receiving written notice from the MCSS revoking a medical waiver, the aggrieved holder of a medical waiver may submit an exception or appeal. Additionally:

- **8.8.1.** Appeal requests must be made in writing.
- 8.8.2. Appeal requests must be addressed to the Chief at the MCSS at 15075 S. Golden

Rd., Golden, CO., 80401.

- **8.8.3.** The Chief will hold a hearing on the appeal.
- **8.8.4.** The Chief will issue a written decision within 20 business days of the completed hearing. Notice of the decision will be served in person or by certified mail to the last known address provided for the appealing party. Upon agreement of the parties, service may also occur by email.
 - **8.8.4.1.** If the Chief finds by **a** preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is sufficient, revocation of the medical waiver will be sustained.
 - **8.8.4.2.** If the Chief finds by **a** preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is insufficient, the revocation of the medical waiver will be immediately reversed, and the medical waiver will be reinstated.
- **8.8.5.** The decision of the Chief on appeal will constitute a final agency action and is subject to judicial review as outlined in <u>§-Section</u> 24-4-106, CRS.

MCS 9. Compliance Reviews and the Assignment of Intrastate Safety Fitness Ratings. §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (c), CRS, gives the CSP the exclusive authority to conduct Compliance Reviews. Out of this exclusive authority arises the ability to assign Safety Fitness Ratings to motor carriers and the responsibility to levy sanctions in the form of Civil Penalties for violations against persons for operating commercial vehicles inconsistent with these rules.

9.1. Exclusive Authority to Conduct Compliance Reviews.

Section 42-4-235 (2) (c), CRS, gives the CSP exclusive authority to conduct Compliance Reviews, as defined in 49 CFR 385.3, and to impose Civil Penalties pursuant to such reviews. Only authorized CSP Enforcement Officials have the authority to conduct Compliance Reviews.

9.2. Application of Intrastate Carrier Safety Ratings.

The CSP will establish a Safety Fitness Rating for each motor carrier upon which it conducts a Compliance Review. Upon completion of a Compliance Review, the CSP will assign a proposed Safety Fitness Rating that will be based on the degree of compliance with the federal motor carrier Safety Fitness Standards for motor carriers outlined in 49 CFR 385.5.

- 9.2.1. The Safety Fitness Rating will be determined using the factors prescribed in 49 CFR 395.7 as guidance. A motor carrier may determine their degree of compliance with the Safety Fitness Standard by reviewing 49 CFR 385.5.
- **9.2.2.** On the 61st day after the assignment of a proposed Safety Fitness Rating, the motor carrier's Safety Fitness Rating will become the final Safety Fitness Rating.

9.2.3. The final Safety Fitness Rating for an intrastate motor carrier will be available to the public on request by contacting the CSP CRU at:

Colorado State Patrol, Central Records Unit 700 Kipling St. Lakewood, CO., 80215 (303) 239 – 4180 <u>https://csp.colorado.gov/talk-with-us/central-records-unit</u> email: cdps_csprecords@state.co.us

9.3. Administrative Review of Safety Fitness Rating.

If a motor carrier believes the CSP committed an error in assigning its' Safety Fitness Rating, the motor carrier may request an administrative review of the Compliance Review that resulted in the assignment of the disputed Safety Fitness Rating. The request from the motor carrier must comply with the following provisions:

- **9.3.1.** The request must be in writing and addressed to the Chief within 30 days of the assignment of the proposed Safety Fitness Rating.
- **9.3.2.** The request must explain the error the motor carrier believes the CSP committed in issuing the Safety Fitness Rating. The motor carrier must include a list of all factual and procedural issues in dispute and any information or documentation that supports its assignment.
- **9.3.3.** The Chief may request more information and/or require the motor carrier to attend a conference to discuss the rating. If the motor carrier does not provide the information request or attend the conference, the Chief may dismiss the request.
- **9.3.4.** The Chief will serve the decision in writing within 30 days of receiving the request.
- **9.3.5.** The proposed Safety Fitness Rating will remain as a proposed Safety Fitness Rating until the decision of the Chief.
- **9.3.6.** The decision of the Chief will include the assignment of a final Safety Fitness Rating. The decision will constitute a final action by the CSP.
- **9.4.** Motor Carrier Request to Change Safety Fitness Rating for Corrective Action(s). An intrastate motor carrier may request a change to their its' Safety Fitness Rating based on corrective actions completed by the motor carrier. A request to change a Safety Fitness Rating based on corrective action(s) cannot be made by a motor carrier and will not be acted upon by the CSP sooner than 90 days after the assignment of a proposed Safety Fitness Rating. The request must be submitted in writing and addressed to the Chief. The request must include the following information as it is

relevant to the motor carrier:

- **9.4.1.** A description of corrective action(s) taken by the motor carrier since the assignment of the Safety Fitness Rating.
- **9.4.2.** A description of how the corrective action(s) address(es) each violation-identified in the most recent Compliance Review as an acute and/or critical violation. The motor carrier must also address factor six (crashes) of the Compliance Review when the rating entered for factor six is "unsatisfactory."
- **9.4.3.** An explanation as to why the violation(s) cited as acute and/or critical were permitted to occur.
- **9.4.4.** The corrective action(s) taken by the motor carrier to ensure against these critical and/or acute violations in the future.
- **9.4.5.** If factor six (crashes) is rated unsatisfactory, an accident countermeasure program must be included as part of the corrective action(s) addressed. The program must include, but not be limited to, defensive driving training.
- **9.4.6.** If the corrective action(s) include(s) action(s) to be taken shortly, such as training, reorganization of departments, purchasing of computer programs, etc., a schedule of when the corrective action(s) is to occur must be included.
- **9.4.7.** Any additional documentation or information that relates to motor carrier safety, additional voluntary corrective action(s), and the prevention of crashes and hazardous materials incidents must be included.
- **9.4.8.** A written statement certifying that the motor carrier will operate in compliance with the motor carrier safety and hazardous materials regulations adopted by the CSP under <u>§§</u>-Sections 42-4-235 and 42-20-108, CRS, and all other relevant state and local laws.
- **9.4.9.** The request must be signed by a corporate officer in the case of a corporation, a member or manager in the case of an LLC, by the general partner of a limited partnership, or by all partners or proprietors in the case of a general partnership or proprietorship.
- **9.5.** Motor Carrier Request to Change Safety Fitness Rating Through Compliance Review. A motor carrier may request a change in their Safety Fitness Rating by requesting a subsequent Compliance Review, as follows:
 - **9.5.1.** The request for a subsequent Compliance Review must be made to the Chief in writing.
 - **9.5.2.** The request cannot be made by the motor carrier and will not be acted upon by

the CSP sooner than 90 days after the assignment of a proposed Safety Fitness Rating.

9.5.3. As part of the subsequent Compliance Review, a Compliance Review Investigator will review the corrective action(s) taken by the motor carrier since the last Compliance Review.

9.6. Request for an Administrative Review/Compliance Review Does Not Preempt Requests for Other Administrative/Compliance Reviews.

Requesting a review of a Safety Fitness Rating under Part 9.3 of these rules will not prevent a motor carrier from requesting a review of the same Safety Fitness Rating under Parts 9.4 or 9.5 of these rules. Conversely, a request to review initially under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Parts 9.3 or 9.5, nor will an initial request to review under Part 9.5 prohibit subsequent requests to review under Parts 9.3 or 9.4.

9.7. Final Safety Fitness Rating Assignment.

Absent any request from a motor carrier to administratively review a Compliance Review resulting in the assignment of a Safety Fitness Rating or any other request to change a Safety Fitness Rating from a motor carrier, a Safety Fitness Rating becomes final on the 91ST day following its assignment.

MCS 10. Compliance Reviews and Civil Penalties.

Under §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (c), CRS, the CSP has the exclusive enforcement authority to conduct Compliance Reviews as defined in 49 CFR 385.3 and to impose sanctions on motor carriers in the form of Civil Penalties for violations discovered as a result thereof. §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS, provides that any person who violates the rules adopted by the Chief under § Section 42-4-235 (4) (a), CRS, is subject to the Civil Penalties authorized by 49 CFR 386, Subpart G. §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS, authorizes the assessment of Civil Penalties against intrastate motor carriers determined to be operating in violation of these rules.

10.1. Determination of Civil Penalty Assessment.

The amount of a Civil Penalty Assessment against an intrastate motor carrier is influenced by the Civil Penalties authorized by 49 CFR 386 Subpart G, as it is codified into §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS. The following criteria are factors included in the determination of any intrastate Civil Penalty Assessment:

10.1.1. Scope of Review May Not Exceed 3 Years.

Consistent with <u>§-Section</u> 42-4-235 (2) (b) (II), CRS, an authorized CSP Enforcement Official will not consider more than three years of a motor carrier's safety compliance history when determining a Civil Penalty Assessment.

10.1.2. Applicability of 49 CFR 386 Subpart G to Intrastate Motor Carriers.

As codified into law through <u>§-Section</u> 42-4-235 (2) (b) (I), CRS, 49 CFR 386 Subpart G applies to the determination of Civil Penalties assessed against intrastate motor carriers thus that:

- **10.1.2.1.** The determination of an intrastate motor carrier Civil Penalty may include consideration of the nature and gravity of the violation(s) identified, the degree of culpability, and such other matters as justice and public safety may require.
- 10.1.2.2. The Civil Penalty Fine Schedules detailed within Appendices A and B to Subpart G of 49 CFR 386 are codified as a result of <u>§-Section</u> 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS. These fine schedules provide guidance and support for the determination determining and calculating-calculation of Civil Penalty Assessments. The Civil Penalty Fine Schedules of Appendices A and B to Subpart G of 49 CFR 386 are incorporated into these rules as is consistent with <u>§-Section</u> 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS.
- **10.1.2.3.** Provisions of 49 CFR 386 Subpart G relating the amount of a Civil Penalty Assessment to the ability of a motor carrier to pay the assessment are explicitly excluded. and They are not considered when determining or assessing a Civil Penalty against an intrastate motor carrier.
- 10.1.2.4. The intrastate operation of implements of husbandry is exempted from and-are is not subject to the Civil Penalties that may be assessed under §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS. §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS, does not repeal, preempt, or negate any existing regulatory agricultural exemption that is extended to any vehicle operated intrastate consistent with §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (b) (III), CRS.

10.2. Notice of Civil Penalty Assessment (NOC).

A Compliance Review may or may not result in the assessment of a Civil Penalty for violations discovered during a Compliance Review. If a Civil Penalty is assessed upon the completion of a Compliance Review, written notification of a Civil Penalty assessment will be served on a motor carrier in the form of a NOC.

10.3. Motor Carrier Response to Civil Penalty NOC Required.

A motor carrier must respond to the MCSS within 30 days of service of the NOC on the carrier by either:

- 10.3.1. Paying the full amount of the Civil Penalty as instructed in the NOC; or
- **10.3.2.** Submitting a written request for a payment plan to the Commander of the MCSS; or
- **10.3.3.** By submitting Submitting a written response requesting an administrative review of the Civil Penalty Assessment.

- **10.4.** Motor Carrier Requests for Administrative Review of Civil Penalty Assessments. If a motor carrier believes the CSP committed an error in the determination determining or assessing assessment of a Civil Penalty, a motor carrier may request an administrative review. The following provisions apply to the administrative review process:
 - **10.4.1.** A request for an administrative review of a Civil Penalty Assessment must be in writing and addressed to the Chief within 30 days of the service of the NOC.
 - **10.4.2.** A request must explain the error the motor carrier believes the CSP committed in determining or assessing the Civil Penalty. The written request must include a list of issues in dispute and any supporting information or documentation.
 - 10.4.3. The Chief or his or her designee may request additional information and/or request the motor carrier to attend an administrative review conference to discuss the penalty. A motor carrier must respond within 30 days of any request for additional information and will receive at least 30 Days' notice of any scheduled administrative review conference. Notice will be in person, by certified mail, or upon the agreement of the parties' agreement, by email.
 - **10.4.4.** The Chief or his or her designee will serve the motor carrier with a written decision within 30 days after the Chief or his or her designee has determined the administrative record is complete. An administrative record will not be determined complete before the end of any request or review conference and response period extended by the CSP to the motor carrier through 10.4.3.
 - **10.4.4.1.** The failure of a carrier to provide additional information as requested under 10.4.3 for purposes of an administrative review will be construed to mean the motor carrier has submitted their complete response.
 - **10.4.5.** Within 30 days after service of the written decision of the Chief or his or her designee, a motor carrier may appeal a Civil Penalty Assessment. Appeals must be in writing and addressed to the Chief. Additionally, appeals of civil penalties following an administrative review must:
 - **10.4.5.1.** Be mailed to the Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety Section.
 - **10.4.5.2.** Include a copy of the letter outlining the decision reached by the administrative review completed by the Chief or his or her designee.
 - **10.4.5.32.** A statement specifically outlining the error the motor carrier believes the Colorado State Patrol made in its sanctioning of the motor carrier, either in **determining** the determination of the violations or

assessing the assessment of the Civil Penalty.

- **10.4.5.43.** A list of any issues stipulated to, resolved, or upon which agreement was reached during the administrative review process.
- **10.4.5.54.** A list of any issues upon which agreement was not reached and remained in dispute or that the motor carrier finds to be in error despite the administrative review process.
- **10.4.5.65.** Whether the motor carrier is appealing the civil penalty in whole or in part and any legal documentation or authority available supporting or substantiating the motor carrier's position; and
- **10.4.5.76.** Whether the motor carrier requests that the hearing be presided over by an Administrative Law Judge from the Office of Administrative Courts instead of the Chief of the CSP or his or her designee.
- 10.4.6. Absent a specific request otherwise, the Chief of the CSP or his or her designee may preside over a hearing appealing a Civil Penalty after an administrative review. The Chief or his or her designee may withdraw and request an Administrative Law Judge from the Office of the Administrative Courts to be assigned and continue the hearing unless the withdrawal of the Chief or his or her designee would make it impossible for the CSP to render a decision.
- 10.4.7. The Chief or the Administrative Law Judge will serve the parties with a written decision within 30 days after the Chief or the Administrative Law Judge has determined that the administrative hearing record is complete. Upon agreement of the parties, Notice the notice will be in writing by certified mail or by email, and will also be made in person, or by certified mail, or by email upon agreement of the parties. This written decision will constitute a final agency action.
- **10.4.8.** The motor carrier has 35 days from the date of a final agency decision to file an action in an appropriate district court under <u>§-Section</u> 24-4-106 (4), CRS.

10.5. Motor Carrier Failure to Respond or Cooperate.

A motor carrier who fails to cooperate with the completion of a Compliance Review or who fails to pay in full a Civil Penalty assessed consistent with these rules and §-Section 42-4-235 (2), CRS, is subject to additional statutory action.

- 10.5.1. Under §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (d) (I), CRS, the MCSS will forward to the CDOR the information of any motor carrier who does not cooperate with a request for a Compliance Review or who fails to pay a Civil Penalty Assessment in full 30 days subsequent notice of failure of a specified motor carrier to cooperate or pay.
- 10.5.2. The CDOR will take action against a motor carrier as authorized and required

under §-Section 42-3-120, CRS.

MCS 11. Information on These Rules.

All contact with the CSP concerning these rules or their applicability should be addressed to:

Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety Section 15075 S. Golden Rd. Golden, CO., 80401-3990 (303)-273-1875 (Office) (303)-273-1939 (Fax) MCSAP@state.co.us

MCS 12. Information Maintenance and Reference of Publications, Standards, Guidelines and Rules.

All publications, standards, guidelines, and rules adopted and incorporated by reference in these rules are on file and available for public inspection. These rules are available upon request from the MCSS at 15075 S. Golden Rd., Golden, CO., 80401-3990, during regular business hours and are also available online through the CDPS Rulemaking Information Website, <u>https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/get-involved/rules-and-regulations</u>.

12.1. Available for Public Inspection and Referenced Consistent with Statute.

All publications, standards, guidelines, and rules adopted and incorporated by reference by these rules are available for examination at any state publications depository as required by §-Section 24-4-103 (12.5), CRS. The following publications, standards, guidelines, and rules are adopted as each-are is amended by and within these rules and as is consistent with §-Section 24-4-103 (12.5), CRS. References here follow:

- 12.1.1. Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance (2024-2025), North American Standard Outof-Service Criteria (OOSC). April 1, 2024-2025. Greenbelt, MD: Author.
- 12.1.2. Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 40, 380, 382, 383, 385, 387, 390, 391-397, 399, and Appendix A (October 1, 2023-2024). This information is also available online through the FMCSA website, https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/regulations.
- 12.1.3. Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 386, Subpart G, and Appendices A and B thereto as codified by §-Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS. Appendices A and B to Subpart G of 49 CFR 386 may be found online through the FMCSA website, <u>https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/regulations</u>.

12.2. Maintenance of Copies.

The CSP will maintain complete texts of each of the publications, standards, and guidelines referenced herein and these rules.

12.3. Availability of Copies.

Interested parties may access information about referenced documents **online** free of charge-online. Interested parties may also inspect the referenced materials and/or obtain copies of any referenced publications, standards, or guidelines for a reasonable fee by contacting the CSP CRU. Copies of referenced publications, standards, and guidelines may also be available from the organizations or agencies of their origin.

- **12.3.1.** Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance (CVSA), 6303 Ivy Lane, Suite 310, Greenbelt, Maryland, 20770-6319. Phone: (301)-830-6143. Email: <u>cvsahq@cvsa.org</u>.
- 12.3.2. Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA), 1200 New Jersey Ave., SE, Room W-65-206, Washington, DC, 20590. Phone: 1 (800)-832-5660. Website: <u>www.fmcsa.dot.gov</u>.

MCS 13. Severability.

If any provision of these rules or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is determined to be unlawful or invalid, the remaining provisions of these rules will not be affected, absent a specific reference.

MCS 14. Effective Date.

The effective date of these rules is April 1, 2024-2025.

Summary of Proposed Changes Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles

Purpose:

This document is developed as a companion to assist in the reading and understanding changes proposed to 8 CCR 1507-1, the Rules and Regulations Concerning Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles. Changes proposed in the redlined rules filed with the Colorado Secretary of State and the Colorado Department of Regulatory Agencies are discussed in the order they appear in the redlined document. Changes are identified by section with a description of the change proposed. Included with each change is an explanation for the change.

Accessibility Editing Note:

The redlined rules include formatting updates and minor edits not affecting the content or interpretation of 8 CCR 1507-1 necessary to comply with the document accessibility standards required by Section 24-34-802, CRS. Changes to these rules to comply with the accessibility standards include changing capitalized text to mixed-case or lower-case text, removing underlined text, increasing font size, exchanging symbols for words throughout the document, enabling hyperlinked text associated with website addresses, and adjustments to the physical paragraph structure of the document to more effectively support bookmarking for electronic reading software.

The Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety Section is committed to supporting effective communication and access to these rules by all members of the public. If you experience difficulty with or are unable to use this document, please go to <u>https://publicsafety.colorado.gov/accessibility-interpretation-and-translation-support</u> or contact the Colorado State Patrol Motor Carrier Safety Section at (303)-273-1875 for assistance.

Page 1: Table of Contents:

The Table of Contents is a new addition and appears in red text. The Table of Contents outlines these rules by section and supports efficient document navigation. Although not required, including a Table of Contents in longer documents is a best practice supported by the state accessibility rules and Section 24-34-802, CRS. The Table of Contents is beneficial to all readers viewing the rules electronically but is especially helpful for those members of the public viewing the document using e-reading programs.

Page 3: MCS 2- grammar correction:

The grammar is corrected in MCS 2, exchanging the word "who" with "that" and eliminating the unnecessary phrase "they are" so that the resulting sentence reads, "These rules and regulations apply to individuals, corporations, Colorado government or governmental subdivisions or agencies, or other legal entities **that** operate commercial vehicles as they are defined in §-Section 42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS," instead of "These rules and regulations apply to

individuals, corporations, Colorado government or governmental subdivisions or agencies, or other legal entities who operate commercial vehicles as they are defined in §-Section 42-4-235 (1) (a), CRS."

Page 3: MCS 3- removal of unnecessary phrase:

The word "found" is removed from the second sentence of MCS 3 because it is unnecessary and does not add value to the communication. As updated, the sentence reads, "Definitions relevant to these rules are in Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations," instead of "Definitions relevant to these rules are found in Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations."

Page 4, Subpart MCS 3.1, punctuation correction:

Subpart MCS 3.1, the definition of Action, is updated to correct for a missing comma after the word "relief" and before the words "or the equivalent thereof." As updated, Subpart MCS 3.1 reads, "**Action:** Consistent with **Section** 24-4-102 (1), CRS, and as used within these rules, an action includes the whole or any part of any agency rule, order, interlocutory order, license, sanction, relief, or the equivalent or the denial thereof, or failure to act," instead of "**Action:** Consistent with **Section** 24-4-102 (1), CRS, and as used within these rules, an action includes the whole or any part of the denial thereof, or failure to act," instead of "**Action:** Consistent with **Section** 24-4-102 (1), CRS, and as used within these rules, an action includes the whole or any part of any agency rule, order, interlocutory order, license, sanction, relief or the equivalent or the denial thereof.

Page 4, Subpart MCS 3.3, new definition- Authorized Enforcement Official:

Authorized Enforcement Official is a new definition proposed to be included in this version of the rules and appears in red text. Alphabetically, this new definition fits in after "Aggrieved," which appears in the rules as Subpart MCS 3.2 and before CDL, which was formerly assigned to Subpart MCS 3.3 and is pushed forward to Subpart MCS 3.4 as a result of the insertion of this new definition. As proposed, this definition reads, "Authorized Enforcement Official: Enforcement Officials, as defined within these rules, who are also certified to complete commercial vehicle inspections under Section 42-4-235 (4) (a), CRS, are authorized to perform commercial vehicle inspections consistent with their certification level. Level I CVSA-certified Colorado State Patrol Troopers assigned to the Motor Carrier Safety Section are the only Colorado law enforcement officials authorized to perform Compliance Reviews on and to assign Safety Ratings for commercial motor carrier operators or drivers." This definition is proposed to clarify and identify which law enforcement officials are authorized to complete commercial vehicle inspections and/or compliance reviews and the criteria that officers must satisfy.

Pages 4 – 7, Subparts MCS 3.3 through MCS 3.39- renumbering of subparts as a result of the insertion of "Authorized Enforcement Official":

To preserve the alphabetical nature of the definitions in the rules, the new definition of "Authorized Enforcement Official" must be inserted as existing subpart MCS 3.3, and "CDL" must be renumbered as subpart MCS 3.4. All other definitions throughout MCS 3 must be renumbered one subpart forward, adding new subpart 3.39 for "USDOT Number," previously numbered as subpart 3.38. All of the renumbered subparts are for definitions previously existing in these rules.

Page 5, Subpart MCS 3.14, deletion of the unnecessary phrase:

The phrase "in place" is deleted as unnecessary and potentially confusing. As revised, the definition reads, "Conditional Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standards that could result in the occurrences listed in 49 CFR 385.5," instead of "Conditional Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls to ensure with the safety fitness standards that could result in the occurrences listed in 49 CFR 385.5," instead of "Conditional Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates that a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standards that could result in the occurrences listed in 49 CFR 385.5."

Page 5, Subpart MCS 3.20, deletion of the unnecessary phrase:

The phrase "it is" is deleted as unnecessary. As revised, the definition reads, "Enforcement Official: The definition of an Enforcement Official will be as defined by Sections 16-2.5-101, 16-2.5-114, 16-2.5-115, and 16-2.5-143, and as outlined in Section 42-20-103 (2), CRS," instead of "Enforcement Official: The definition of an Enforcement Official will be as it is defined by Sections 16-2.5-101, 16-2.5-114, 16-2.5-115, and 16-2.5-143, and as outlined in Section 42-20-103 (2), CRS," 103 (2), CRS."

Page 6, Subpart MCS 3.29, deletion of the unnecessary phrase:

The phrase "it is" is deleted as unnecessary. As proposed, the definition reads, "**Motor Carrier: The definition of a motor carrier will be as outlined in Section 42-4-235 (1) (c), CRS**," instead of "Motor Carrier: The definition of a motor carrier will be as it is outlined in Section 42-4-235 (1) (c), CRS."

Pages 6 – 7, Subpart MCS 3.34. addition of comma to the second sentence:

A comma is added to the second sentence after "including civil penalties." As updated, the second sentence reads, "Sanction also applies to the imposition of any form of penalty or fine, including civil penalties, as they are assessed to be consistent with state statutes and these rules," instead of "Sanction also applies to the imposition of any form of penalty or fine, including civil penalties as they are assessed to be consistent with state statutes and these rules."

Page 7, Subpart MCS 3.38, deletion of the unnecessary phrase:

The phrase "in place" is deleted as unnecessary and potentially confusing. As revised, the definition reads, "Unsatisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standard, resulting in occurrences as listed in 49 CFR 385.5" instead of "Unsatisfactory Safety Fitness Rating: Indicates a motor carrier does not have adequate safety management controls in place to ensure compliance with the safety fitness standard, resulting in occurrences as listed in 49 CFR 385.5."

Page 7, Subpart MCS 3.39, new subpart MCS 3.39 and grammar correction:

Subpart MCS 3.39 is a new subpart for a preexisting definition, "USDOT Number." The definition is corrected by removing the word "an" after "time of" and before "application submission." As corrected, the definition reads, "USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number can be for intrastate or interstate use, depending on the information provided by the motor carrier to the FMCSA at the time of application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier record," instead of "USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number assigned to a motor carrier to the FMCSA at the time of application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier record," instead of "USDOT Number: The number assigned to a motor carrier by the FMCSA. The number can be for intrastate or interstate use, depending on the information provided by the motor carrier to the FMCSA. The number can be to the FMCSA at the time of an application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier to the FMCSA at the time of an application submission, the biannual update, or any other update to the motor carrier record."

Page 8, MCS 4, the addition of the word "all" to the sentence:

MCS 4 is edited to insert the word "all" after "will at" and before "times have" into the sentence where it appeared previously in the rules before last year's adoptions. The word "all" was edited out of MCS 4 in error. As corrected, MCS 4 reads, "Authorized Enforcement Officials will at **all** times have the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents consistent with Part MCS 4 of these rules," instead of "Authorized Enforcement Officials will at times have the authority to inspect commercial vehicles commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents consistent with Part MCS 4 of these rules," instead of "Authorized Enforcement Officials will at times have the authority to inspect commercial vehicles, commercial vehicle drivers, cargo, and any required documents consistent with Part MCS 4 of these rules."

Page 8, Sub-subpart MCS 4.1.1, publication date update:

The CVSA Operations Manual is updated annually each April. The most current version of this manual will be published on April 1, 2025, and will be available at the same time these rules become effective. To ensure that these rules reference the CVSA Operations Manual's correct version, the publication year must be updated from 2024 to 2025. As revised, the end of MCS Sub-subpart 4.1.1. is amended to read "...effective April 1, **2025**," instead of "...effective April 1, **2024**."

Page 8, Subpart MCS 4.2, publication date update:

The Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations (FMCSRs), which appear as part of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFRs), are updated annually every October. The FMCSRs in effect presently at the time of this rulemaking were published October 1, 2024, and are the rules being referenced within this version of the rules. Consequently, it is necessary to update the year of publication appearing in these rules from 2023 to 2024. The end of the sentence for Subpart MCS 4.2. is updated to read, "...as revised October 1, **2024**," instead of "...as revised October 1, **2023**."

Page 8, Subpart MCS 4.3, publication date update:

As previously stated, the FMCSRs, which appear as part of the CFRs, are updated annually every October. The FMCSRs in effect presently at the time of this rulemaking were published October 1, 2024, and are the rules being referenced within this version of the rules. Consequently, it is

necessary to update the year of publication appearing in these rules from 2023 to 2024. The end of the sentence for Subpart MCS 4.3 is updated to read, "...revised October 1, **2024**," instead of "revised October 1, **2023**."

Page 8, Subpart MCS 5.1, publication date update:

The CVSA bylaws appear within the CVSA Operations Manual. As stated previously in MCS Subsubpart 4.1.1, the CVSA Operations Manual referenced inclusive of the CVSA bylaws, inspector level, and methods of inspection guidelines, and the OOS criteria referenced by these rules are those as revised and effective April 1, 2025. To ensure the proper bylaws are referenced, the publication year in subpart MCS 5.1 must be updated from 2024 to 2025. The last part of the sentence in subpart MCS 5.1 is updated to read, "...as they are revised and effective April 1, **2025**," instead of "...as they are revised and effective April 1, **2024**."

Page 9, MCS 3, publication date update:

The FMCSRs, which appear as part of the CFRs, are updated annually every October. The FMCSRs in effect presently at the time of this rulemaking were published October 1, 2024, and are the rules being referenced within this version of the rules. Consequently, it is necessary to update the year of publication appearing in these rules from 2023 to 2024. Following the list of sections appearing in the middle of the paragraph, the sentence is updated in part to read, "of the FMCSA as the same were effective October 1, 2024," instead of "of the FMCSA as the same were effective October 1, 2024,"

Page 10, MCS Sub-subpart 6.3.1, added a comma to the sentence:

A comma has been added to MCS Sub-subpart 6.3.1 to improve its readability. As revised, the sentence reads, "49 CFR 385.309 through 385.319 (a), hereafter referred to collectively as the Colorado Intrastate New Entrant Safety Assurance Program, applies to intrastate motor carriers who are beginning intrastate operations and are required to obtain an intrastate USDOT number from the FMCSA," instead of "49 CFR 385.309 through 385.319 (a), hereafter referred to collectively as the Colorado Intrastate New Entrant Safety Assurance Program applies to intrastate USDOT number from the FMCSA," instead of "49 CFR 385.309 through 385.319 (a), hereafter referred to collectively as the Colorado Intrastate New Entrant Safety Assurance Program applies to intrastate motor carriers who are beginning intrastate operations and are required to obtain an intrastate USDOT number from the FMCSA."

Page 10, MCS Sub-subpart 6.3.2., exchanged "at" for an unnecessary phrase:

MCS Sub-subpart 6.3.2. is updated to replace an unnecessary phrase with the word "at" to improve overall message delivery. Revised, the sentence reads, "Intrastate motor carriers can confirm if they need a USDOT number and complete an intrastate application online at <u>https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/registration/do-i-need-usdot-number</u>," instead of "Intrastate motor carriers can confirm if they need a USDOT number a USDOT number and complete an intrastate application online at <u>https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/registration/do-i-need-usdot-number</u>," instead of "Intrastate application only by going to <u>https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/registration/do-i-need-usdot-number</u>."

Page 10, MCS Subpart 6.4, second sentence updated to improve readability:

The second sentence of MCS Subpart 6.4 is updated to improve message delivery and readability. As revised, the sentence reads, "These same provisions do not apply to commercial

vehicles operated by river outfitters regulated by the Colorado Department of Natural Resources, Division of Wildlife, under 2 CCR 405-3," instead of "**Additionally, these** same provisions do not apply to commercial vehicles operated by river outfitters regulated by the Colorado Department of Natural Resources, Division of Wildlife, under 2 CCR 405-3."

Page 11, MCS Sub-subpart 6.6.2, sentence updated to improve readability:

The sentence is updated to improve message delivery and readability. The phrase "through the addition of" is deleted, and "by adding" is suggested. As revised, the sentence reads, "The definition of an "emergency" is amended **by adding** the following: "A governmental agency has determined that a local emergency requires relief from the maximum driving time in 49 CFR 395.3 or 395.5," instead of "The definition of an "emergency" is amended by through the addition of the following: "A governmental agency has determined that a local emergency requires relief from the maximum driving time in 49 CFR 395.3 or 395.5," instead of "The definition of an "emergency" is amended by through the addition of the following: "A governmental agency has determined that a local emergency requires relief from the maximum driving time in 49 CFR 395.3 or 395.5."

Page 11, MCS Sub-subpart 6.7.1, sentence updated to improve readability:

The sentence is updated to improve message delivery and readability and to read in the present rather than past tense. As updated, the sentence reads, "**The FMCSA processes** USDOT numbers for intrastate motor carriers," instead of "USDOT numbers for intrastate motor carriers **are processed by the FMCSA**."

Page 12, MCS Subpart 6.10, grammar correction:

The grammar in MCS Subpart 6.10 is corrected, and the sentence is updated to read in part "...or local enforcement agencies **with** a signed MOU with the CSP and their authorized personnel" instead of "...or local agencies **who have** a signed MOU with the CSP and their authorized personnel."

Page 12, MCS Sub-subpart 6.12.2, sentence updated to correct punctuation and improve readability:

The sentence is updated to correct punctuation and to improve readability and message delivery. The word "thereof" after the word "subdivision" is removed, and a comma is removed after the word "Colorado" in exchange for the insertion of the word "and" after the word "Colorado" and before the word "not." The status of "political subdivision" in the sentence is also clarified through the insertion of "a" in front of "political subdivision." As revised, the sentence reads, "Vehicles owned and operated by the federal government or state government or **a** political subdivision not domiciled in Colorado **and** not transporting hazardous materials of a type and quantity requiring the vehicle to be marked or placarded under 49 CFR 172.504," instead of "Vehicles owned and operated by the federal government or state government or political subdivision **thereof** not domiciled in Colorado, not transporting hazardous materials of a type and quantity requiring the vehicle to be marked or placarded under 49 CFR 172.504," instead of "Vehicles owned and operated by the federal government or state government or political subdivision **thereof** not domiciled in Colorado, not transporting hazardous materials of a type and quantity requiring the vehicle to be marked or placarded under 49 CFR 172.504."

Page 13, MCS 7, Update of Title Part:

The part title has been updated to read "Use and Carry of Traction Devices" instead of "Traction Devices are Required."

Page 13, MCS Subpart 7.1, New Subpart 7.1 "Drivers Must Carry Chains":

This version of the rules includes a new subpart and subpart title: MCS 7.1. The title "**Drivers Must Carry Chains**" appears in red text.

Page 13, MCS Subpart 7.1 (inclusive of sub-subparts 7.1.1 through 7.1.7), legislative and statutory update revising existing rules:

During the 2024 Legislative Session, the Colorado Legislature passed SB 24-100, which amended 42-4-106, CRS, and Governor Polis signed it into law. This legislation updates the commercial vehicle chain law, extending its geographic and physical impact on commercial vehicle operations within Colorado. The rules must be updated to remain consistent with the statutory changes resulting from this legislation. The sentences that appeared as part of MCS 7 are now divided into MCS Sub-subparts 7.1 and 7.2, with the text of each sub-subpart including some of the language that made up the former MCS 7. Much of the text from former MCS 7 appearing in MCS Subpart 7.1 is superseded and marked as strike out for deletion.

As inserted, the new MCS Subpart 7.1 (inclusive of sub-subparts 7.1.1 through 7.1.7) reads, "Drivers must carry chains consistent with Section 42-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS, when operating vehicles in commerce designed to carry 16 or more passengers (including the driver) or having a combined weight of 16,001 lbs. or more (except for mobile cranes) on the following public highways between September 1st and May 31st:

- 7.1.1. I-70 West of milepost 259 in Morrison, Colorado.
- 7.1.2. Colorado Highway 9, from milepost 63 to milepost 97, between Frisco and Fairplay, Colorado.
- 7.1.3. US Route 40 West of milepost 259 in Empire, Colorado.
- 7.1.4. US Route 50 West of milepost 225 in Salida, Colorado.
- 7.1.5. US Route 160 West of milepost 250 in Morrison, Colorado.

7.1.6. US Route 550 between mileposts 0 and 130,

Instead of "Drivers operating a commercial vehicle as defined in CDOT Rule 2 CCR 601-14, except for mobile cranes, operating on Interstate 70 between mileposts 133 and 259 between September 1st and May 31st must carry tire chains consistent with the requirements detailed within Section 42-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS."

Page 13, New Subpart MCS 7.2 "Use of Chains and Alternative Traction Devices": This version of the rules includes a new subpart and subpart title: MCS 7.2. The title "Use of Chains and Alternative Traction Devices" appears in red text.

Page 13, MCS Subpart 7.2, legislative and statutory update revising existing rules:

Again, in response to statutory changes prompted by SB 24-100, Subpart 7.2 updates the rules to remain consistent with the state statute concerning the use of chains and alternative traction devices. Language from MCS 7 is retained as part of the new MCS subpart 7.2 and appears in the standard text; language added to achieve statutory compliance appears in bold red font. As proposed, MCS Subpart 7.2 reads, "The use of chains by drivers of commercial vehicles must occur consistent with the requirements set forth within Section 42+-4-106 (5) (a) (I), CRS. Drivers of commercial vehicles may use Alternative Traction Devices (ATDs), including tire cables, auto socks, or sanders, as each is defined and as their use is consistent with 2 CCR 601-14." Previously, the phrase "may also be used" appeared in the text when discussing the use of ATDs, but this has been deleted for this version.

Page 13, MCS 8, word correction to be consistent with FMCSRs:

The FMCSRs do not use the word "variances" in reference to medical waivers. Instead, the FMCSRs use "exemption" or "exemptions." To be consistent with the FMCSRs, it is necessary to replace the word "variances" with the word "exemptions."

Page 13, MCS 8.1 Subpart 8.1, word correction to be consistent with FMCSRs and grammar correction:

The FMCSRs do not use the word "variance" in reference to medical waivers. Instead, the FMCSRs use "exemption." To be consistent with the FMCSRs, it is necessary to replace the word "variance" with the word "exemption." Exchanging the word "exemption" for "variance" requires a grammar update to this paragraph, changing the word "a" to "an" in two instances so that the paragraph reads in part, "requesting an exemption/waiver of" instead of "requesting a variance/waiver of," and later in the same sentence so to read, "the approval of an exemption/waiver is supported" instead of "the approval of a variance/waiver is supported."

Pages 13 -14, MCS Subpart 8.1, grammar correction:

The grammar in the second half of the sentence in MCS Subpart 8.1. is corrected to exchange the word "which" appearing after the word "standards" with the word "that." As revised, the second part of the sentence reads in part, "...combined with the satisfaction of any applicable performance standards **that** support a decision that a medical condition has no adverse impact on safety," instead of "...combined with the satisfaction of any applicable performance standards **which** support a decision that a medical condition has no adverse impact."

Page 14, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 8.4.4.2, new paragraph addressing denials due to failed Skills Performance Evaluation:

MCS Subpart 8.4 addresses why medical waiver applications may be denied, and Sub-subpart 8.4.4 specifies that denials of medical waivers will be made in writing. New paragraph 8.4.4.2 addresses when the written denials are in response to medical limb waiver applications that are denied due to the applicant's inability to pass the Skills Performance Evaluation (SPE).

Page 15, MCS Subpart 8.6, sentence updated to improve readability:

The sentence is updated to improve message delivery and readability. As revised, the sentence reads, "A medical waiver may be revoked **if** the CSP determines that **issuing** a waiver to a driver does not promote safety, protect human life, or preserve the highways of this state," instead of "A medical waiver may be revoked **where** the CSP determines that **issue of** a waiver to a driver does not promote safety, protect human life, or preserve the highways of this state."

Page 15, MCS Sub-subpart 8.6.1, sentence updated to improve readability:

The sentence is updated to improve message delivery and readability and to revise it to read in the present tense. As updated, the sentence reads, "**The** CSP **may revoke a medical waiver** when a waiver holder fails to comply with the applicable terms and conditions of the CSP Medical Waiver Program," instead of "**A medical waiver may be revoked by the** CSP when a waiver holder fails to comply with the applicable terms and conditions of the CSP Medical Waiver Program."

Page 15, MCS Subpart 8.7, sentence updated to improve readability and correct punctuation:

The second sentence of MCS Subpart 8.7 is updated to improve readability and correct punctuation errors. As updated, the sentence reads, "Notice of this hearing will be in writing and will **give** the waiver applicant at least 30 days'-notice of the time, date, place, and nature of the hearing," instead of "Notice of this hearing will be in writing and will **provide** the waiver applicant at least 30 days' notice of the time, date, place, and nature of the hearing."

Page 15, MCS Subpart 8.8, sentence updated to improve readability:

The first two sentences of MCS Subpart 8.8 are updated to improve their readability and message delivery by removing unnecessary phrases. As proposed, the sentences are revised to read, "Within 30 days of the completion of a hearing or the failure of the waiver holder to file a written answer in response **to it**, the Chief or his or her designee will issue a decision either affirming the revocation or reinstating the medical waiver. Within 30 days of receiving written notice from the MCSS revoking a medical waiver, the aggrieved holder may submit an exception or appeal" instead of "Within 30 days of the completion of a hearing or the failure of the waiver holder to file a written answer in response **thereto**, the Chief or his or her designee will issue a decision either affirming the revocation or reinstating the revocation or reinstating the completion of a hearing or the failure of the waiver holder to file a written answer in response **thereto**, the Chief or his or her designee will issue a decision either affirming the revocation or reinstating the medical waiver. Within 30 days of receiving written of a medical waiver. Within 30 days of receiving written notice from the MCSS revoking a medical waiver, the aggrieved holder of a medical waiver within 30 days of receiving written notice from the MCSS revoking a medical waiver, the aggrieved holder of a medical waiver within 30 days of receiving written notice from the MCSS revoking a medical waiver, the aggrieved holder **of a medical waiver** may submit an exception or appeal.

Page 16, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 8.8.4.1, grammar correction:

The grammar in MCS Sub-subpart 8.8.4.1 is corrected so that the sentence reads, "If the Chief finds by **a** preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is sufficient, revocation of the medical waiver will be sustained," instead of "if the Chief finds by preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is sufficient, revocation of the medical waiver will be sustained."

Page 16, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 8.8.4.2, grammar correction:

The grammar in MCS Sub-subpart 8.8.4.2 is corrected so that the sentence reads, "If the Chief finds by **a** preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is insufficient, revocation of the medical waiver will be immediately reversed, and the medical waiver reinstated," instead of "if the Chief finds by preponderance of the evidence that evidence of non-compliance and/or ineligibility is insufficient, the revocation of the medical waiver will be immediately reversed, and the medical evidence waiver will be immediately reversed, and the medical waiver will be immediately reversed.

Page 17, MCS Subpart 9.4, grammar correction:

The grammar is corrected to update the pronoun usage in the first sentence of MCS Subpart 9.4. The sentence is revised to read, "An intrastate motor carrier may request a change to **its**' Safety Fitness Rating based on corrective actions completed by the motor carrier," instead of "An intrastate motor carrier may request a change to **their** Safety Fitness Rating based on corrective actions completed by the motor carrier."

Page 19, MCS Subpart 9.6, punctuation correction:

The punctuation in the second sentence is updated by adding a comma after "under Parts 9.3 or 9.5" and before "nor will an initial request." As revised, the second sentence reads, "Conversely, a request to review initially under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Parts 9.3 or 9.5, nor will an initial request to review under Part 9.5 prohibit subsequent requests to review under Parts 9.3 or 9.4," instead of "Conversely, a request to review initially under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests to review under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Parts 9.3 or 9.5, nor will an initial request to review under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Parts 9.3 or 9.5 nor will an initial request to review under Parts 9.3 or 9.5 nor will an initial request to review under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Parts 9.3 or 9.5 nor will an initial request to review under Part 9.4 will not preempt subsequent requests under Parts 9.3 or 9.5 nor will an initial request to review under Part 9.5 prohibit subsequent requests to review under Parts 9.3 or 9.4."

Page 20, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.2, sentence updated to correct readability:

The second sentence of MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.2 is updated to correct readability and deliver the sentence's message in the active tense. As updated, the sentence reads, "These fine schedules provide guidance and support for **determining** and **calculating** Civil Penalty Assessments," instead of "These fine schedules provide guidance and support for **the determination** and **calculation of** Civil Penalty Assessments."

Page 20, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.3, updated to improve readability:

MCS Sub-subpart 10.1.2.3 is updated from a single sentence into two sentences, and the word "and" is deleted to separate the sentences. As revised, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.3 reads, "Provisions of 49 CFR 386 Subpart G relating the amount of a Civil Penalty Assessment to the ability of a motor carrier to pay the assessment are explicitly excluded. They are not considered when determining or assessing a Civil Penalty against an intrastate motor carrier," instead of "Provisions of 49 CFR 386 Subpart G relating the amount of a Civil Penalty Assessment to the ability of a motor carrier to pay the assessment are explicitly excluded and they are not considered when determining or assessing a Civil Penalty against an intrastate when carrier to pay the assessment are explicitly excluded and they are not considered when determining or assessing a Civil Penalty against an intrastate motor carrier."

Page 20, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.4, grammar correction:

The first sentence of MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.1.2.4 is updated to correct the grammar, exchanging "are" for "is." As revised, the sentence reads, "The intrastate operation of implements of husbandry is exempted from and **is** not subject to the Civil Penalties that may be assessed under Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS," instead of "The intrastate operation of implements of husbandry **are** exempted from and is not subject to the Civil Penalties that may be assessed under Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS."

Page 20, MCS Sub-subpart 10.3.3, updated to improve readability:

MCS Sub-subpart 10.3.3 is updated to improve its readability. The phrase "By submitting" is deleted from the beginning of the sentence, and "Submitting" begins the sentence. Updated, MCS Sub-subpart 10.3.3 reads, "**Submitting** a written response requesting an administrative review of a Civil Penalty Assessment," instead of "**By submitting** a written response requesting an administrative review of the Civil Penalty Assessment."

Pages 20 – 21, MCS Subpart 10.4, updated to improve readability:

The first sentence of MCS Subpart 10.4 is updated to improve its readability and deliver the message in an active tense. The first sentence is revised to read, "If a motor carrier believes the CSP committed an error **determining** or **assessing** a Civil Penalty, a motor carrier may request an administrative review," instead of "If a motor carrier believes the CSP committed an error in **the determination** or **assessment of** a Civil Penalty, a motor carrier may request an administrative review."

Page 21, MCS Sub-subpart 10.4.3, updated to improve readability:

The last sentence of MCS Sub-subpart 10.4.3 is updated to improve readability. As revised, the sentence reads, "Notice will be in person, by certified mail, or upon the parties' **agreement**, by email," instead of "Notice will be in person, by certified mail, or upon the **agreement of the** parties, by email."

Page 21 – 22, MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.4.5.2 (as duplicated) through 10.4.5.7, updated to correct numbering sequence:

The numbering sequence is in error. MCS Sub-sub-subpart 10.4.5.2 is duplicated, appearing twice. The duplicate 10.4.5.2 is renumbered by one to 10.4.5.3, 10.4.5.3 is renumbered to 10.4.5.4, 10.4.5.5 is renumbered to 10.4.5.6, and 10.4.5.6 is renumbered to new sub-sub-subpart 10.4.5.7.

Page 21, MCS Sub-sub-subpart (duplicate) 10.4.5.2 (as renumbered to 10.4.5.3, updated to improve readability:

MCS Sub-subpart 10.4.5.2, duplicated and renumbered as 10.4.5.3, has been updated to improve readability and deliver the message in an active tense. As updated, the sentence reads in part, "...either in **determining** the violations or **assessing** the Civil Penalty," instead of "either in **the determination of** the violations or **the assessment of** the Civil Penalty."

Page 22, MCS Sub-subpart 10.4.7, updated to improve readability:

The second sentence of MCS Sub-subpart 10.4.7 has been updated to improve readability and message delivery. Revised, it reads, "Upon agreement of the parties, the notice will be in writing by certified mail or by email, and will also be made in person," instead of "Notice will be in writing, and be made in person, or by certified mail, or by email upon agreement of the parties."

Page 23, MCS Subpart 12.1, grammar correction:

The grammar in the second sentence of MCS 12.1 is corrected, exchanging the word "are" for the word "is." As corrected, the second sentence reads, "The following publications, standards, guidelines, and rules are adopted as each is amended by and within these rules and as **is** consistent with Section 24-4-103 (12.5), CRS," instead of "The following publications, standards, guidelines, and rules are adopted as each is amended by and within these rules and as **are** consistent with Section 24-4-103 (12.5), CRS."

Page 23, MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.1, date of publication update:

The year and date of publication for the CVSA North American Standard Out-of-Service Criteria (OOSC) must be updated to be consistent with the version referenced within these redlined rules. The version referenced within these rules is the version that will be effective April 1, 2025. The year 2024 in MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.1 must be updated to 2025. As updated, MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.1 reads, "Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance (2025), North American Standard Out-of-Service Criteria (OOSC). April 1, 2025. Greenbelt, MD: Author," instead of "Commercial Vehicle Safety Alliance (2024), North American Standard Out-of-Service Criteria (OOSC). April 1, 2024. Greenbelt, MD: Author."

Page 23, MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.2, date of publication update:

The year and date of publication for the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations (FMCSRs) referenced within these redlined rules must be updated to reference the correct version. The version referenced throughout these redlined rules has a publication date of October 1, 2024. The year in MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.2 must be updated from 2023 to 2024. As updated, the first sentence of MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.2 reads, "Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 40, 380, 382, 383, 385, 387, 390, 391-397, 399, and Appendix A (October 1, 2024)," instead of "Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 40, 380, 382, 383, 385, 387, 390, 391-397, 399, and Appendix A (October 1, 2023)."

Page 23, MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.3, updated to improve readability:

The first sentence of MCS Sub-subpart 12.1.3 is updated to improve readability by deleting the word "thereto." As revised, the sentence reads, "Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 386, Subpart G, and Appendices A and B as codified by Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS," instead of "Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, 49 CFR 386, Subpart G, and Appendices A and B **thereto** as codified by Section 42-4-235 (2) (a), CRS."

Pages 23 – 24, MCS Subpart 12.3, updated to improve readability:

The first sentence of MCS Subpart 12.3 is updated to improve readability. As updated, the sentence reads, "Interested parties may access information about referenced documents **online** free of charge," instead of "Interested parties may access information about referenced documents free of charge **online**."

Page 24, MCS 14, Effective Date updated.

These rules are updated annually, and the effective date of these rules must be updated to reflect that they will become effective in 2025. The year of 2024 must be changed to 2025. The sentence is revised to read, "The effective date of these rules is April 1, **2025**," instead of "The effective date of these rules is April 1, **2024**."



MEMORANDUM

Colonel Matthew C. Packard Colorado State Patrol

COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

DATE: January 16, 2025

TO: Executive Director's Office, Central Files

FROM: Angelina M. Page, Esq., CSP Rulemaking Coordinator

SUBJECT: 8 CCR 1507-1, Rules and Regulations Concerning the Minimum Standards for the Operation of Commercial Vehicles

This memo states that the Department of Public Safety will maintain a permanent rulemaking record of the above-mentioned rule consistent with §24-4-103 (8.1) (a), CRS. §24-4-103 (8.1) (a), CRS, mandates that "an agency shall maintain an official rulemaking file record for each proposed rule for which a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking has been published in the Colorado Register. The agency shall maintain such a rulemaking record until all administrative and judicial review procedures have been completed according to the provisions of this article. The rulemaking record shall be available for public inspection."

Please contact me should you need additional information.

Angelina M. Page, Esq. CSP Rulemaking Coordinator